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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
(504)304^520 • OPSB.us • 2401 Westbend Partoy • Suite 5055 • New Orleans, Louisiana 70114 

December 19,2019 

To: Orleans Parish. ScliDol Board Members 
The People of New Orleans 

li is om: priwlege to present the audited finandal statements and schedules on the fiscal 
condition of the Orleans Parish School Board, New Orleans, Louisiana, for the fiscal year ended 
June 30,2019. The report was prepared in conformiiy with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and is submitted in accordance with Louisiana Revised 
Statute Title 24, Section 514. 

The Orleans Parish School Board is responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and fair 
presentation of the data, representations, and disclosures presented in this report To the best of 
our knowledge and beliej^ the information presented in tiiis report is accurate in all material 
respects, reported in a manner designed to Mdy present the financial position and results of 
operations, and provides disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of 
tiie finandal activities and condition of the Orleans Parish School Board. 

GASB Codification Section 2200.105 requires that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management's Discussion and Analysis. This letter of transmittal is intended to complement 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, which immediately follows the independent auditors' 
report and should be read in conjunction with that report 
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JQoidependleaf Audit 

Utese finandal stafemeoEts iave been audited by tbe fern Lnfiber Spa^t and Company, 
CPAs, located in New-Orleans, IxKiisaana. The goal ofibeindependaitanditwastoimmde 
reasonable asaitance tbat fbe finandal statements of die Oiieans Padsb Sdiool Board for the 
jSscal year ended Jnne 30,2019 arejB:eefiDniniatgiialmiss£atem.CTl Theindepmdent audit 
invdves examining, on a test basis, evidence si5)pcnting the amounfe and disclosure in the 
finandal statemeofe; ass^singthe accouaiingpiindples used and significant ^imates made by 
management and eyalnatmg the overall finandal sfetemeot piesoiMion- Ihe indepettdent 
auditor concinded, based tgion fee audil; featfeere v?as a reasonable baas ferrendeiiag an 
unmodified opinion that fee finandal statements of fee Orleans Parish School Board for fee year 
eoded June 30,2019 are faMy pr^ented in accordance vrife acc»untii]g ptindples generally 
accepted in the United Stales d America The independent auditors' report is pr^ented 
immefeatdy following Management's Ifiscassion and Analy^. 

The independent audit of the financial statemeds of fee Orieans Parish School Board was part 
of a broader, federally mandated "Sin^e Audif' deagned to meet fee ^edal needs of federal -
grantor agencies. The standards governing "Sin^e Audif engagenents require fee independent 
auditor to report no only on fee feir presentation of fee financial statenenfe, but also on fee 
testing of fee government's internal controls and legal requirements iavolvhigfee admimstration 
of federal awards, Ihese reports immediately follow fee stafistiod i^les. 

Accemxting Control 

Management is responablefer establishing andmaiataining internal controls designed to 
ensure that assets are protected firom loss, feefi; or misitse and feat adequate accounting data is 
compiled to provide for fee preparation of financial statements in c£a3fortii%- wife accounting 
principles generally accepted in fee Uni^ States of America. Ihtemal controls are designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance feat these objectives are met. Ihe concept of 
reascEoable assurance recognizes fet^fee cost of a control feotdd not exceed fee benefits likely to 
be derived, and fee valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgmeofe by 
management. AH internal contrd evaluations occur wifeia this framework. We b dieve feat fee 
intecnal accounting controls-of fee (Means Parish School Board adecjnately safeguard assets and 
provide reasonable assurance of proper recording and reporting of financial transactions. 
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Profile of ihe Orleans Parisii Sehod Board 

TfaeKew Odmis PubEc Scbools %steaa w$s es^fisired cdi3!«Eardi26,1841 Tsiili-die 
assistance of America's cbanqgoao. of fbee pddie edjcafion, Horace Mano, to provide 
Mndergarteai fhror#i twelBii grade pddic edimation for die diildcea of jESTew Od^jos. B^ore 
B&inicaneKatma stock: ISfew Qdeans in2005, LonManabad created die Sieeoveiy Sdiool 
District ̂ RSD) to lafceovea: and transfcam failiDg sebods. Ader die storm, the Recoveiy Scbod 
Di^cf s scope vs?as expanded to indnde sdiods petformiog below state averages vddnn an 
academically troubled ̂ stem diat was plagued by sevae financial dstress. Bodi die Kecovety 
Scbool Distrid and the (Means ParMi Sdiool Board eveotudly acdioiized diaiter schods to 
refontt local edimationdiroij^ decentraiizatiQtt basedvpaa mtmatny and accoimtabiBly, wide 
wo&ii^ wrtfa. state and federal agendes to refenld and modernize sdiool infiastoctoreL Sdiods 
improve^ student achievement increased, graduadou rato rose, new and renovated campr^es 
reopened, buc^Es balanced, and the Orleans Parish Sdiool Board's cacedit raring improved. By 
2016 public offidals and communis leadsrs alike ̂ reed that conditions were pro^esdng to 
romite the Secovety School District and (Means Parish Schod Board schods'under one dected 
local board, riie (Means Parish School Board, After an opea and publicly engaged planning 
proems, the unified school district opmed on Jidy 1,2018. Educators, fenrilies, and comrnutii^ 
patoers acrivdy monitor and disccBS how our uni pre, decedtoBzed ̂ stem cperates in practice 
with (Means Paiish School Board as anihoirser lafherlhantradtional operator. Now the (Means 
Pariah Sdtod Board calls its administrarionQr ceaitral ofSceNOLAPublic Schools to r^^eat 
and hcmor the dly it serves. 

A board conrisring of seven memhsrs elected frmn l^ally established districts is charged 
with the managemeat and eperarion of the sdhool spstencL Board mecahers setvefijur-year teEms; 
the current term expires on December 31,2020. 

In 2018-:^19 the school ^ston was composed of 87 schools: 

® two schools were direcriy run by the (Means Parish School Board; 
® one school (two stady centers) saves the educarional needs of incarcerated yrarih; 
® 23 schools were in^jendenfly-chaitered; 
® 53 schools were charted to 15 (fififerent charter managetneat oiganmrions; 
® 7 schools were chartered by the state Board of Elemeoteiy and Secondary P-diTc-atinn 

(BES]^; and 
® 1 school was authorized by the EoTrisTana T .figrslafnm 

Eorihe2018-2019 school yearNOLA Public Schools had a total enmllTnent of approrimafeiy 
46,400 students and total ernployment of ^oufc 40O personnel. As primarily the local aufhorizer 
of charters to operate pubfic sdiools in New Orleans, the services NOIA Public Schools provide 
are services for stodents with speciiri needs, disfrict-wide enrollment, charter school portfolio 
innovation and accoontabilily, and school srppor^ in addirion to various ancillary executive and 
administrative services. 
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The Oiieans Parish School Board is a primaiy govemmenj; wth a separaMy-dected 
governing body and is legally separate and fiscally indepettdent of ofeer state or local 
govemmenis. The Orieans Parish School Board has discretely presented coniponKhnnitSi 
which are other legally separ^ arganizaricsis iSn: which the (M^ns Parish School Board is 
financially acconntable. Copies cf siitmMed mdited financial sMemeats are avail^le on the 
LouMana L^sklive Anditar's website Haia-gov. The (Means ParMi School Board also has 
one component iniit Mended wife, file piinaaiy goveDomentdneto the closeness ofthdr 
relarionsMp mth fire primary government: this compcmeirt unit is the Qri^ns Schools Facili^ 
Foondation (O^F), ̂  non-profit argani^cm reported as an enteiprise fimd, for wMch Si^arate 
financial statements are not issued. 

The general jBmd bndget is posted on the web site and avail^le fi>r pnbHc inspecfion 
begrnniDg in eariy Jrme, as prbH&hed in the Orieans Pari^ Schocil Board's official joumal. The 
Board adopfe the general fimd budget in late June afia- ccmductirig at least one public hiring to 
receive prblic hqpnl A consolidated btu%et, wMcb incdad^ the ̂ neral fimd and all fiie special 
reyenae fimds^ is posted on the web site in eariy Angos^ later in Ajgnst a pnblic hearing is 
conducted to recdve public inpat b^csre the board adepts the consolidated budget AmmaL 
budgets are adopted (fimds are ̂ rcpriatec^ forfhe graieral jBmd and all spedal revenue fimds. 
The budget document is avail^le in the Commnrdly, Ifistrict Fiuandals section of the website, 
nolapublicscbools.com. The legal level of budgetary control is atihe fimd level. 

The Toeai EcoHomy 

Orleans Parisb, coterminous with the City of New (Means, enccanpasses 350 square miles 
and is located on ̂ e banks of the MLsrissippi Eiver and the south shore of Pontchaxtrain 
with access to the Port ofNew (Means, m^or.railways, and an intemational airport Orleans 
Parish, with apopulafion of391,000 and amedian annual income of $36,999, is LouMam's 
third-largest parish. New (Means has an established and widening industdal base, inchMing 
sfalwaxfe sucb as energy, trade, and advanced manrrfecturing, as well as emer^g strengths like 
film and di^td media. The tourism industry is a ma|or drivo: c£ economic growth: in 2018 New 
(Means welcomed 18.5 million viators, an increase of 4% compared to the previous year, wMch 
accounted for over $9 billion in spending. 

The New Orleans area is expected to see an upficfe in economic activity tied to a flurry of 
industrial proj ects under construction in the parishes surrounding the dl^ ovs" the next two years 
and is forecast to add9,400jobsia2020, bringing the total jobs to 595,600. 
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Long-term Financial Planning 

Long term financial planning primarily centers around equitably fijnding the education of all 
of New Orleans' students and preserving, maintaining and consfxucfing fecilities. 

la 2016-2017 the district-level funding allocation (DLFA), a dtywide funding allocation to 
fimd schools based on student needs and characteristics, was implemented- After many months 
of significant engagement with school operators and the public, in September 2019 the 
Superintendent announced changes to the wei^ts in the district-level fimding allocation 
designed to promote career and technical education programs and provide more funding to 
Bn^sh language learners, gifted and talented students, and other students with spedal needs. -
These revisions, which will he effective July 1,2020 and are shown in the table below with the 
changes M^blighted, are the first revisions to the district-level fimding allocation since its 
inception four years ago. 

Student Category Current Weight New Weight 
K-8 Base (Grades K-S) 
HS Base (Grades 9-12) 

1.000 1.000 
1.050 1.045 (see CTE) 

Categories (Added to Base) 
SPED Tier 1 0.200 0.200 

SPED Tier 2 1.175 1.175 

SPED Tier 3 1.875 1.875 

SPED Tier 4 2.175 2.175 

SPED Tiers 3.000 3.000 

Gifted/Talented 0.050 0.110 
ELL Tier 1 0.300 0.030 

ELL Tier 2 N/A 0,650 

Overage 0.775 0.225 

Past Incarcerated N/A 0.225 

Past Expelled N/A 0.225 

Career and Technical Education (CTE) N/A 0.010 

Ou June 20, 2019 House Bill 393, which became Act 430 of the 2019 Regular Legislative 
Session, was signed hito law shiftiag local sales tax revenues available for the School Facilities 
Preservation Program" to general school funding and special programs, in addition to other 
changes. This legislation requires the development of a long-teim capital plan for each school 
campus and the development of policies and procedures around prioritiring the distribution of 
School FaciEties Preservation Program funds, administering a new revolving loan fund, and 
admioisteiing grants available from the capital improvement fimd. This work is expected to be 
completed by June 2020. 
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IVSajor Mnandal PoBei^ 

Major finandal pdides adt^ed by Ihe (Means Parish School Board mclude the jfollowing: 

® An animal operariag bndgd: policy reqrtfring ihe allocalioa of jBjnds eqahably to ensore 
eqpriYalence among schools in the proviacai of curricolar maledals, instaicrional suj^lies 
and aHotment of teachas, adminisfiatoi^ and axixiliaiy peESomiel; 

• A geae3Eal fund balance reserve policy reserving at least 15% of local revennes for 
CTiej^ncdes, 123% of the annnal opeialing budget of any direct-run schools for disfedct-
opearated school reserves, and the remaining fund balance reserved to address jystem-
vride unforeseen, exc^jtlanal drcomstances, sach asunaniica.patedre<hjc1ionin leYeniies 
or expense to address xmanri dpated changes in the level of services needed to sipport 
students; 

• A cEstrict-level funding allocation pdicy that requires calculating Ihe total amount of 
Mbrimum PoraidationProgcam (MH*) jBmds provided by the state in the form of an 
imreslricted grant to be allocated based upon student characterisfics or needs; 

® A purchadng pcilicy providing the procurement mefeod based on funchng srraxce, 
ensuring every qpportonily is made available to include disadvanfeged business concems, 
and offedng services to assist cSsadvantaged business concerns in the development and 
growth of Ihdr business; 

• An hrvestmmts policy staring thatthe three investment objective in order of priority are 
safety, then Hcjrridily, then yield and lisrirg suitable investments, investment parameters, 
and portfolio drvetsificarion; and 

® A debt Bmitarion policy stating that debt may be incurred for ihe purpose of accpimng or 
improving land, purchasing, constiucring or improving school buildings, crfor other 
purposes allowed by state law up to the masdmum amount pematted by state law. 

JMiaJor Ihifialives 

In November 2017 after worMng with a comprdiensive group of locd stakeholders, riie 
School Board adopted a three-year strategc plan (available on our website, 
nolaprhlicschools.eom) with the following ea^t goals: 

® Advance equity fox all students andfanriries; 
® hiGrease the share of stodents at or above grade level in reading and math; 
« Raise the hi^ school gaduarion rate; 
® Improve school grachrates' readiness for jrirture success; 
® Increase the number of students attending "A" and "B" schools; 
® hicarease the diversity of scjhools and programs ofeed to students and families; 
® Expand access to early childhood education; and 
a Ihcarease public mgagemeit and public confidence in the school system. 
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A enrrent initiative working towards those goals includes designing and developing the 
Systemwide Needs Fund (LSA-RS 17:100.12), which will become effective on My 1, 2020. The 
2019 legislation shifts about $3 million per year in local sales tax revenues from preserving and 
maintaining facilities to the Systemwide Needs Program, which supports initiatives that result in 
coordinated districtwide improvements in areas that can be more ejSiciently and effectively 
addressed at the system level than at the school level while recognizing the need for 
differentiated supports that address the Orleans Parish School Board's unique charter system. 
Starting in August 2019 input was received from multiple advisory councils and school leaders 
to develop the four principles of (1) aligning law and pohcy; (2) being responsive to both 
systemic challenges and the diversity of charters' needs, perspectives and structures; (3) 
maximizing the available funds; and (4) incentivizing systemic action and solutions. Five key 
themes emerged as a result of public engagement and surveys, from which the following two 
areas of focus were identified: (1) teacher talent, hicludiag growing and sustaining the teacher 
pipeline and providing mentors to new teachers, and (2) increasing student access to mental and 
behavioral supports through specialized programming and initiatives. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Odeans Parish School Board 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited tiie accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Orleans Parish School Board (School Board) as of and for the year 
ended June 30,2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
School Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements ia 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted ia the United States of America; this iacludes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of iatemal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are firee firom material misstatement, whether due to firaud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opiaions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not 
audit the fohowing discretely presented component units: Warren Easton Senior High School, Legacy 
of Excellence, Significant Educators, Ekn Academy Charter School, Foundation Preparatory Charter 
School, Hynes Charter School, Homer A. Plessy Community School, and Rooted School. These 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon were furnished to us, and 
our opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component units, 
is based solely on the report of the other audits. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards apphcable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free firom material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's iatemal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as weE as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

New Orleans Office: 1100 Poydras Street, Suite 1225/New Orleans, LA 70163/(504)561-8600 
Memphis Office: 119 S. Main Street, Suite 500/Memphis, TN 38103/(901)322-4238 

Atlanta Office: Five Concourse Pkwy/Atlanta, GA 30328/(770)399-8808 



Opinions 

ItL Old: opinion, the financial statements refetted to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective fibiancial position o£ the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the Orleans Parish School Board as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Squired Stcpplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requite that the 
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, net OPEB liabflity and 
related ratios, net pension liability information and notes to required supplementary information on 
pages 4-13 and 10^112 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is requited by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of jfinancial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our iuquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Irformation 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Orleans Parish School Board's basic financial statements. The introductory 
section, the schedules in the other supplementary information section as listed in the table of contents, 
and statistical schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 

The schedules in the other supplementary information section as listed in the table of contents are the 
responsibility of management and were derived firom and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fiinancial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules in the other 
supplementary information section as listed in the table of contents are fairly stated, in all material 
respects in relation to the basic fiinancial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 



Other Reporting Required by Govenunent Auditmg Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditmg Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 
2019, on our consideration of the Orleans Parish School Board's iatemal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. 

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Orleans Parish School Board's internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Orleans Parish School Board's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Emphasis of a Matter 

In May 2016, Louisiana Senate Bill 432 (Act 91) authorized the return of certain schools and fadhties 
from the Recovery School District to the School Board to be completed no later than July 1, 2018. 
The financial effect related to the return of the schools is recorded in the fixed asset accounts of the 
goyerimient-wide financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,2019. 

Luther Sp 

New Orleans, Lorrisiana 

December 18, 2019 



Overview and Analysis of Financial Activities 

The OrLeans Parish School Board (School Board), as the financial manager of the Orleans Parish 
School System, offers the readers of these financial statements an overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the School Board. This overview and analysis is designed to assist the users of these 
financial statements to focus on significant issues, identify significant changes in the School Board's 
financial position, both at the govemment-wide and fund levels, and highlight material changes firom 
the School Board's approved budget. 

Our discussion and analysis of the School Board's financial performance includes a section entitled 
FmandalHzghIzghts-wld.ch. provides an overview of its financial activities for the fiscal years ended Jrme 
30, 2019 and 2018. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Annual 
Financial Reporfs Letter of Transmittal in the Introductory Section, the School System's Financial 
Statements (Financial Section) and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Financial Highlights 

• As of June 30, 2019, the School Board reported a consolidated net position of $1.66 biUion, 
which is an increase of $806 million firom the June 30,2018, balance of $854.6 million. 

• As of jTxne 30, 2019, the School Board reported a General Fund balance of $57 million. This 
represents a decrease of $6 million from the June 30, 2018, balance of $63.0 million. 

• For fiscal year 2019, Ad Valorem Tax Revenues, including the gross up for fees, totaled $173.5 
million. This represents an increase of $4.2 million firom the prior year. 

• Sales Tax Revenues totaled $148.0 million for fiscal year 2019, which represents an increase 
of $8.4 million firom the prior year. 

• The Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) distribution ficom the State of Louisiana totaled 
$184.6 million for fiscal year 2019. Louisiana funds public education through a block grant 
known as the Minimum Foundation Program, or MFP. The MFP formula is developed and 
approved annually by the Louisiana State Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. 

• Within fiscal year 2019, expenditures on Federal and State awards totaled $31.9 million. The 
largest grants were as follows: (1) U.S. Department of Homeland Security (FEMA Disaster 
Relief Program) = $15.7 million; (2) U.S. Department of Education = $9.2 million and (3) U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, Child Nutrition Program = $3.7 million. These expenditures 
benefit OPSB students, OPSB charter school students and non-public students. 

• Principal payment on the General Obligation Bonds totaled $12.2 million. The Qualified 
School Construction Bond (QSCB) is required to make an annual deposit to a sinking fund 
for maturation. The contribution in fiscal year 2018 was $11.2 million. Interest payments for 
both bonds totaled $2.0 million. 



• As of June 30, 2019, the School Board had total Long-Term debt of |198.2 million. This is 
comprised of the following: (1) Bonds totaling |99 million (2) OPEB Obligation payable of 
$6.3 million; (3) Net Pension Liability of $52.3 miOion; (4) Compensated Absences of $1.7 
million and (5) Claims Payable of $38.9 million. 

• As of June 30,2019, the School Board had a fund balance of $82.2 million in its Debt Service 
funds. The components are as follows: (1) General Obligation Bonds = $12.5 million and (2) 
QSCB Bonds = $69.7 million. These funds are dedicated by Board action to the repayment 
of the related outstanding debt. 

• As of June 30, 2019, the School Board had net capital assets, book value less accumulated 
depreciation, of $1,476 million. The long-term debt plus accrued interest on these capital 
assets totaled $1,382 million. 

• Capital project expenditures during fiscal year 2019, for both major construction and repait 
and maintenance projects totaled $13.3 million. 

• At June 30, 2019 the component units (i.e., the seven charter schools) had a net position of 
$20.4 million. Additionally, revenue for the current fiscal year totaled $46.9 million. 

Using this Annual Financial Report 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School Board's Annual 
Financial Report (AFR). The basic financial statements consist of the following: (1) Government-
Wide Financial Statements; (2) Fund Finandal Statements; (3) Notes to the Financial Statements and 
(4) Supplementary Financial Information. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (pages 13 through 16) include the Statement of Net Position 
and Statement of Activities, which provide information about the activities of the School Board as a 
whole and present a longer-term view of the School Board's finances. In summary, the Government-
Wide Financial Statements show the results of operations and financial position using the total 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting which emphasizes the 
long-term financial picture and are very similar to the financial statements of the private sector. 

The Fund Financial Statements (pages 15 through 25) represent information for three fund categories 
- governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Financial statements for governmental funds tell how we 
financed our services in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. These fund 
statements provide the reader with some insight into the School Board's overall financial health. In 
short, the fund-level financial statements show the results of operations and financial position using 
the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
emphasizing the change in fund balances as a result of the current year's operations, as well as the 
amount of resources available to spend. 

Fund Financial Statements also report the School Board's operations in more detail than the 
Govemment-Wide Financial Statements by providing information about the School Board's most 
significant funds - such as the General Fund, Pass-Through Fund, General Obligation Bond Fund, 
QSCB Fund, Hurricane Katrina Restoration Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Master Plan Fund, Facilities 
Preservation Frmd and the Federal Grant Fund. 



The GoTemmental Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances include the major funds as well as an aggregate of the remaining funds that report general 
government operations. 

The School Board maintains two types of Proprietary Funds. The Enterprise Fund is used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the Government-Wide Financial 
Statements. An enterprise fund was established to account for the rental receipts and operating costs 
of a five-story building purchased. Another enterprise fund, which represents a blended component 
unit, was established to facilitate tax credit financing for the construction and renovation of school 
buildings as described in Note 21. The Internal Service Funds are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and aEocate costs internally among the School Board's major functions/funds. The 
School Board uses internal service funds for its employee health insurance, retiree health insurance 
and workers' compensation. Because these services predominandy benefit the governmental rather 
than business-type functions, they are included within governmental activities in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements. 

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
provide financial information about activities for which the School Board acts solely as an agent for 
the benefit of smdents and parents. 

Other sections include Notes to the Financial Statements (pages 26 through 86) and certain Required 
Supplementary Information (pages 87 through 95). Included in the Requited Supplementary 
Information is a comparison of the General Fund budget with actual results on pages 87 through 88. 
Over the course of the year, the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to deal with unexpected 
changes in revenues and expenditures. 

Reporting on School Board as a Whole 

Govetmaent-Wide Fiaancial Aaalysis 

The following analysis focuses on the Statement of Net Position (Table 1) and Statement of Activities 
(Table 2) of the School Board's governmental and business-type activities: 



Table 1 
Condensed Comparative Statement of Net Position (In Thousands) 

At. Jime 30,2019 and 2018 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Current and Other Assets 5 
Capital Assets, Net 
Loan Receivable and Accrued Intere; 
Long-Term Receivable RSD 

f 321,579 $ 
1,469,391 

6,166 

255,563 
609,779 

91,676 

f 10,259 1 
6,783 

126,731 

5,010 1 
6,899 

129,284 

331,838 1 
1,476,174 

126,731 
6,166 

260,573 
616,678 
129,284 
91,676 

Total Assets 1,797,136 957,018 143,771 141,193 1,940,907 1,098,211 

Deferred Outflo-ws of Resources 9,279 8,164 9,279 8,164 

Current and Other Liabilities 
Long-Term Liabilities 

84,031 
198,206 

23,216 
218,088 

796 360 
59 

84,827 
198,206 

23,576 
218,147 

Total Liabilities 282,237 241,304 796 419 283,033 241,723 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,552 10,054 5,552 10,054 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in Capital 

Assets 
Restricted 

' Unrestricted 

1,376,152 
164,049 
(21,386) 

589,599 
125,625 

(1,401) 

6,782 

136,194 

6,898 

133,876 

1,382,933 
164,049 
114,808 

596,497 
125,625 
132,475 

Total Net Position | ; 1,518,814 f 713,823 $ 142,976 1 140,774 1 1,661,790 $ 854,597 

The School Board's net position was |1.661 billion at June 30, 2019, and |854 million at Jtme 30, 
2018. Of which, $114.8 million and $132.4 million were unrestricted at June 30, 2019 and 2018 
respectively. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints firom debt 
covenants, capital projects and enabling legislation that limit the School Board's ability to use the net 
position for day-to-day operations. As of June 30,2019 and 2018, the restricted net position amounted 
to $164.0 million and $125.6 million respectively. 

Current and other assets increased from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019, by $71 million. 

Net capital assets increased firom June 30, 2018 to June 30,2019, by $860 million primarily due to the 
transfer of properties firom the RSD. See Notes 2 and 6, Capital Assets in the accompanying financial 
statements for additional discussion regarding depreciation methods and related accumulated 
depreciation. Due to the enactment of the school re-unification process, transfers of property 
occurred during fiscal year 2019. 

Total liabilities increased by $41 million primarily due to an increase in accoxmts payables. Long-term 
liabilities decreased by $24 million. This net change is composed of a decrease in Bonds Payable by 
$10.8 million, and decreases in Net Pension Liability of $17.1 million and OPEB Obligation Liability 
by a negligible amount. These decreases were offset by an increase in Accrued Compensated Absences 
of $1.3 million and Liability for Claims Payable of $14.1 million. 



Table 2 
Condensed Conxparafive Statement of Actitdties (in Thousands) 

For tbe Years Ended Jime 30,2019 and 2018 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Acttvities Total 
Govenunental Activities 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Revenues 

Program Revenues 

Charges for Services $ 3,576 1 P 120 1 f 4,117 1 F 1,267 f 7,693 1 F 1,387 
Operating Grants 22,665 61,380 - - 22,665 61380 
Capital Grants 17,303 • 7,724 - - 17,303 7,724 

Total Program Revenues 43,544 69,224 4,117 1,267 47,660 70,491 

General Revenues 

Ad Valorem Taxes 173,511 169,282 - - 173,511 169382 

Sales and Use Taxes 148,007 139,638 - - 148,007 139,638 

State Revenue Sharing 2,840 2,839 - - 2,840 2,839 

Interest and Investment Earnings 1,631 870 2,929 2,042 4,560 - 2312 

Internal Service Funds Net Operating Gain - - • - - - -
Mfltmum Foundation Program (MFP) 184,607 24,694 - - 184,607 24,694 

Donation of Capital Assets 1 169 - - 1 169 

Gain on Disposal/Sale of Capital Assets - - - 32,112 - 32,112 

Contributions and Donations 158,319 - 10,522 777,248 168,841 

Judgments 31 • 26 - - 31 26 

Other General Revenues 17,132 34,467 - - 17,132 34,467 

Total General Revenues 1,305,008 530,304 2,928 44,676 1307,936 574,980 

Total Revenues f 1,348,552 i i 599,528 1 : 7,045 1 : 45,943 f 1355397 1 : 645,471 



Table 2 (Contmued) 
Condensed Comparative Statement of Activities (in Thousands) 

For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 
Govemmental Activities 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Fuactions/Program 
Instxuctioii 

Regular Education Programs f 9,178 : P 16,386 ; f - : P - 1 p 9,178 ; P 16386 
Special Education Programs 5,190 5,896 - - 5,190 5,896 
Other Educational Programs 11,947 13,295 - - 11,947 13,295 

Support Services 
Student Services 11,151 6,861 - - 11,151 6,861 
Instructional Staff Support 3,538 5,155 - - 3,538 5,155 
General Administration 26,240 22,165 - - 26,240 22,165 
School Administration 1,848 4,680 - - 1,848 4,680 
Business Services 2,535 2,117 - - 2,535 2,117 
Student Transportation Services 1,901 4,069 - - 1,901 4,069 
Central Services 3,014 4,070 - - 3,014 4,070 
Plant Services 20,665 10,633 - - 20,665 10,633 
Other 5,842 1,628 - - 5,842 1,628 
Food Services 5,017 4,291 - - 5,017 4391 

Transfer to RSD Schools - Local MFP - 234,848 - - - 234,848 
Transfer to Charter Schools - Local and State MF 433,915 34,195 - - 433,915 34,195 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 281 936 - - 281 936 
Transfer to Other TEA - - - 1,720 - 1,720 
Rental Properties - - 4,844 1,898 4,844 1,898 

Total Expenses 542,259 371,225 4,844 3,618 '' 547,103 374,843 

Changes in Net Position Before Transfers 806,293 228,303 2,202 42,324 808,494 270,627 

Transfers flBOOl _ . (1300) . 

Changes in Net Position 804,993 228,303 2,202 42,324 807,194 270,627 

Net Position - June 30,2018 713,822 492,108 140,774 98,450 854,596 590,558 

Prior Period Adjustment (6,589) . . (6,589) 

Net Position - June 30,2019 3 ? 1,518,815 1 ; 713,822 1 ; 142,976 1 : 140,774 f 1,661,790 1 : 854396 

Total revenues for all governmental and business-type activities for fbe fiscal years ended June 30, 
2019 and June 30, 2018, were |1.356 biOion and |645.5 million, respectivdy. The increase is due 
primarily to increases ia Contributions and Donations of Capital Assets, Other General Revenues, Ad 
Valorem Taxes, MFP funding and Sales and Use Taxes revenue. 

As reported in the Statement of Activities (Table 2) the total cost of all governmental and business-
type activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, were $547.1 million and 
$374.8 million, respectively. The overall increase is mainly due to an increase in Transfer to Charter 
Schools. The Transfer to ihe RSD Schools represents their share of local revenues for the fiscal year 
based on the ratio of students serviced by each entity. The Transfers to Charter Schools represent 
theit share of state MFP and local revenue share based on their student population. The School Board 
continues to focus on the provisions of instmctional and related support services aimed at all of its 
smdent population. 



Table 3, Cornparable Govecomental and Business-Type Activities, reflects the gross cost of program 
services and the net costs after taking into accoimt the program revenues for the governmental and 
business-type activities. General revenues (mcluding tax revenues), investment earnings and 
unrestricted State revenues are used to support the net remaining costs of the School Board activities. 

Tables 
Comparable Governmental and Business-Type Activities (in Thousands) 

Tune 30,2019 Tune 30,2018 
Gross Cost Net Cost Gross Cost Net Cost 

Description of Services of Services of Services of Services 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Regular Education Programs f 9,178 1 6,713 1 16,386 f 10,610 
Special Education Programs 5,190 2,361 5,896 1,213 
Other Education Programs 11,947 (623) 13,295 (15,276) 
Student Services 11,151 3,967 6,861 (3,114) 
Instructional Staff Support 3,538 1,089 5,155 (4,944) 
General Administration 26,240 20,713 22,165 19,854 
School Adrninistration 1,848 1,459 4,680 4,192 
Business Services 2,535 1,990 2,117 1,883 
Student Transportation Services 1,901 1,367 4,069 3,623 
Central Services 3,014 2,302 4,070 3,470 
Plant Services 20,665 16,311 10,633 9,525 
Other 5,842 5,842 1,628 1,628 
Food Services 5,017 1,030 4291 (642) 
Transfer to RSD Schools - Local MhP - - 234,848 234,847 
Transfer to Charter Schools - Local and State MFP 433,915 433,915 34,195 34,195 
Interest on Long-Term D ebt 281 281 936 936 Interest on Long-Term D ebt 

1 542259 $ 498,716 371,226 f 302,000 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
Rental Properties 1 4,844 $ 727 f 1,898 f 632 
Transfers to Other LEA - - 1,720 1,720 

f 4,844 1 727 $ 3,618 $ 2,352 

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 1 547,103 $ 499,443 $ 374,843 f 304,353 

Overall, the net cost of services in fiscal 2019 increased by $180 million, primarily due to the increase 
in MFP Transfers to Charter Schools offset by a reduction in MFP Transfers to BSD Schools. 
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Reportmg on the Individual Funds 

Fund Financial Analysis 

Oujc analysis of the School Board's major funds beg^s on page 18 of the basic financial statements. 
The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not 
the School Board as a -^vhole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond 
covenants. However, the School Board has established other funds for particular purposes (such as 
die Child Nutrition) to help it control, manage and reflect legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, 
grants and other funds (such as grants fcom the Department of Education). The School Board's funds 
(governmental, proprietary and fiduciary) use the following accounting approach: 

Governmental Funds - All of the School Board's services are reported in governmental funds. 
Governmental fund reporting focuses on funds flowing into and out of funds and the balances 
left at year-end that are available for spending. Said funds are reported using an accounting 
method caled modified accrual accounting. The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the School Board's operations and the services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the School Board's programs. The 
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds, through reconciliation to 
the basic financial statements, is described on page 22 of the financial statements. 

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds for the School Board use the accrual basis of accounting, 
the same as on the govemment-wide statements. The Intemal Service funds are used to 
account for the financing services provided by the School Board's departments (such as 
employee health, retiree health and workers' compensation). The Enterprise Fund is used to 
account for the rental receipts and operating costs of a five story building owned by the School 
Board as weE as a blended component unit that facilities new market tax credit financing for 
the construction and renovation of school buildings. The Statement of Net Position, 
Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows 
reports are presented on pages 23 through 26 of the basic financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds - The School Board is the tmstee, or fiduciary, for its student activities funds. 
All of the School Board's fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statements of 
Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 27 and 28 of the basic 
financial statements, respectively. We exclude these activities from the School Board's other 
financial statements because the assets cannot be utOhed by the School Board to finance its 
operations. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 
The School Board's capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, 
transportation equipment and construction-in-progress. A comparative analysis of capital assets as of 
June 30, 2019 and 2018, is as foEows: 
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Govemmeatal Activities Business-Type Activities Total 
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Land $ 
Biiildings and Improvement 
Furniture and Equipment 
Constmction in Progress 

: 26,606,757 
1,477,516,119 

24,813,475 
35,625,933 

$ 26,606,757 
634,553,253 
24,813,475 
10,897,767 

$ 1,440,992 1 
6,372,157 

1,440,992 
6,372,157 

1 28,047,749 
1,483,888,276 

24,813,475 
35,625,933 

$ 26,921,915 
466,057,693 
13,444,500 
15,293,369 

Acciunulated Depreciation 
1,564,562,284 

(95,171,523) 
696,871,252 
(87,092,608) 

7,813,149 
(1,036,573) 

7,813,149 
(792,755) 

1,572,375,433 
(96,208,096) 

521,717,477 
(82,213,792) 

Total 1 : 1,469,390,761 $432,483,291 : $ 6,776,576 $ 7,020,394 $1,476,167,337 $ 439,503,685 

Overall net capital assets increased ftom Jnne 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019, by $1,037 bmion. This 
increase reflects construction pursuant to the City of New Orleans' master plan to re-build schools 
and the transfer of buildings and furniture and equipment firom the RSD. Additional information on 
Capital Assets can be found in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 6, 
Capital Assets. 

On November 6,2008, the School Board approved a Master Plan for Orleans Parish school facilities. 
The Master Plan provides a blueprint for determining which school facilities wiU be rebuilt and which 
sites will be renovated. During October 2011, the School Board and RSD completed a revised Master 
Plan that incorporated cost savings made possible through the standardization of systems across all 
school faoQities that will be constructed or rehabilitated. A complete copy of the Master Plan is 
available on the School Board's web site: www.nolapubHcschools.com. 

Long-Term Debt 
Obligations include bonds and other long-term obligations (accrued vacation and sick leave pay). 
More detailed information about long-term liabiHties is presented in Note 9 in the notes to the 
accompanying financial statements and in eaflier sections of this Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A). 

Pursuant to the requirements of LSA-R.S. 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted firom incurring 
long-term bonded debt in excess of 35% of the assessed value of the taxable property (including 
homestead exempt and non-exempt property) within the Parish of Orleans. At June 30, 2018, the 
statutory debt limit for general obligation bonds is $949,778,595 with a net legal debt margin of 
$936,261,011. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 
The economic viabiHty of the School Board is related primarily to the Ad Valorem and Sales Tax 
Revenues and MFP. For fiscal year 2019, the School Board reflected increased Ad Valorem and Sales 
Tax Revenues. Ad Valorem Tax increases reflect higher assessments. The Sales Tax base growth is 
attributable to commercial development inclusive of the Louisiana State University's medical complex 
center near the central business district, new retail developments including a high-end retail outlet and 
increased population. 

12 
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Contactiog the School Board's Financial Management 
This fibaandal report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the School Board's finances and to provide accountability for the 
funds it receives. If you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial 
information, please c-sR Diane Allison at 504-304-4185, 2401 Westbend Parkway., Ste. 5055, New 
Orleans, LA 70114-4000. 
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GO^RmCENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2019 

Primary Govemment 
Govemmeutal Business-Type Component 

Activities Activities Total Units 
Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents ? J 14,021,600 $ 14,021,600 J 19,147,154 
Taxes Receivable 

Sales Taxes 23,823,738 - 23,823,738 -
Ad Valorem Taxes 7,733,057 - 2353,057 -

Due &om Other Governments 23,875,259 3,633 23,878,892 639,063 
Internal Balances 4,925,906 (4,925,906) - -
Pooled Cash and Investments 209,049,830 1,156,708 210306338 -
Prepaid Items 400,781 - 400,781 189,860 
Inventory 54,135 - 54,135 27,715 
Other Receivables 326,825 2,500 329325 3,018,800 
Other - - - 47,499 
Long-Term Accounts Receivable - RSD 6,165,708 - 6,165,708 -
Loan Receivable and Accrued Interest - 126,730,923 126,730,923 -
Restricted Investments 56,869,885 - 56,869,885 -
Capital Assets 

Land 26,606,757 1,440,992 28,047,749 -
Construction in Progress 35,625,932 - 35,625,932 -
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,407,158,071 5340,777 1,412,498,848 2,152,480 

Total Assets 1,797,135,884 143,771327 1,940,907,111 25,7,72,571 

Deferred Outflows of Resomrces 
Deferred Outflows on Pension Obligation 9,279,434 - 9379,434 -
Deferred Outflows on OPEB Pension Obligation 188332 - 188332 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,467,966 9,467,966 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 11,723,787 745,418 12,469,205 7,774,954 
PayxoE Withholdings 1,714,521 - 1,714,521 -
Salaries Payable 235,170 - 235,170 1395,748 
Other Payables 1,083,982 50,109 1,134,091 945,168 
Accrued Interest Payable 398,293 - 398393 -
Due to Edudary Funds 389,702 - 389,702 -
Dae to Other Governments 3,513,476 - 3,513,476 -
Equity in Pooled Cash 54,116,166 - 54,116,166 -
Unearned Revenues 1,055,147 - 1,055,147 85342 
Funds Held for Future Disttibution 9,800,762 - 9,800,762 -
Long-Term liabilities 

Bonds, Notes and Loans Due Within One Year 10,084,095 - 10,084,095 8376 
Bond^ Notes and Loans Due in More Than One Year 88,922,383 - 88,977383 266,960 
Compensated Absences Due in More Than One Year 1,743,903 - 1,743,903 -
OPEB Obligation Payable 6,278,644 - 6378,644 -
Net Pension Liability 52,275,067 - 52375,067 -
Claims Payable Due Within One Year - - - -
aaims Payable Due in More Than One Year 38,902,137 - 38,902,137 -

Total Iriabflities 282,237,235 795327 283,032,762 4,826,548 

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
June 30,2019 

Primary Government 
Governmental Bnsiness-Type 

Activities Activities 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred Inflows on Pension Obligation 
Deferred Inflows on OPEB Obligation 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

5,414,473 
137.683 

5.552.156 

Total 

5,414,473 
137,683 

5,552,156 

Component 
Units 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt Service 
Capital Projects 
Instructional Services 
Student Activities 

Unrestricted 

1,376,151,697 

82,179,228 
81,869,710 

(21,386,176) 

6,781,769 

136.193,931 

1,382,933,466 

82,179,228 
81,869,710 

114,807.755 
738,044 

19,657,979 

Total Net Position $ 1.518.814.459 £ 142.975.700 £ 1.661.790.159 £ 20.396.023 

The accompanyiag notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Activities 
Fiscal Yeat Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Revenues 
Net (Expense) Revenue 

Functions/Programs Expenses 
Charges for 

Services 
Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

Capital Grants 
and Contributions 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

Component 
Units 

Governmental Activities 
Instruction 

Regular Education Programs $ 9,177.615 $ $ 831.205 $ 1,633,645 $ (6,712,765) $ - $ (6,712,765) $ 
Special Education Programs 5,189,814 - 1,904,539 923,804 (2361,471) (2361,471) -
Other Education Programs 11,946,578 - 10,443,497 2,126,529 623,448 623,448 -

Support Services 
Student Services 11,150,900 - 5,198,982 1,984,896 (3,967,022) (3,967,022) . 
Instructional Staff Support 3,537,557 - 1,818,902 629,697 (1,088,958) (1,088,958) -
General Administration Services 26,240,119 - 856,745 4,670,826 (20,712,548) (20,712,548) -
School Administration Services 1,848,094 - 60341 328,967 (1,458,786) (1,458,78(^ -
Business Services 2,535,423 - 93,925 451314 (1,990,184) (1,990,184) _ 
Student Transportation Services 1,901365 - 195.615 338,431 (1.367319) (1367319) 
Central Services 3,014,076 - 175,156 536,515 (2,302,405) (2302,405) -
Plant Services 20,664.505 - 674,701 3,678,349 (16,311,455) (16311,455) -
Other 5,842,446 - - - (5,842,446) (5.842,446) -

Food Services 5,016,822 3,576,237 410,975 - (1,029,610) (1,029,610) 
Transfer to Chatter Schools 433,914.540 - - - (433,914,540) (433,914,540) 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 280.629 - - _ (280.629) (280.629) 

Total Governmental Activities 542360383 3.576337 22,664,583 17302.973 (498,716390) (498.716.590) 

Business-Type Activities 
Rental Properties 
Transfer to Other LEA 

Total Business-Type Activities 

Total Primary Goverrunent 

Component Units 

Ben Franklin Elementary 
Bethune Elementary 
Elan Academy 
Foundation Prep 
Edward Hynes 
Homer A. Plessy 
Rooted Scliool 
Warren Easton 

Total Component Units 

4,844,528 4,117,240 (727,288) 

4.844,528 

547.104.911 

8,755,017 
6,849,567 
1,831,339 
2,214,342 
8,073,055 
4,158,001 
2,057,161 

13.229.683 

47,168.165 

4.117.240 

7.693,477 22.664,583 

(727.288) 

17302.973 (498.716.590) (727.288) 

C727,288) 

(727.288) 

(499.443.878) 

(8,755,017) 
(6,849,567) 
(1,831,339) 
(2,214342) 
(8,073,055) 
(4,158,001) 
(2,057,161) 

(13329.683) 

(47.168.165) 

The accompanying notes ate an integtal part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Activities (Continued) 
Fiscal Yeat Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Revenues 
Net (Expense) Revenue 

and Changes in Net Position 

Functions/Programs Expenses 
Net Expenses from Previous Page 
General Revenues 

Taxes 
Ad Valorem. (Property) Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 
State Revenue Sharing 

Iviinimum Foundation Program (MFP) 
Minimum Foundation Program and Local Share 
Orleans Parish School Board, State and Otiter Grants and Contracts 
Interest and Investment Earnings 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 
Internal Service Funds Net Operating Loss 
Contributions and Donations 
Judgments 
Proceeds from Insurance Settlement 
Mscellaneous 

Transfers 

Total General Revenues, Transfers and Special Items 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - June 30,2018 

Prior Period Adjustment - Other PostempIoymentBenefit Obligation 

Net Position - June 30,2018 - Restated 

Net Position - June 30,2019 

Charges for 
Services 

Primary Government 
Operating Grante 
and Contributions 

Capital Grants 
and Contributions 

Governmental Business-Type Component 
Activities Activities Total Units 

(498,716,590) (727,288) (499,443,878) (47,168,165) 

173^10,890 . 173,510.890 
148,006,505 - 148,006,505 -

2,839,631 - 2,839,631 
184,606,792 - 184,606,792 -

- - 37,129,771 
- - - 6,606,494 

1.631395 2328,894 4,560389 156,292 

777348,187 : 777348.187 
-

31,018 - 31,018 -
1,431 - 1,431 -

17.132380 - 17,132380 3.071384 
(1300.000) _ (1300,000) _ 

1303,708,129 2328.894 1306,637.023 46,963,841 

804,991,539 2301,606 807,193,145 (204324) 

713,822,920 140,774,094 854,597,014 20.600347 

713.822.920 140,774,094 854,597,014 20,600347 

$ 1,518.814.459 $ 142,975.700 $ 1,661,790,159 $ 20,396,023 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2019 

General Hurricane Katrina Master Facilitiefi Federal Other 
General Pass-Through Obligation QSCB Restoration Projects Plan Preservation Grant Governmental 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total 
Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents S $ ? $ $ S £ $ $ ? - ; 
Taxes Receivable 

Sales Taxes - 23,823,738 - - - - - - - - 23,823,738 
Ad Valorem Taxes - - 2,253,057 - - - - - - . - 2,253,057 

Due from Other Funds 5,565,180 - - - - - 2,014,162 - - 7,579,342 
Due from Otliec Governments 4,608,874 3,677,438 - - - - - 400.165 11,325^49 3,863,433 23,875,259 
Equity in Pooled Cash 54,652,777 - 12,505,490 12,803,853 15,947,750 35.953,767 - 63,232,069 195,053 10,099,650 205,390,409 
Prepaid Items and Otlier Assets - - - - - 51,(WO - - - - 51,000 
Inventory - - - - - - - - - 54,135 54,135 
Other Receivables - - - - - - - - - - -
Restricted Investments - - - 56,869.885 - - _ _ 56.869,885 

Total Assets $ 64.826.831 S 29.754.233 S 12.505.490 S 69.673.738 S 15,947.750 £ 36.004.767 S 2.014.162 S 63.632.234 % 11,520.402 $ 14.017.218 : £ 319.896,825 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 2,604,441 1,071,204 - - 3,091,485 1,305,737 - 1,540,128 579A77 927,832 11,120,204 
Payroll Withlioldings 1,714,521 - - - - - - - - - 1,714,521 
Salaries Payable 235,170 - - - - - - - - - 235,170 
Due to Other Funds - - - - - 1,690,936 - - 962,500 2,653,436 
Due to Fiduciary Funds 389,700 - - - - - - - - 389,700 
Due to Otlier Governments 2,307.552 814,833 - - - - 362.882 - 28,209 - 3,513,476 
Equity in Pooled Cash - 26,718,469 - •- - 17,079,522 - 9,536,375 781,800 54,116,166 
Unearned Revenues - - - - - - - - - 90,704 90,704 
Funds Held for Future Distribution - 1,149.727 - - - 8,651.035 - . - - 9,800.762 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances (Deficit) 
Nonspendabie: 
Inventory 
Restricted for; 
Debt Service 
Grant Programs 

. Capital Projects 
Committed for: 
Capital Projects 
Emergencies 
District-Operated Schools 

Assigned to: 
Special Programs 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 

7.2S1Aft4 29.7S4.233 9.95(>.772 19.133.341) 1.540.12?) 10.143.961 2.7()2.33() ft^-434.139 

12,505,490 69,673,738 
1,376,441 

12,856,265 62,092,106 

54,358,265 
3,217,182 

26,047,995 

54,135 

6,921,339 

4,278,908 

54,135 

82,179,228 
1,376,441 

81,869,710 

26,047,995 
54,358,265 
3,217,182 

4,278,908 

57375.447 12.505,490 69.673,738 12,856265 26,047.995 a7.119.178) 62,092.106 U76.441 11254382 236262,686 

$ 64,826.831 $ 29,754,233 $ 12.505,490 S 69,673,738 $ 15,947,750 $ 36.004,767 $ 2,014,162 $ 63,632,234 $ 11320.402 $ 14,017218 S 319,896.825 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORJLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2019 

Total Fund Balances at June 30,2019 - Governmental Funds 

Cost of Capital Assets at June 30,2019 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation as of June 30,2019 

Buildings 
Movable Property 

Accounts Receivable - RSD 

Consolidation of Internal Service Funds 

Deferred Outflows on Pension Obligation 
Deferred Inflows on Pension Obligation 

Deferred Inflows on OPEB Obligation 

Short-Term Interest Payable 

Long-Term liabiEties at June 30, 2019 
Bonds Payable 
Bond Premium 
Claims Payable 
OPEB Obligation Payable 
Pension Obligation Payable 
Compensated Absences Payable 

Total Net Position at June 30, 2019 - Governmental Activities 

I 236,262,686 

1,564,562,284 

(82,867,222) 
(12,304,301) 1,469,390,761 

9,279,434 
(5,414,473) 

(97,995,000) 
(1,011,478) 

(38,902,137) 
(6,278,644) 

(52,275,067) 
(1,743,903) 

6,165,708 

1,684,019 

3,864,961 

(137,683) 

(209,765) 

(198,206,229) 

$ 1,518,814,459 

The accompanyiag notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Revenues 
Local Soutces 

Ad Valocem Taxes 
Sales and Use Tax 
Earnings on Investments 
Food Services 
Donations 
Other 

State and Federal Sources 
Minimum Foundation Program 
State Revenue Shadng 
Other 
Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

EjqjondUures 
Current 

InstructiDn 
Regular Programs 
Special Programs 
Otiier Programs 

Support 
Student Services 
Instructional Staff Support 
General Administration 
School Administration 
Business Services 
StudentTranspoctation Services 

Central Services 

Plant Services 
Food Services 

Capital Outlay 
Otliec 

Debt Service 
Principal Retirement 
Interest and Bank Chains 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expendit^ires 

General Hurricane Katrina Capital Master FnciUties Federal Other 

General Pass-Through Obligation QSCB Restoration Projects Plan Preservation Grant Governmental 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total 

4,250,061 150,445,393 8,627,859 10,187,576 - $ 173,510,889 

3.295.221 121,573,100 - 11,722,888 - 11.415,296 148,006,505 

804.262 - 792,098 - 35,036 - - 1,631,396 

. - 3,576,237 3,576,237 

53,984 . . - . 125,000 1,106,960 6,348,051 7,633,995 

13,389,140 - - 9,500 - 2,095,867 - 1,637,773 17,132,280 

5.988,787 178,576,160 . . . . - 41.845 184,606,792 

2,839,631 - - ' - - - - - 2,839,631 

2,292,845 - - - - - - - 461,778 419,173 3,173,796 

99,241 _ 15,782,929 500,000 - 12,264,009 513,583 29,159,762 

33,013,172 450,594,653 8.627,859 12,514,986 15,782,929 509,500 35,036 23,823.739 13,832,747 12,536,662 571.271,283 

6,377,817 2,022 319,330 115,269 6,814.438 

2,811,115 . - - - 1.042,355 3,853.470 

2,409,460 - - - - - - 6,039,601 421,350 8,870,411 

5,374,977 . , 2,904,567 72 8,279.616 

1,496,559 - - - 107.297 1,023,317 (51^ ^626,659 

6,487,469 11,270,955 348,185 191,899 . - 597,493 587,486 19,483,457 

1,372.223 - - 1,372,223 

1,875,874 - - - 6,694 - 1,882,568 

1,331,478 - - • - - 80,223 - 1,411,701 

2.191,866 - - - 46,105 - 2,237,971 

10,322,270 - 60,058 - 4,532,885 428,315 15.343,528 10,322,270 
. - - - 5,016,822 5,016,822 

. - 15,997,688 13,303,458 - 456,620 - 346,130 30,103,896 

4,320,180 - - - - 1,522,266 - - 5,842,446 

. 11,420,000 107,831 . . - 11,527,831 

, 1,196,600 114,788 - - 1,311,388 

46,371,288 11,270,955 12,964,785 414,518 15,999,710 13,363,486 7,216,561 11.462,192 6,914,930 125.978,425 

(13.358,116) 439,323,698 (4,336,926) 12,100,468 (216,781) (12.853,986) 35,036 16,607,178 2,370,555 5,621,732 445,292,858 

The accompanying notes are an integral pact of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances (Continued) 
Governmental Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

General 
Fund 

Pass-Through 
Fund 

General 
Obligadon 
Bond Fund 

QSCB 
Fund 

Hurricane Katrina 
Restoration 

Fund 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

Master 
Plan 
Fund 

Facilities 
Preservation 

Fund 

Federal 
Grant 
Fund 

Other 
Goverrunental 

Funds 
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds ftom Insurance Settlements 
Judgments 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Transfers Out - Charter Schools 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, June 30,2018 

Fund Balances, June 30,2019 

Total 

1,431 1,431 
31,018 - - - - - - - - 31,018 

8,892,739 - _ - - - - - - 27,491 8,920230 
(1,300,000) - - - - (2,171,9155 - (556,07(9 (885,127) (5307,115) (10220230) 

312,831 (439323.698) - - - . _ _ _ (439,010,867) 

7,938,019 (439,323,698) (2,171,915!) (556.076) (885.127) (5.279,624) (440278.418) 

(5,420,097) - (4,336,92(9 12,100,468 (216,781) (15,025,898) 35,036 16,051,102 1,485,428 342,108 5,014,440 

62,995,544 _ 16.842.416 57,573,270 13,073.046 41.073.893 (17.154,214) 46,041.004 (108.987) 10.912275 231248247 

$ 57,575.447 S £ - $ 1Z505.490 ! £ 69.673.738 $ 12,856.265 $ 26.047.995 ! £ (17.119.178) $ 62.092.106 S 1.376.441 J J 11,254383 g 236262.687 

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA ^ 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
to the Statement of Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Excess of Expenditures and Other Uses Over Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources - Total Governmental Funds 

Capital Assets 
Capital Outlay and Other Expenditures Capitalized 
Assets Returned from the RSD 
Depreciation Expense for Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Change in Net Assets of Internal Service Funds 

Reduction in Due from the RSD due to Assets Returned 

GASB 68 requires a prescribed method of pension expense recognition 
•within the School System's govemment--wide financial statements. 

GASB 75 requires a prescribed method of other postemployment benefits expense 
recognition -within the School System's govemment--wide financial statements. 

$ 5,014,440 

117,305,774 
750,385,258 
(-8,078,915) 859,612,117 

(85,459,059) 

5,200,540 

(45,267) 

Long-Term Debt 
Bond Premium, Net 
Principal Portion of Debt Service and Capital Lease Payments 
Decrease in Accrued Interest 
Increase in Estimate of Long-Term Claims Payable 
Excess of Compensated Absences Earned Over Amounts Used 

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities 

844,095 
11,420,000 

186,664 
6,497,449 
1,720,560 20,668,768 

804,991,539 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Stetement of Net Position 

. Proptietaiy Funds 
June 30, 2019 

Business-Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

GoTemmental 
Activities 

Timbeis 
Orieans Schools 

Facility Foundation Totals 
Internal 
Service 

Assets 
Coxtent 

Casi. and Cash. E<pivaleaits | 
Eqcdiy in Pooled Cash 
Odier Receivables . 
Due feom Other Govetmnents 
Loan Receivable and Acoaed inten 
Prepaid Items and Other Assets 

1,156,708 
2,500 
3,633 

$ 14,021,600 f 

1,750,602 

14,021,600 
1,156,708 

2,500 
3,633 

1,750,602 

$ 
3,659,421 

326,825 

349,781 

jNcmcnrrent 
Loan Receivable 
Capital Assets 

Land 
Net Lrvesttnentin Capital Assets 

1,440,992 
5,340,777 

, 124,980,321 124,980,321 

1,440,992 
5,340,777 

-

Total Assets 7,944,610 140,752,523 148,697,133 4,336,027 

liabifities and Net Position 
liabilities 

Caxrent 
AccormtR Payable 
Deposit Payable 
Dneto Other Ftinds 
Equity in Pooled Cash 

653,284 
50,109 

^,135 

4,925,906 

745,419 
50,109 

4,925,906 

603,582 

Noncurcent 
Ckims Payable 
tlaeamed Revenue 

- - - 1,083,982 
964,443 

Total liabilities 703,393 5,018,041 5,721,433 2,652,007 

Net Position 
Unrestricted 7,241,217 135,734,482 142,975,699 1,684,019 

Total Net Position $ 7,241gl7 $ 135,734,482 $ • 142,975,699 : 1 1,684,019 

The accompanymg notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOLFISIANA 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position 
Propiietaiy Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Bnsiness-Type Activities GovearoieiLtal 

Enterprise Frmds Activities 

Timbers 

Orleans Schoofe 
Facility Eo-nndation Totals 

Tn-femnT 

Service 
Operatcog Revenues 

Employer Contdhutions 

Retiree Concritbiitions 

Employee Contributions 

Workers Compensation Reimbursement 
Rental Income 
Otiier Msceliaaeons 

? 

1^,086 
5,504 

$ - f 

2,889,650 

$ 

1,222,086 
2,895,154 

4,884,183 

808,443 
13,467 

406,093 

Total Operating Revenues 1,227,590 2,889,650 4,117g40 6,112,186 

Operating Expenses 
Business Services 
Central Services 
Plant Services 

Student Transportation Services 
General Adrninistrative 

Capital Ouflay 

Other Expenses 

121g09 

1,737,346 

10,769 

32,154 6,500 
2,935,850 

121,909 

1,737,346 

10,769 

38,654 
2,935,850 

5,557,633 

554,553 

Total Operating Eqienses 1,902,178 2,942,350 4,844,529 6,112,186 

Operating Loss r674,589) (52,700) (727,289) 

Nonoperatmg Revenues 
Interest Income 
Contributions and Donations 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 
Transfers In 
Txausfers Out 
Transfers Out - Other LEA-

-

2,928,894 2,928,894 

-

Total Nonoperatmg Revenues 2,928,894 2,928,894 

Change in Net Position (674,589) 2,876,194 2,201,605 -

Net Position - Beginning 7,915,806 132,858,288 140,774,094 1,684,019 

Net Position - Ending | f 7,241,217 $ 135,734.482 $ 142,975,699 f 1,684,019 

The accompanying notes ate an integtalpatt of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended Jtme 30,2019 

Bnsiness-TvpeAcfivities Governmental 

Emteqrdse Funds Acdvi6.es 

Orleans Schools Xntemal 

Tjrobets FadEty Fonndadon Totals Service 

Cash Hows firoin Operaling Activities 

Cash Piemmms Recerrcd $ $ •- 1 - $ 6,11^186 

Secejits fbom. CtisiDiners 1,775,105 1^889,650 4,664,755 -
Payments for Claims and Benefits - - -
Payments tio SuppEers (1,328,81^ (2,942,35(5 (4,271,16^ -
Payments to Einplt^ees and fisrEmployee Benefits 1446,291) - (446,^1) -

Net Cash. TJscd in Operating 

Activities - (52,70(5 (52,700) -

Cash Hows jEro m Capital and Related 

Eboancing Activities 

Cbntiibutions and Donations - - - -
Proceeds firom Sale of Capital Assets - - -
Pnrrhase of Coital Assets - - -

Net Cash Provided by Chpital and 
Related Ehancing Activities - - -

Cash Hows foom Investing Activities 

Gashlifice^ts fiom llE'RektedTaxRevenne - 2,889,650 2,889,650 -
Cash Receipts fiom loan Collections - 2,606,130 ^606,130 -
Gash Payments for Loans to Others - - -
Ihterestlhcome - 26>28,894 25128,894 

Net Cash Provided by Investing 

Activities - 8.424,674 8,424,674 -

Net Increase in Cash - . 8,371,974 8,371,974 -

CashatBeginning ofYear 5,649,626 5,649,626 -

Cash at End of Year $ 1 14,021,600 $ 14,021/500 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these ffnandal statements. 
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ORJLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Proprietary Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

B.ecoiuflialioii of Operating Loss to Net Cadt 
Used in Operating Actmties 

OpeiataigLoss 
Adjiigtmenis to Reconcile OpeialingItoss to Net 
Cash Used in. OpecalingAclirities: 

UegpiBciatioH 
Charges in: 

Equity in Pooled Cash 
Other Receirables 
Prqpaid Items and Other Assets 
Accounts Payable 
Unearned Revenue 
D^osits Payable 
Claims Payable 

Net Cash Used in Operating Actmties 

(67-^58^ $ 

121^9 

208,861 
5,164 

337,021 

1,633 

(52,700) (727,28^ 

121,909 

208,861 
5,164 

337,021 

1,633 

205,232 

220,430 

(425,662) 

(52,700) _i_ (52.700) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Fimds 
June 30,2019 

Trust Agency 
Funds Funds 

Assets 
Cash $ $ 53,953 
Investments 292,821 -

Due firom Other Fmds 389,700 -

Equity in Pooled Cash 254,164 913 

Total Assets 936,686 54,866 

liabilities 
Accounts Payable 71,584 -
Due to Student Groups - 54,866 

T otal liabiEties 71,584 54,866 

Net Position 
Held in Trust for Various Purposes $ 865,102 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Trust 
Funds 

Additions 
Interest and Investment Gain 

T otal Additions 

Deductions 
Instruction 

Special Programs 
Support 

Business Services 

T otal Deductions 

Other Financing Sources and Uses 
Transfers In 

T otal Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

9,566 

9,566 

1,304,225 

(L500) 

1,302,725 

1,300,000 

1300,000 

6,841 

858361 

f 865,102 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note L General Infoimatton 
The Odeans Padsh School Board (School Board) is a corporate body created tinder Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 17:51 and 17:121. A board consisting of seven membets (the Board) elected 
from legally established districts is charged -with the management and operation of the school 
system. 

As of the report date, the School Board has 440 fuE-lime or part-time employees ofvrMch 245 
are involved in the instmctional process. 

In November2005, Louisiana House B2L121 (Act 35) tcansfetred control of each School Board 
school deemed to be in academic crisis, as determined by standardized student testing results, 
resulting in approximately 83% (106 schools) of the School Board's former schools being 
transferred to the Louisiana State Department of Education's Recovery School District (RSD). 
Hie RSD is responsible for providing aH educational services to students attending the School 
Board transferred schools. Act 35 provided for the transfer of operational and managerial 
control of the transferred schools for a period of not less than five years. Further, Act 35 
provides the RSD -with authorization to manage and retain fimding under the IVGnimum 
Foundation Program corresponding to the students attending the transferred schools. While 
the School Board retains ownership of each School Board transferred school, all rights and 
responsibilities associated with property ownership were transferred to die RSD. In May 2016, 
Louisiana Senate Bill 432 (Act 91) authorized the return of certain schools and fecilities from 
the RSD to School Board to be completed no later than July 1, 2018. 

As of the report date, the School Board is not operating any direct-run schools. The School 
Board also has eight charter schools opened and operating that have approximately 3,896 
students. 

The regular school term begins in mid-August and runs through late May. 

Note 2. Smnmaiy of Significant Accounting Policies 
The School Board complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAP). The School Board's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 

This financial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, Baszc 
BimndalStatmmts - aniMmagsmmfsDiscussion andAna^ds -forStateaniljicalGovsmmircts. The 
following is a summary of the School Board's significant accounting policies: 

Financial Reporting Entity 
The accompanying financial statements present the School Board and its component units, as 
deterrnined under the guidelines established by GASB Statement No. 61, "She Binandal Bsporting 

'End^: Omrdhm an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14- and No. 34. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial StatemmlB 

Note 2. Snmmary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continaec^ 

Financial Repoitiag Entily (Continuei^ 
GASB has set forth criteria to be coosidered in detecmitiing-wben a potential component unit 
should be induded in the financial statements of a primaty governments These criteria indude: 

1. The primary govemmeat is finandally accountd)le if it appoints a roling majority of the 
organizations governing, and 

a It is able to impose its will on that organization. 
b. There is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to 

or impose specific finandal burdens on the primaty government 

2. The primary government is finandally accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent 
on and there is a potential for tiae organization to provide specific finandal benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government regardless of whether the 
or^nization has (a) a separately dected governing board, (b) a govemrag board appointed 
by a bi^er level of government or (c) a jointly appomted board. 

3. The primary govemmait may determine, through exerdse of management's judgment;, 
that an organization that does not meet the specific finandal accountabitity criteria should 
be induded as a componentunitto preventthe reportingenrit/s finandal statements firom 
being misleading. Ibis determination should be based on the nature and significance of 
the organization's relationship with the primary government: 

Under provisions of this Statement; the School Board is considered z.pima^ govemmmt, since it 
is a special purpose government that has a separately dected governing body, is legally separate, 
and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. The School Board has seven 
discretdy presented component units, defined by GASB Statement No. 61 as other legally 
separate organizations for which the School Board is financially accountable. Copies of 
submitted audited financial statements are available on the le^lative auditof s web site at 
wwwJla.state.laus. The School Board also has one component unit blended with the primary 
government due to the doseness of their relationship with the primary government. This 
component unit is the Orieans Schools Facility Foundation (OSFI^, a non-profit organization, 
reported as an enterprise fond. Separate financial statements for OSFF are not issued. 

There are no other primary governments with which the School Board has a significant 
rdationship. Certain units of local government over which the School Board exercises no 
authority, such as the Qty-Parish government and other independently dected ofiEdals, are 
exduded firom the accompanying finandal statements. These units of government are 
considered separate firom those of the School Board. The School Board is not a component 
unit of any other entity. 
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ORUEANS PABISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statemeals 

Note 2. 
Stumnary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Contmned) 

Financial Rqpoxting Entily (Continued) 
Discretely presented component tmits •wMch require inclusion in -die basic financkl statements 
are as follows; 

* Submitted June 30,2019 audited finan dal. statements. 

Componeut Units Nnmba: of Students 
Charter Schools 
* Benjamin Franklin Hementary Math and Science 781 
* Edward Hynes Charter School 717 
* Elan Academy Charter School 125 
* Foundation Preparatory 177 
* Homer A. Plessy Community Sdiool 358 
* Mary McLeod Bethune Elementary School 650 
* Rooted School ' 97 
* Warren Easton Senior EEgh Sdiool 991 

T otal Charter Student EnroDmeat 3,896 

Primary GoYemmeut Number of Students 
Orleans Parish School Board (OPSB) Schools 

Schools: 
Cypress Academy 184 
Hamqr Elementaiy School 228 
McDonogh No. 35 High School 444 

Progcams: 
AltematiTe Learning' and Youth Study Center • 105 

Total OPSB Student Enrollment 961 

4,857 
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ORUSANS PARISH SCHOOL BOAED 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to FinancM Statemeats 

Note 2. Summaiy of Sigoificajat Accoimtiiig PoHci^ (Contiaued) 

Beisis of PresenMtion 
The School Board's 'Badc'BinaTmalStatements consist of Ae gOTemment-^wide statements on all 
of the non-fiduciaiy acti-vities and component tmits that are fidudarj in nature and the fund 
financial statements ^dividual m^or funds and combined non-major funds). Separate 
financial statements are provided for gov-emmental funds and proprietary funds. The 
statements are prepared in accordance -with accounting prrndples generally accepted in the 
United States of America, as applied to govemmenial units. 

Govetament-Wide Fmaadal Sta.tem.ea.ts 
The Govemment-'Wide Financial Statements (GWF^ -were prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus ̂ d the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liabiEty has been incurred, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all digibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been mel^ 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities were prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The Statement of 
Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offeet 
by program revenues. Program revenues include 1) charges for services provided, 2) operating 
grants and contributions, and 3) capitel grants and contributions; program revenues reduce the 
cost ofthe function to be financed from the School Board's general revenues. Operating grants 
and contributions consist of the many educational grants received firom the federal and state 
government 

As a general rule, the eiSect of interfund activity has been removed firom these statements. 
Exceptions to the general rule are advances between fiduciary fiinds and the various fimctions 
of the School Board. The government-wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustainabiEty 
of the School Board as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulfbg Eom 
the activities of the fiscal period. 

The internal service funds provide services to the governmental fiinds. Accordingly, the 
internal service fimds activities were rolled up into the governmental activilies in the GWFS. 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 34, the internal activities have been eEininated in order to 
avoid the "gtossing-up" effect of a strai^t inclusion. 

The School Board reports all direct expenses by fancttoa in the Statement of Activities. Direct 
expenses are those that are deafly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other 
functions are not allocated to those functions but are reported sepatatdy in the Statement of 
Activities. Depredation expense, wMch can be specifically identified by function, is induded 
in the direct expenses of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an 
indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. 
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OKLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOAUD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. 
Smnmary of Significant Acconntitig Policies (Continued) 

Fimd Fmandtal Statemenls (Coxttiimei^ 

Ftmd Fmandal Statements 
Hie Fund Financial Statements (FFS) ate very similar to the tradilional gOTremment fund 
statements as presented by goremments prior to the issuance of GASB Statement No. 34. 
Enphasis is on the major funds in either the goTemmental or business-type categories. Non-
major jSmds (by category or fund type) are summarized into a single column. 

The daily accounts and operations of the School Board are organized on the basis of funds, 
each of -which is considered a sepaiate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are 
accounted fofwith a separate set of seif-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabiEties, 
equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. GoTemment resources are 
allocated to and accounted for in individud funds based upon the puipose for which they are 
to be spent and the means by which spending acti-viiies are controlled. The funds of the School 
Board are classified into three broad categories: Governmental, Proprietary and Fiduciary. 3h 
turn, each category is divided into separate fund types. 

GovettrmeotalFund Types 
' GeneralFund - The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the School Board. It is used 

to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Spedd 'Rtpenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific purposes. These fiinds account for the revenues and expenditures related to federal, 
state and local g?:ant and entiflement programs for various educational objectives and child 
nutritioh services. 

Debt Semce Funds - Debt Service Funds, established to meet requirements of bond ordinances 
and other long-tjerm borrowing, are used to account for the accumulation of resources foi^ and 
the pa3?ment oi^ general long-term debtprindpal, interest and related costs and some capitalized 
leases. A separate Debt Service Fund is maintained for each similar bond issue type (e.g.. 
General Obligation Bonds, Refunding Bonds) or each refunding, unique issue, or long-term 
loan currendy outstanding. 

Cc^ital Fryects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are -used to account for the receipt and 
disbursement of the proceeds of general bond issues and other special or designated revenues 
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, renovations and major repairs 
(other than General Fund capital outlays, and Special Revenue Fund capital outlays). 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Stmunary of Significant Accountiiig PoHcies (Contimied) 

PjtoptiemjyFtmd Types 
Thepropnetaiy fiind distinguislies between operatiDgandnonopetatmgrevenues and expenses. 
OpetatjjDg reTermes consist ptitnatily of rental income related to the School Board's 
administrative office building and income related to the Orleans Schools Facility Foundation 
(OSFF). Operating expetises result from the costs of rnaintaining the adminislrative building 
including depreciation on capital assets and direct costs associated with the OSFF. All revenues 
and expenses not meeting the above definitions are rqjorted as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

'Bnferpris^ FuTii - Timbers - An enterprise ifiind es-^bfished to account for the rental receipts and 
operating costs of three building located in New Orleans, lA. The Timbers Einterprise Fund 
is reported as a ma|or fund. 

'Ent&pnse'Bund - Orieans SAoobFadli^Fomda^on - An enterprise fimd established to accountfor 
the activify of the Orleans Schools Facilities Foundation (OSFF), a public benefit corporation 
of the School Board organized under the provisions of the Public School Facilities Financing 
Act con-fained in LA. RS. 17:100.10. 

The purpose of OSFF is to assist in facilitating tax credit financing for the .constmction and 
renovation school building as, described in Note 21. The Orleans Schools Facility Foundation 
Enterprise Fund is reported as a major fund. 

Internal SeruceFunds - Interaal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of services 
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental 
unit; or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbucsemeat basis. The Employee Health 
insurance Fund, Retiree Health Insurance Fund, Workers' Compensation Insurance Fund and 
E-Eate Fund are reported as Interaal Service Funds. 

FidndatyFimd Types 
Agen^ Funds - Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the School Board as an 
agent for individuals, private organizations or other governmental units and/or other funds. 
The School Board has one agency fund which is used to account for those monies collected by 
pupils and school personnel for school and school-related purposes. 

Trust Funds - Trust Funds are created to account for cash, investments and other resources 
contributed by various individuals to the School Board to be expended for purposes for which 
the trusts were esteblished. 

In accordance with GASB, the Fiduciary Funds information is pres ented separately within this 
report and is not included in the Government-Wide Financial Statements or Fund Financial 
Statements. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Snmmaiy of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continaed.) 
The School Board reports die fbllo-wiDg major governmental funds: 

GmeralFund - The General Fund is the primaty operating fund of the School Board. It is used 
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in anothier fund. 

Vass-Throi^h Fund - Special revenue fiind established to account for the collection of ad valorem 
taxes, sales taxes and certain state funding. Hiese revenues are th.en transferced to the 
appropriate funds or other entities. 

General Obliga&on BondFund-jyiot service fund established to account for the accumulation of 
resources for and payment oflong-term debt principal, interest and related costs on outstanding 
general obligation bonds issued by the School Board. Fund revenues include receipt of ad 
valorem taxes and interest earned on cash balances. Additionally, the School Board may 
transfer from the General Fund amounts to cover deficiencies, if any, or to provide additional 
reserves to service future obligations. 

Quailed School Construction Bond CB) Fund - Established to account for the accumulation of 
resources for and payment of lorg-term debt principal, interest and related costs on outsfandrtg 
bonds issued by the School Board. Fund revenues indude receipt of sales and use taxes, receipt 
of ad valorem taxes from constitutional miEa^ and interest earned on cash balances. Effective 
fiscal year 2014, sales and use tax revenues were transferred to fund debt service obligations 
that commenced in fiscal year 2015. Additionally, the School Board may transfer additional 
sales and use tax amounts to cover deficiencies, if any, or to provide additional reserves to 
service future obligations. 

Hurricane Fatnna Bestoradon Fund - Capital projects fimd established to account for receipts and 
espenditures for projects funded by FEMA grant monies for reimbursement of allowable 
expenditures. Fund expenditures are used for mold remediation inside flooded schools, repairs 
and major construction to hurricane damaged schools, school facilities and administrative 
Ecilities. 

Genital Frojects Fund - Capital projects fund established to account for the receipts and 
disbursements for projects funded ftom the sales of surplus properties and insurance proceeds. 
Fund expenditures are used for both new construction and the renovation of existing fedlities. 

Master Flan Fund - Capital projects fund established to account for the receipts and 
disbursements for the rebudding of schools funded by insurance proceeds. 

Facilities Freservation Fund - Capital projects fund established pursuant to Act 543. It is to provide 
the allocation and dedication of certain local tax revenues to the replacement^ repair and 
improvement of school facilities. 

Federal Grant Fund - Special revenue fund established to account for revenues fi-om federal 
sources which are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 
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NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Fitiaacial Statements 

Note 2. Stimmajy of Significant Accounting PoKcies (Continned) 

Basis of Acconnting/Measntement Focus 

Govejctmietit-Wide FitmidalStatements (GWFS) 
Hie GWFS ate ptepated using the economic lesoutces measutement focus and the acctual 
basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, liabilities, defatted outflo-ws of 
tesoutces and defected inflows of tesoutces tesulting feotn exchange ot exchange-Eke 
ttansacdons ate lecognized when the exchange occuts (tegatdless of when cash is teceived ot 
disbutsei^. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, EabiEties, defetred outflows of tesoutces 
and defetred inflows of tesoutces tesulting feotn non-exchange ttansactions are recognized in 
accordance with the teguiteruents of GARB Statement No. 33, Accounting andFinandal'E^orting 
forNon-exchange Transactions. 

Fund Financial Statements (FFS) 
Ihe accountiDg and financial reporting tteatment appEed to a fund is detettnined by its 
tneasurement focus. AR Govetninental Funds -ate accounted fot using a current financial 
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current 
EabiEties generally ate included on the balance sheet Operating statements of these funds 
present increases ^e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (le,, expenditures 
and other finandng uses) in net cuttent assets. 

The Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary Fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic 
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all EabiEties 
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet The Proprietary 
Fund type's operating statement presents increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., 
expenses) in net total assets. For the Enterprise Fund - Timbers, the principal operating 
revenues ate charges to tenants for rent; and operating expenses include costs to maintain and 
operate the building. For the Enterprise Fund - Orleans Schools FaciEty Foundation, there are 
no significant operating revenues or ecqjenses as the activity is principaEy coEection of payments 
related to the loan receivable. En the Intemal Service Funds, current premium and claims 
expenses or increases in claims estimates occuning in the current period are considered 
operating expenses. 

Contributions recced which are related to these operating expenses are considered operating 
revenues. Interest earned on bank accounts or monies received feom other funds which exceed 
their aRocated share of the current operating expenses of the Proprietary Fund are considered 
non-operating revenues or transfers in to the fund 

The Governmental Fund type is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The foRowing paragraphs describe the revenue recognition practices under that basis. 
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Notes to Fmancial Statements 

Note 2. SxjTnmaty of Sigmficant Accoraotiog Policies (Coattnaed) 

Revenues 
Go-vetnmeatal fond lev'mnes iesTiltmg firom exchaage transactioiis ate tecogoized in the fiscal 
yeat ia •wMch. the exchange takes place and meets the go-vemmeiit's availahility cdtetia 
(susceptible to acctoal). Available means that the tesoiccces vdll be collected vdthin the cuctent 
fiscal year o± ate e2pected to be coEected soon, enough theteaftet to be used to pay liabilities of 
the cuttent fiscal year. Chatges fot services, fines and forfeits, and most governmental 
miscellaneous revenues, including investment earning are recorded as earned since they ate 
measurable and available.- The School Board's definition of available means expected to be 
received within sixty days of the end of the fiscal year for property taxes and generally the next 
twdve months for other revenues. Revenues not considered available ate recorded as unearned 
revenues. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School Board receives value without directly giving 
value in return, include sales taxes, property taxes, special assessments, grants, entitlements, and 
donations. Property taxes are considered measurable in die calendar year of the tax levy if 
coEected soon enough to meet the avaEablEty critetia. Sales taxes are considered measurable 
when the underlying transaction occurs and meets the avaEabEity criteria. Anticipated refimds 
of such taxes are recorded as fund liabEities and reductions of revenue when they are 
measurable and vaEd Special assessments are recognized as revenues only .to the extent that 
individual installments are considered current assets in the governmental fimd types. Revenue 
fi:om grants, entidements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which aE eligibEity 
requirements have been satisfied. FligbEity requitements include timing requirements, which 
specify the year when the resources can be used 

Espendxtutes 
Expenditures are generaEy recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the 
related fimd liability is incurred Costs of accumulated unpaid vacation, sick leave and other 
employee benefit amounts are reported in the period due and payable rather than the period 
earned by employees, and general long-term obligations principal and interest payments are 
recognized only when due. 

The Proprietary Fund and Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting; 
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recoguized when incurred 

Budget and Budgetary Accounting 
The School Board foEows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
fi-na-nrifll statements: 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accoimting Policies (Continned) 

The Genetal Fund and the Special Revenue Hinds are the only hinds with legally required 
budgets. The General'Fund budget and the Special Revenue Funds' budgets are adopted on an 
annual basis. These budgets include proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Annually, the Superintendent submits to the School Board a proposed annual appropriated 
budget for the General Fund and Special Revenues Funds. Public hearings are advertised and 
conducted to obtain taxpayer comments and the proposed budgets are published. The budget 
is adopted by the School Board and, as required, is submitted no later than September 30®' to 
the State Department of Education for approval. The Superintendent is authorised to move 
budgeted items within the functional categories, the legal level of control, but may not increase 
the total amount authorized. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level 

Expenditures for Spedal Revenue Fund budgets, except for the Child Nutrition Program, may 
not exceed budgeted amounts by more than five percent unless a budget revision is approved 
by the State Department of Education. For the Child Nutrition Program, bucket amendments 
follow the same requirements as the General Fund. 

The Capital Projects Funds' budgets are adopted on a project basis, since such projects may be 
started and completed at any time during the year or may extend beyond one fiscal year. Capital 
Projects Funds are allocated by project using architectural and engineering estimates. All' 
projects remain programmed and fiinded until completed or until the School Board decides to 
eliminate the project Accordingly, budget and actual comparisons are not reported in the basic 
financial statements for those funds. 

Budgets are prepared on the mpdified accrual basis of accounting, consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fhe end of the fiscal 
year. Encumbered appropriations at year end that have been approved by tibie Board are 
generally expended during the next fiscal year's operations, assuming thatthe underiying liability 
is ultimately incurred. Budgeted amounts are as originafly adopted or as amended by the Board. 
Tegaliy, the Board must adopt a balanced budget; that is, total budgeted revenues and other 
financing sources mduding fimd balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and 
other financing uses. State statutes require the School Board to amend its budgets wheu 
revenues plus projected revenues within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted revenues 
by five percent or more and/or expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted 
expenditures by five percent or more. 

Encmnbrances 
Encumbrances are coronritments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services; they 
are reported as restricted, committed or assigned fund balance. 
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Notes to Fiaaacial Statements 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accoimti^ Policies (ContinTied) 

Casli, Casli Equivalents and Investments 
Casii and casL equivalents indnde interest-beating- demand deposits and shott-tetm 
investments as described below, witL a matority date witbin. three months of the date of 
acqoisifion. The School Board maintains an accounting record reflecting the equity or defidt 
of each partidpating fund's interest in a pooled opecatiog cash account. 

State statutes authorize the School Board to .invest in United States bonds, treasmy notes, or 
certtScates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks 
having ptindpal offices in Louisiana. The School Board's Cash Management and Investment 
Policy requites that cash balances of all fimds are combined and invested to the extent possible 
in ditecA obligations of the U.S. Government or its agendes, cettificates of deposit and other 
short-term obligations. Interest earned on these investments is distributed to the individual 
funds on the basis of invested balances of the partidpatrog fimds during the year. 

Investments for the School Board are reported at fait value. 

Accoumts Receivable 
Management has recorded a |230,353 allowance for Federal Grant Fund recdvables. 
Management considers all other receivables outstanding at June 30,2019, to be fallj collectible 
and as such, has no provision for uncollectible recdvables recorded related to these receivables. 

Inventoty - Government-Wide Level 
Inventory is stated at first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost and consists of food items held for 
consumption at the various schools. The cost of inventory items is recognized as an expense 
when used. 

Inventory - Fund Level 
Ihventoiy of the Child Nutrition Spedal Revenue Fund consists of food, lunchroom materials, 
and supplies purchased by the School Board and commodities gtanted by the United Slates 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) through the Louisiana Department of Agriculture and 
Forestry. Inventoiy items purchased are valued at FIFO cost Costs are recorded as 
expenditures at the time individual items are consumed (consumption method). Commodities 
are valued at the market value at the date of donation based on market values provided by the 
USDA. The amount of commodity inventory is indudedin unearned revenue until consumed 

Long-Term Accounts Receivable - RSD and Retnm of Capital Assets fcom theRSD 
As disdosedinNote 1, Act35 transferred 106 schools riomtheSchoolBoardto theRSD. For 
the schools transferred to the RSD, the School Board recognized a receivable for the net book 
value of the land, buildings and equipment for the schools transferred. 

For those schools that are returned to aud accepted by the School Board ftom the RSD, Long-
Term Accounts Receivable - RSD is reduced and capital assets are increased by the net book 
value of the land, buildings and equipment that were initially transferred to the RSD. 
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Notes to Finaacial Statements 

Note 2. Sxnnmaay of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned) 

Long-Tenn Accounte Receivable - RSD and Return of Capital Assets ftom tbe RSD 
(Continued) 

Management "will "then perfotm an assessment to determine whefber "die land, buildings and 
equipment (die fadlities) have incurred impaicmenp as "well as perform an assessment to 
determine whether any significant enhancements or improvements have been made to die 
feciEties. 

For fadlities deemed to be impaired, an inqjaionent charge is recorded to the GWFS. For 
fedlities which significant improvements or enhancements have been made, the value of the 
enhancements or improvements are recorded for the actual costs incurred for the new structure 

. or improvements, net of the amount of depredation calculated for the period firom when "die 
enhancements or improvements were initiaflyplacedin service by the RSD to the date in which 
the fadlities were returned to the School Board For those instances in which cost information 
is not available, a professional appraisal shall he obtained 

For fecilities transferred to the School Board, depredation resumes/initiates once the fedlities 
are placed into service by the School Board The remaining useful lives of fadlities transferred 
to the School Board are evaluated for reasonableness. D^redation on the fedhties is 
recognized on a straight-Ene basis over the estimated remaining "useful life. 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, sixty properties were transferred firom the RSD to the 
School Board. 

Capital Assets 
AE capital assets are capitalized at historical cos-q or estimated historical cost for assets where 
actual historical cost is not a"vailable. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their 
estimated hk market value at the date of donation. The School Board maintains threshold 
levels for capitalizing capital assets as follows: movable capital assets "with a cost of |5,000 or 
more per unit, all land and land improvements "wltfa a cost of $50,000 or more, and buildings 
and building improvements that extend the useful life of a building "with a cost of $50,000 or 
more. 

Capital assets are recorded in the GWFS, but are not reported in the FFS. AE capital assets are 
depreciated using the straight-Ene method over their estimated useful Eves. Since surplus assets 
are sold for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for pubEc school 
purposes by the School Board, no salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation 
purposes. Useful Eves are as foEows: firom 3 to 10 years for furniture and eqxEpment; 5 to 8 
years for transportation equipment; 5 to 20 years for eqxtipment; 25 years for building 
improvements, 10 to 20 years for improvements other than building, and 20 to 40 years for 
buEdittgs. 
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Notes to Fimacial Statenaeats 

Note 2. Satnmaiy of Signtficaat AccoxmtiDg PoEcies (CoatEraed) 

Receivables and Payables 
Ltaasactioiis between funds that ate reptesentative of lending/bottowing arrangements 
ontstandiDg at the end of the jBscal yeat ate tefetted to as eifhet "due to/Eona ofhec funds." 
Any residual balances outstanding between the govetniaeatel activities and business-type 
activities ate teportedin the GWFS as "intetnal balances." 

Net Position Classifications 
In the gowetTiTnent-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed 
in three components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists o£ capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, 
mortgages, notes, or other bortovticgs that ate attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. Defetted outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources that ate attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included in this component 
of net position. If there are significant unspentrekted debtproceeds or deferred inflows 
of resources attributable to the unspent amount should not be indudedin the calcuktion 
of net investment in capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred inflows 
of resources should be included in the same net position component (restricted or 
unrestrictec^ as the unspent amount. 

b. Restricted net position — This component consists of net position with constraints 
pkced on its use either by external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
kws or regnktions of other governments or by kw through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legisktion. 

c. Unrestricted net position—This component consists of all other net position that does 
not meet the definition of "restricted"' or "'net investment in capital assets." 

Fund Equity 
The School Board follows GASB Statement No. SA,'Pund'Balance'R^o-rtingandGovem7nental'Pund 
Tjpe DgfoWcar which provides more deafly defined fund balance categories to make the nature 
and extent of the constraints pkced on a government's fund balance more transparent. The 
following classifications descrbe the rdative strength of the spending constraints pkced on the 
purposes for which the resources can be used. 

Nonspsnddble — This component includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
• dther (a) not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 2. Snmmaty of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continaed) 

'B^siriaed— This component consists of amounts that iuave consttaints placed on th.em d.t3ie£ 
externally by tiiird-patties (cteditots, gcantots, contdbutois, or laws or regulations by other 
goveroments) or by law through constitational pro-visions or enabling legislation. 

Committed—Tins component consists of amounts that can only be used for specific pmposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School System's high.est level of 
dedsion-maldng autiiority which includes the resolutions of th.e Scliool System. Those 
committed amounts cannot he wed for any other puipose unless the School System 
removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed 
pre-viously to commit those amounts. 

.Ass^fied—This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the School System's 
intent to be used for specific prirposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent can 
be expressed by the governing body or an official or body which the governing body 
delegates the authority. 

Unassi^ned— amounts that are available for any p-mpose. 

The School Board establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fimd balance commitments by passage 
of a resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget A fund 
balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or 
corornitment of the fund. Assigned fund balance is established by the School Board through 
adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific puipose (such as the purchase 
of capital assets, construction, debt service or othec purposes). 

Interfund Transactioiis 
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fimd for expenditures initially made fi:om it 
that are propedy applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing 
fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fimd that is reitnbursed. All other interfund 
transactions are reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent transfers of 
equity ate reported as residual equity transfers. All interfund transfers are reported as operating 
transfers. 

Compensated Absences 
Under School Board policy, each employee is entitled to ten days of sich leave pet year. Sich 
leave may be accumulated -cdthout limit; however, employees or theit heirs are only reimbursed 
for accumulated sick leave rp to twenty-five days upon death or retirement at the employees' 
current rate of pay. The accrual computation for earned sick leave is calculated on a 25-day 
maximum per employee. Sick leave is not payable upon discharge or termination (non-
retitement). Upon retkement; accumulated sick leave in excess of reimhutsement may be used 
in the retirement benefit compntation as earned service. 
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Note 2. Stmunaty of Significant Accoxmting Policies (Continne(^ 

Compensated AJbsences (Continued) 
Ftdl-time employees •wiio -wotk yeat-jeoTiad ace granted -vacation in varying amonnts 
of 22 days per year) as establislied by School Board policy. Such leave is credited on a pro ra-ta 
basis at the end of each payroll reporting period and accnmolates. All leave earned ditri-ng any 
fiscal year most be taken -within the following six-month, period or it is forfetted Any -unused 
leave may be paid to the employee at termination. 

Sabbatical leave may be granted for medical or professional purposes. Aiy employee -with a 
teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one semester of 
sabbatical leave after three years of continuous services, or two semesters of sabbatical leave 
after six or more years of continuous service. Sabbatical leave is paid at 65% of salary. 
Sabbatical leave is accrued -rpon Board approval 

Unearned Revenues 
The School Board reports -unearned revenues when resources are received by the School Board 
before it has a legal claifn to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence 
of qualifying expenditures. In s-ubsequent periods, -when the School Board has a legal claim to 
the resources, -fhe liabiEty for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and the 
revenue is recognized 

F-unds Held For Future Distribution 
Funds held for future distribution rq)resent funds for -which the School Board has not made a 
determination as to the amount or who may have a legal daim to the funds, such as RSD or 
charter schools. Once the School Board has determined that either it or another entity has a 
legal claim to the resources, the amounts identified are redassified as either revenue or as an 
obligation due to another entity. 

Long-Term Obligations 
For govetQment--wide reporting, the issuance costs associated with the bonds are considered an 
outflow of resources in the reporting period in which they are incurred in accordance -with 
GASB Statement No. 65. For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as wdl 
as iss-uance costs, are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are reported as 
othet firtandag sources, net of the applicable premium or disco-unt Issuance costs, even if 
-withheld feom the actual net proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures-

Restricted Net Position 
For the govetoment--wide statement of net position, net position is reported as restricted when 
consttaints placed on net position use ate either externally imposed by creditors (such as debt 
covenants), gtantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed by 
law through constiturionalpro-visions or enabling legislation. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the School Board's 
policy to use restricted resources first; then -anrestricted resources as they ate needed. 
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Note 2. Sommary of Significant Acconating PoKcies (Contimied) 

Estimates 
The ptepamlion of financial statements in conformity -with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that afFect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and Habilties as of the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reportiag period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Pension Plans (Plans) 
For purposes of measufing the net pension liability, deferred outflo-ws of resources and 
deferred inflo-ws of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the 
fiduciary net positions of the Plans, and additions to/deductions firom the Plans' fiduciary net 
positions hare been determined on the same basis as they are reported by die Plans. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (mdudingrefimds of ernployee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. hiTestments are reported at feir value. 

Adoption of New Accounting Principles and Recent Reporting and Disclosure 
Developments 

During the year ended June 30, 2019 GASB Statement No. 83 was implemented as follows: 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83 (GASB 83) 
The objective of GASB 83, Certain Asset 'RsArment OhUgaAons, is to establish criteria for 
deterrnining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred 
outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,2018. 

Additional GASB Statements recently implemented! 

GASB StatementNo. lS,Aiji:comtingand'Binandal'S^or&ngfor'Post-emplqyment'Ben^ts OtherThan 
Pensions, improves the usefulness of information for decisions made by the various users of the 
general purpose external financial reports of governments whose employees — both active and 
inactive employees — are provided wifii post-employment benefits other than pensions. As a 
result of the implementation of this statement; Governmental Activities Net Position was 
restated. In addition, disclosures and required supplementary information were adjusted. This 
statement was implemented during the fiscal year ended June 30,2018. 

Recent Reporting and Disclosnre Developihents 

As of June 30, 2019, the Government Accounting Standards Board has issued several 
statements not yet implemented by the School Board. The Statements, which migjit impact 
the School Board, are as follows: 
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Notes to Financial Slatements 

Note 2. Stimmaiy of Significant Accounting PoEcies (Continued) 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84 (GASB 84) 
The objective of GASB 84, Fidudary AMiMes, is to improve guidance regarding the 
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how 
those activities should be reported. The requirements of ihis Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15,2018. 

Governmental Accourtting Stendards Board Statement No. 87 (GASB ^T) 
The objective of GASB 87, Leases, is to better meet ihe information needs of financial 
statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. 
This Statement increases the usefulness of governmenls' financial statements by requiring 
recognition of certain lease assete and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as 
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the 
payment provisions of tihe contract The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 

Note 3. Deposits and Investments 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is ihe risk that in ihe event of a bank feilure, the government's deposits 
may not be returned to it. Under state law, all deposits are secured by federal depository 
insurance or the pledge of securities held by the pledgtog banks agent in ihe School Board's 
name. At June 30,2019, the carrying amount of the School Board's deposits (demand deposits) 
was 1169,909,062 and the related bank balances were $171,477,029. The bank balance of 
$171,477,029 was covered by federal depository insurance or secured by bank owned securities 
specifically pled^d to tihe School Board and hdd in joint custody by an independent bank or 
trust department 

3h addition, sir schools maintained Student Activily Funds with book and bank balances at June 
30, 2019 of $53,983 and $77,767, respectively. The barik balances of these accounts were 
secured by federal depository insurance and the pledge of securities held by the pled^g bank's 
agent in the School Board's name. These fimds are not assets of the School Board, butratiher 
assets held for the benefit of the students attending those schools and are reported as Agency 
Funds in the Other Supplementary luformalion section and not included in the GWFS. 

Lxvestmeixte 
As of June 30,2019, assets classified as investments exist in the QSCB Fund and in the Fiduciary 
Tmst Fund. The assets in each fund are invested in accordance with the investment poHcies of 
each plan. The assets are as follows: 

2019 

U.S. Treasury Notes f 56,187,142 

Marketable Securities 292,821 
Cash Held in Investments ' 682,743 

Total Investmeats ; $ 57,162,706 
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Note 3. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

As of June 30, 2019, flie debt matujcities of the QSCB Fxmd's investments in debt securities 
wete as foEows: 

Investment Maturities (in Yeats) 
Fait Less More 

Value thanl 1-5 6-10 than 10 
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 56,869,885 | - $ 56,869,885 $ - $ -

Total I 56,869,885 $ - $ 56,869,885 $ - $ -

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates "wiE adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. In general, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity 
of its fair value to changes ia market interest rates. The School Board has a formal investment 
poEcy that limits investment of amounts in excess of immediate cash requirements only to 
statutorEy permitted investments. 

Investments (Continued) 
Credit risk. State law limits investments to the foEowing: 
1. Direct United States Treasury obligations 
2. Bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal 

agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the fiiE faith and credit of the United 
States of America 

3. Bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by U.S. 
government instrumentalities, which are federaEy sponsored 

4. Direct security repurchase agreements of any federal book entry only securities 
5. Time certificates of deposit of any bank domicfled or having a branch office in the state of 

Lo-uisiana, savings accounts or shares of savings and loan associations and savings banks 
6. Mutual or trust fund institutions which are registered with the SEC and which have 

underlying investments consisting solely of and limited to securities of the United States 
government or its agencies 

7. Guaranteed investment contracts issued by a bank, financial institution, insruance company, 
or other entity having one of the two highest short-term rating categories of either Standard 
& Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investors Service 

8. Investment grade commercial paper of domestic United States corporations 

The School Board has no investment poEcy that would further limit its investment choices. 
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Note 3. Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Fait Value Measurement 
The iavesttnents measuced and reported at fait value are classified according to the following 
hierarchy: 

• Level 1 - Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets. 

• Level 2 - Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either 
ditecfly or indirectly, which may iaclude inputs iu markets that are not considered to be 
active. 

• Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based upon imobservable sources. 

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the pridng transparency 
of the instrument and should not be perceived as the particular investmenfs risk. Debt, 
equities, and iavestment derivatives classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued 
directly firom a predetermined primary external pricing vendor. Assets classified in Level 2 are 
subject to priciog by an alternative pricing source due to lack of iuformation available by the 
primary vendor. Mortgage and asset backed securities classified in Level 3, due to lack of an 
independent pridng source, are valued using an internal fair value as provided by the iavestment 
manager. 

The foUowiog table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the assets at fair value as 
of June 30, 2019: 

Fair Value Measmemeats Using: 
Quoted Prices 

In Active 
Markets for 
Identical 

Assets 
(Level 1) 

Significant Significant 
Other Unobservable 
Inputs Inputs Total 

(Level 2) (Level 3) June 30,2019 
Investments by Fair Value Level 
U.S. Treasury N otes 
Marketable Securities 

56,869,885 $ 
292,821 

$ 56,869,885 
292,821 

T otal Investments by Fair Value Level f 292,821 $ 56,869,885 $ $ 57,162,706 

Note 4. Ad Valorem Taxes and Sales Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes were levied by the School Board in October 2018 for the calendar year 2019 
based on the assessed valuation of property as of October 2018. Values are established by the 
Orleans Parish Assessors' Offices each year based on 10% of the assessed market value of 
residential properly and commercial land and on 15% of the assessed market value of 
commercial buildings, public utilities and personal property. The taxes become due on January 
1 of each year, and become delinquent on February 1. Before the taxes can be collected, the 
assessment list (tax roll) must be submitted to the Louisiana Tax Commission for approval 
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Note 4. Ad Valorem Taxes and Sales Taxes (Continued) 

From tie day the tax roll is iBled in the Board of Tax Commission, it shall act as a lien on each 
specific piece of real estate thereon assessed, which shall be subject to a legal mortgage after 
the year for the payment of the tax due on it Ad valorem taxes are collected by the City of 
New Orleans and remitted to the School Board on a periodic basis. The taxes are generally 
collected iu December, January, and February of the fiscal year. A Hst of property on which 
taxes have not been paid is pubhshed iu the official journal by the City of New Orleans. If 
taxes are not paid within the period stipulated in the public notice, the property is sold for 
taxes due at a tax sale held by the City of New Orleans. The tax sale is usually held prior to 
the end of the School Board's fiscal year. 

The followiag is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes: 

Authorized 
Millage 

Levied 
Expires 

Constitutional Millage 27.65 27.65 Not Applicable 

Dedicated Millage 
Purpose A School Books, Materials 

and Supplies 1.550 1.550 2028 
Purpose B Early Childhood, DisdpUne 

and Dropout Programs 1.550 1.550 2028 
Purpose C Employee Salary, Benefits 

and Incentives 7.270 7.270 2028 
Purpose D Air Conditioning, Asbestos 

Removal and Facilities 2.320 2.320 2028 

School Board General Obligation Bond Taxes 2.250 2 950 2025 

School Board Capital Repair Millage 2.720 2.720 2024 

T otal MiUage 45.31 45.31 

All ad valorem taxes are recorded on the basis explained in Note 2. For governmental funds, 
revenues are recognized in the accormting period in which they become measurable and 
available. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. 
Available means due, or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected within 
the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to pay liabiEties of the 
current period. The remaining property taxes receivable are considered available because they 
are substantially collected within 60 days subsequent to year end. The School Board records 
these taxes gross of the Assessor's and City's collection fees, which amounted to $3,524,234 
and $3,326,613, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
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Note 4. Ad Valotem Taxes and Sales Taxes (Continued) 

Since ad valorem taxes receivable are secured by property, there is no allowance for 
uncollectible taxes. 

Sales taxes are assessed and due on the first day of the month subsequent to the month of sale 
of any retail sales of goods used or consumed within Orleans Parish, including leases and rentals 
of movable tangible property. The rate of sales tax dedicated to tlie School Board is one and 
one-half percent. Revenues arising firom the one percent sales tax authorized by the voters of 
Orleans Parish in 1966 are used exclusively for the payment of salaries of teachers and/or for 
the general operations of the School Board. 

The proceeds of the one-half percent sales tax, which was authorized in 1980, are used for the 
payment of salaries of teachers and other educational employees of the School Board, for the 
expenses of maintaining and operating schools and for providing funds to pay for capital 
improvements. 

Sales taxes which remain uncollected on the twenty-fiirst day of the month due are classified as 
delinquent. Sales taxes are collected by the City of New Orleans and the State of Louisiana and 
are remitted monthly to the School Board. The School Board records these taxes in the period 
that the underlying transaction occurred, including the City's collection fees, which amounted to 
12,246,712 for the year ended June 30,2019. 

Note 5. Loans Receivable 

On April 1, 2013, as part of a New Market Tax Credit (NMTC) transaction, further described 
in Note 21, the OSFF advanced |6,948,587 to Wheafley NMTC Investment Fund, LLC in the 
form of a subordinate loan note. The note accrues interest at 1.40% and the maturity date is 
March 11, 2048. Interest only payments are due quarterly for the first seven years of the note, 
with principal and interest payments due quarterly for the remainder of the note. At maturity, 
final payment of all outstanding principal, accmed interest and any and all unpaid fees and 
others charges are due. Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled |97,450. The 
loan is collateralized by a grant of a fiicst position security interest in all of Wheatley NMTC 
Investment Fund LLC rights, tide and interest in its 100% membership interest in the Sub-
CDE. 
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Note 5. Loans Receivable (Continxied) 

Futute matuudties are as foflows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 I 81,833 

2021 166,238 

2022 171,434 

2023 176,735 
Thereafter 6,352,347 

Total I 6,948,587 

On October 22, 2013, as part of a NMTC transaction, further described in Note 21, the OSFF 
advanced |6,849,000 to McDonogh Elementary Investment Fund, LLC ia the form of a 
subordinate loan note. The note accmes interest at 0.78% and the maturity date is October 23, 
2045. Interest only payments are due quarterly for the first seven years of the note, with 
principal and interest payments due quarterly for the remainder of the note. At maturity, final 
payment of aD. outstanding principal, accmed interest and any and all unpaid fees and others 
charges are due. Interest earned for the year ended June 30,2019 totaled |40,083. The loan is 
collateralized by a grant of a first position security interest in all of McDonogh Elementary 
Investment Fund, LLC rights, titie and interest in its 99.99% membership interest in the Sub-
CDE. 

Future maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 I 23,458 

2021 148,191 
2022 250,444 

2023 252,404 

Thereafter 6,174,503 

Total I 6,849,000 
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Note 5. Loans Receivable (Continued) 
On May 19, 2015, as part of a tax credit transaction, further described in Note 21, the OSFF advanced 
16,296,500 to COCRF Investor 41, LLC in the form of a subordinate loan note. The note accrues 
interest at 1.43% and the maturity date is June 10, 2040. Interest only payments are due quarterly for 
the first seven years of the note, •with principal and interest payments due quarterly for the remainder 
of the note. At maturity, final payment of all outstanding principal, accrued interest and any and all 
•unpaid fees and other charges are due. Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled 

?,993. 

The loan is collateralized by a multiple indebtedness leasehold mortgage, pledge of leases and 
rents and security agreement under Uniform Commercial Code covering certain assets. 

Future maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 $ 
2021 

2022 39,764 

2023 185,429 

Thereafter 6,071,307 

Total $ 6,296,500 

On February 27, 2015, as part of a tax credit transaction, firttiher described in Note 21, the 
OSFF advanced $18,997,332 to Drew Elementary School FadHty (DESF) in the form of a 
subordinate loan note. The note accrues interest at 3.0% and the maturity date is February 27, 
2045. Interest only payments are due monthly through April 30, 2015, -with principal and 
interest payments due annually for the remainder of the note. At maturity, final payment of all 
outstanding principal, accrued interest and any and all unpaid fees and other charges are due. 
Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $522,339. The loan is collateralized by 
a grant of a first position security interest in the leasehold estate, including the land and building. 
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Note 5. Loans Receivable (Continued) 
Futxtte matudties ate as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 I 480,900 

2021 501,204 

2022 516,012 

2023 530,820 

Thereafter 15,133,446 

Total $ 17,162,382 

On April 28, 2016, as part of a tax credit transaction, further described in Note 21, the OSFF 
advanced $28,952,908 to SBW School Facility L.L.C. (SBWSF) in the form of a subordinate 
loan note. The note accrues interest at 2.23% and the maturity date is April 27,2046. Principal 
and interest payments are due annually for the remainder of the note. At maturity, final 
payment of all outstanding principal, accrued interest and any and all unpaid fees and other 
charges are due. Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $605,933. The loan 
is collateralized by a gtant of a first position security interest in the leasehold estate, including 
the land and building. 

Future maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 $ 737,423 

2021 754,036 

2022 771,024 

2023 788,395 

Thereafter 23,729,035 
Total $ 26,779,913 

On June 14, 2017, as part of a tax credit transaction, further described in Note 21, the OSFF 
advanced $13,868,212 to COCRF Investor 82, LLC in the form of a subordinate loan note. 
The note accrues interest at 1.43% and the maturity date is June 13,2047. Principal and interest 
payments are due annually for the remainder of the note. At maturity, final payment of all 
outstanding principal, accmed interest and any and all unpaid fees and other charges are due. 
Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $198,430. The loan is collateralized by 
a grant of a first position security interest in the leasehold estate, including the land and building. 
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Future maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 I 

2021 

2022 

2023 

Thereafter 13,868,212 

Total $ 13,868,212 

On December 28, 2017, as part of a tax credit transaction, ftirther described in Note 21, the 
OSFF advanced $17,603,367 to Tubman School Facilities, L.L.C. in the form of a subordinate 
loan note. The note accrues interest at 2.61% and the maturity date is December 27, 2052. 
Principal and iuterest payments are due annually for the remainder of the note. At maturity, 
final payment of all outstanding principal, accrued interest and any and all unpaid fees and other 
charges are due. Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $507,658. The loan 
is collateralized by a grant of a first position security interest in the leasehold estate, including 
the land and building. 

Future maturities are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal 

2020 $ 264,852 

2021 272,636 

2022 280,648 
2023 288,896 

Thereafter 16,260,202 

Total $ 17,367,234 

On December 28, 2017, as part of a tax credit transaction, further described in Note 21, the 
OSFF advanced $30,009,030 to John MC Facilities, L.L.C. in the form of a subordinate loan 
note. The note accrues interest at 2.61% and the maturity date is December 27,2052. Principal 
and interest payments are due annually for the remainder of the note. At maturity, final 
payment of all outstanding principal, accrued interest and any and ah unpaid fees and other 
charges are due. Interest earned for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $867,008. The loan 
is collateralized by a grant of a first position security interest in the leasehold estate, including 
the land and buhding. 
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Note 5. Loans Receivable (Continued) 

Futujce maturities ace as foEows: 

Fiscal Yeat 
F.fiHirig June 30, Principal 

2020 I 370,351 
2021 381,235 
2022 392,439 
2023 403,972 

Thereaftet 28,160,497 

Total $ 29,708,494 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation acttvity as of and for the year ended June 30,2019, are as follows: 

Land* 

Buildings 
and 

Improvements 

Furniture 
and 

Construction 
in 

Progress* Total 
Governmental Activites 
Assets at Cost 

Balance at June 30, 2018 | 
Additions 
Deletions 
Transfers 
Transfers from RSD 

: 26,606,757 f 634,553,253 
116,586,735 

1,632,509 
724,743,622 

f 24,813,475 f 10,897,767 
719,039 

(1,632,509) 
25,641,636 

1 696,871,252 
117,305,774 

750,385,258 
Balance at June 30, 2019 26,606,757 1,477,516,119 24.813.475 35,625,933 1,564,56Z284 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance at June 30, 2018 
Additions 
Deletions 

-
75,190,508 
7,676,714 

11,902,100 
402,201 

- 87,092,608 
8,078,915 

Balance at June 30, 2019 - 82,867,222 12.304,301 _ 95,171.523 

Total Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated 

Depreciation at June 30,2019 | ; 26,606,757 $ 1.394,648,897 $ 1Z509.174 $ 35.625.933 $ 1.469.390.761 

Business-Tvpe Activities 
Assets at Cost 

Balance at June 30,2018 } 
Additions 
Deletions 
Transfers 
Transfers &om RSD 

: 1,440,992 f 6,372,157 f f f 7,813,149 

Balance at June 30, 2,019 1,440,992 6,372,157 - - 7.813,149 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance at June 30,2018 
Additions 
Deletions 

- 914,664 
121,909 

-
-

914,664 
121,909 

Balance at June 30, 2019 - 1,036,573 - 1,036,573 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated 

Depreciation at June 30,2019 | 1,440,992 $ 5.335,584 $ $ $ 6.776,576 
Total Primary Government 

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated 
Depreciation at June 30,2019 f 28,047,749 f 1.399.984.481 $ 1Z509.174 f 35.625.933 $ 1,476.167,337 
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ORUEANS PAKISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Capital Assets (Continned) 

Xhe School Boajrd leviewed its capital assets and noted no impaittaeat as of Jtme 30,2018. 
Depteckiion expense for the year ended Jme 30, 2018, was charged to the following 
govemmental functions: 

Depreciation 
Instmction 

Regular EdncatLon Programs $ 762,764 

Spedal Education Programs " 431,332 
Other Education Programs 992,894 

Support 
Stpdent Services 926,766 
Instmctional Staff Services ' ' 294,011 
General Administration 2,180,851 
School Administration 153,598 
Business and Central Services • 210,722 
Transportation Services ' 158,017 
Central Services 250,504 
Plant Services 1,717,455 

Total $ 8,078,914 

Note 7. Pension Plans 
As discussed in Note 2, suhstantiaJly all scho oi system employees are patlicipants in a statewide 
pension plan. The plans are all cost-sharing multiple-employet defined benefit pensions plans 

by separate boards of trustees. la general, professional employees (such as 
I and lunchroom workers are members of the Teachers' Retirement 

System of Louisiana (TRSL). Other employees are members of the Louisiana School 
Employees' Retiremeat System (LSERS) or the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System 
(LASERS). 

Following are descriptions of the plans and their respective benefits. The descriptions are 
provided for general informational putposes only. Participants should refer to the-appropriate 
statutes for more complete information. 

Teachers'"Rglmment System ofljoidsiana 
Tlan Dsscr^tion - Employees of the School Board are provided with pensions through a cost-
sharing multiple-employet defined benefit plan administered by the Teachers' Retirement 
System of Louisiana (IRSL). Chapter 2 of Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes (La. R.S. 
11:401) grants to TRSL Board of Trustees and the Louisiana Legislature the authority to review 
administration, benefit terms, iUTestments, and ftinding of the plan. TRSL issues a publicly 
available financial report that can be obtained at www.ttsLorg. 
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OBIMANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
ISOEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued) 

Benefits Piovided 
Hie followitig is a desciiptioii o£ iiie plan and its benefits and is ptovided £o£ genetal 
infoiinatioiial puiposes only. TRSL ptovides tettceanent, de£etted aetiteraent option (DROP), 
disabiEty, and sutviv-ofis benefits. Participants sbonld tefes: to tie apptoptiate statutes £ot: tao£e 
complete iafiotmation. 

Nnftnal Retkement 
Bs^Iar Plan - Membets -wbose first employment tuafces them eligible £or membership in a 
Lonisiaaa state retirement system on or after Jxdy 1,2015, may retire -with a 2.5% benefit fi-ctor 
after attaining age sixty-two with at least 5 years of service credit and are eli^Ie for an 
actoarially reduced benefit with 20 years of service at any age. Members hired betwem January 
1,2011 and June 30,2015 may retire with a 2.5% benefit fector after attaining age sixty with at 
least 5 years of service credit and are el^le for an actuarially reduced benefit with 20 years of 
service at any age. Members hired between July 1, 1999 and December 31, 2010, are digible 
for a 2.5% benefit &ctor at the eadiest of age 60 with 5 years of service, age 55 with 25 years 
of service, or at any age with 30 years ofsetvice. Metnbeis may retire with an acfuariallyreduced 
benefit with 20 years of s^wice at any age. If hired before July 1, 1999, members are eligible 
for a 2% benefit &.ctor at the eadiest of age 60 with 5 years of service, or at any age with 20 
years of service and are digble for a 2.5% benefit fector at the eadiest of age 65 with 20 years 
of service, age 55 with 25 years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. 

Plan B - Members may retire with a 2.0% benefit factor at age 55 with 30 years of sendee, or 
age 60 (first employed between January 1,2011 and June 30,2015) with 5 years of service, or 
age 62 (first employed afiet July 1,2015) with 5 years of service, or an actuadalLy reduced benefit 
with 20 years of service at any age. 

For all plans, retirement benefits are based on a formula which multiplies the final average 
compensation by the applicable benefit fi.ctor, and by the years of crediiable service. For Regu­
lar Plan and Plan B members whose first emplo3rment makes them di^le for membership in 
a Louisiana state retirement system on or after January 1, 2011, final average compensation is 
defined as the highest average 60-month perioci For all other members, final average 
compensation is defined as the highest avecage 36-month period. 

A retiring membet is entitled to receive the maximum monthly benefit payable until the 
member's death. In Eeu of the maximum, monthly benefit, the member may dect to recdve a 
reduced benefit payable in the form of a Joint and Survivor Option, or as a lump sum that can 
not exceed 36 months of the members' maximum monthly benefit amount. 

Effective July 1,2009, rnembers may make an irrevocable election at retitement to receive an 
actoariaEy reduced monthly benefit which increases 2.5% annually, beginning on the first 
retirement anniversary date, but not before age 55 or before the retiree would have attained age 
55 in the case of a surviving spouse. Ihis option can be chosen in combination with the above 
options. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued) 

Benefits Ptovided (Continued) 

Defatted Retkemeat Option Ptogtam (DROP) 
In Heu of tettoinafing eraployment and accepting a service retirement, an eU^ble member can 
be^ participation in the Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) on lh.e first retirement 
eligibiHty date for a period not to exceed 3 years. A member has a 60 day -window firom his 
first elig^le date to participate in the program in order to participate for the maxim,-um number 
of years. Delayed participation reduces the three-year maximum participation period. During 
participation, benefits otherwise payable are fixed, and deposited in an individual DROP 
account 

Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) (Continued) 
Upon terrnination, the member can continue employment and earn additional benefit accruals 
to be added to the fixed pre-DROP benefit Upon termination of employment the member is 
entitled to the fixed benefit, an additional benefit based on post-DROP service (if any), and the 
individual DROP account balance which can be paid in a lump sum or an additional annuity 
based upon the account balance. 

Disabfiity Benefits 
Active members whose first employment makes them eligible for membership in a Louisiana 
state retirement system before January 1, 2011, and who have five or more years of service 
credit are eligible for disabilty retirement benefits if certified by the State Medical Disability 
Board (SMDB) to be disabled firom performing their job. All other members must have at least 
10 years of service to be eligible for a disability benefit. Calculation of the disability benefit as 
well as the availability of a minor child benefit is detertuined by the plan to which the member 
belongs and the date on which the member's first employment made them eligible for 
membership ii a Louisiana state retirement system. 

Survivor Benefits 
A surviving spouse with minor children of a deceased active member -with at least five years of 
creditable service (2 years immediately prior to death) but less than 10 years of creditable service 
is entitled to a benefit equal to the greater of (a) f600 per month, or (b) 50% of the member's 
benefit calculated at the 2.5% accrual rate for all creditable service. When a minor child(ren) is 
no longer eligible to receive survivor benefits, the s-urviving spouse's benefit ceases. 

A stxtviving spouse with minor chidren of a deceased active member with at least 10 years of 
creditable service (2 years immediately prior to death) or 20 years of creditable service 
(regardless when earned) is entitled to a benefit equal to the greater of (a) $600 per month, or 
(b) the option 2 equivalent of the benefit calculated at the 2.5% benefit factor for all creditable 
service. If a surviving spouse remarries before4he age of 55 and the deceased active member 
had less than 20 years of creditable service, the surviving spouse's benefit -will cease. 

58 
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Notes to Financdal Statemente 

Note 7. PeiisiojOL Plans (Contiimed) 

Benefits Piovided (Continued) 

Back minoi eidld (mayifnntn o£ 2) skall teceive an amoont eqnal to the gteatet o£ (a) 50% o£ 
the spouse's benefit, ot (b) |3Q0 (up to 2 eligible children). Benefits to roinors cease at 
attainment o£ age 21, marriage, or age 23 if enrolled in an approved institation of higher 
education. 

A surviving q)Ouse vfithout minor children of a deceased active member "wifh at least 10 years 
of creditable service (2 years immediately prior to death) or 20 years of creditable service 
(re^dless -when eame^ is entitled to a benefit equal to the greater of (a) |600 pet month, or 
(b) the option 2 equivalent of the benefit calculated at the 2.5% benefit fector fiar all creditable 
service. X£ a surviving spouse remarries before the age of 55 and the deceased acfive member 
had less than 20 years of creditable service, the surviving spouse's benefit vvill cease. 

Permanent Benefit Incteases/Cost-of-Liviag Adjustments 
As fblLy described in Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, the System aXLorvs for the 
payment of permanent benefit increases, also kaown as cost-of-living adjustments (COIAs) 
that are ftmded through investment earnings when recommended by the Board ofTrustees and 
approved by the State Legislature. 

Optional Retirement Plan (ORP) 
The Optional Refitement Plan (ORP) was esfebhshed for academic employees of public 
insfitutions of bigbet education who are eligible for membersbip ia TRSL. This plan was 
designed to provide certain academic and unclassified employees of public institutions ofibigher 
education an optional metibod of funding for thdr retirement. 

The ORP is a defined contribution pension plan wHch provides for portability of assets and 
full and immediate vesting of all contributions submitted on behalf of the affected employees 
to the approved providers- These providers are selected by the TRSL Board of Trustees. 
Monthly employer and employee contributions are invested as directed by the employee to 
provide the employee with future retirement benefits. The amount of these benefits is entitely 
dependeut upon the total contributions and ravestment returns accumulated during the 
employee's working lifetime. Employees in eligible positions of bighec education can maie an 
irrevocable election to participate in the ORP rather than TRSL and purchase annuity contracts 
(fixed, variable, or both) for benefits payable at retirement 

Conttibufions 
The employer contribution rate is established annually under La, R.S. 11:101-11:104 by the 
Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAQ, taking mto consideration the 
recommendation of the System's actuary. Each sub plan pays a separate actuarially determined 
employer contribution rate. However, all assets of TRSL are used for the payment of benefits 
for all classes of members, regardless of their plan. For ORP, only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution is retained by the plan. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 7. Pension Plans (Contmaed) 

Tketefore, only the UAL piojected tates "wete nsed in the piojecfion o£ fntote conttibtitions in 
detetminifig an employees ptoportionate share. Xhe rates for the year ended Jnne 30, 2018 
(measnretQent date) are as follows; 

2018 
TJKSL Sub Plan 

Rmployer 
Contdbudons 

K-12 Regnlar Plan 26.60% 

PknB 25.40% 

OSP 
Employer 

UAL 

2018 22.20% 

The School Board's contractaa% requited composite contribntionrate for the year ended Jnne 
30,2018 was 26.7% ofannoalpaytoll, actaarially detetaanedas an amonnt that, when corhbined 
with employee contrEbnttons, is expected to finance the costs ofbenefits earned by employees 
dnring the year, with an additional amonnt to finance any Unfimded ActoafialAccrnedliabiEty. 
Contribntions to the pension plan firom the School Board were $5,879,210 for the year ended 
Jnne 30,2019. 

'LouiszamSchool'Bi?iployees''RetirementSystem (LSEBS) 

Plan Description 
Chapter 3 of Title 11 offheLonisianaRe'vised Statutes (L.R.S. 11:1001) grants to LSEBS Board 
of Trustees and the Lonifiana Legisktnre the authority to review administration, benefit terms, 
investments, and fimding of the plan. LSEEIS issues a publicfy available financial report that 
can be obtained at www.lsers.net 

Benefits Provided 
The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general 
information purposes only. LSERS provides retirement, disability, and survivor's benefits. 
Participattte should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

No.ttnal Retirement 
A menober who joined the School Board on or before June 30, 2010 is di^le for nortnal 
retkement if he has at least 30 years of creditable service regardless of age, 25 year is of 
creditable service and is at least age 55,20 years of creditable service regardless of age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit; or 10 years of creditable service and is at least age 60. A member 
who joined the School Board on or after July 1,2010 is el^ble for normal retirement if he has 
at least 5 years of creditable savice and is at least age 60, or 20 years of creditable service 
regardless of age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued) 

Benefit Fonnnk 
Fot metribeis •wL.o joined th.e Sdiool Boatd ptiot to July 1, 2006, the tnatifmim tetitement 
benefit is an amount equal to 3 1/3% o£ the areiage compensation fot the fhiee highest 
consecnfiyeyeats ofmembetsHp service, subject to the 10% saJaiy]imifation,mtiltipEe(ibythe 
number ofyeais of service limited to 100% of final average compensation plus a supplementary 
aJlo-wance of $2.00 pet month fot each year of setvice. Members who joined the School Boatd 
on or after July 1,2006 through June 30,2010,31/3% of the average compensation is used to 
calculate benefits. However, the calculation consists of the five highest consecutive years of 
membetshp setvice, subject to the 10% salary litoitation. Fot members who joined the School 
Boatd on or after July 1,2010,21 /2% of the average compensation is used to calculate benefits 
and consists of the five highest consecutive years' average salary, subject to the 15% salary 
limitation. The supplemental allowance was eliminated for members entering the plan on or 
after July 1, 1986. Effective January 1,1992, the supplemental allowance was reinstated to aH 
members whose service tetitement became effective after July 1,1971. 

DisabilityBenefits 
Amemberis eligible to tetite and receive disabihty benefits ifhe has atleastSyears of creditable 
service, is not eligible for normalreticement, and has become totally and permanently disabled, 
and is certified as disabled by the Medical Board. A vested person with 20 or more years of 
creditable setvice, who has withdrawn ffom active service pti-or to the age at which, he is digible 
for reticement benefits, is eligible fot a disabilitybenefituntilnormalretirementage. Amember 
who joined the School Board on or after July 1,2006, must have at least 10 years of service to 
qualify for disability benefits. Upon the death of amemberwithfive or more years of creditable 
service, the system provides benefits fot surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain 
conditions outlined in the statutes, a spouse is entitled to 75% of the member's benefits. 

Survivor Benefits 
Upon the death of a member with 5 or more years of creditable service, the plan provides 
benefits for surviving spouses and rttinor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the 
statutes, a spouse is entitled to 75% of the member's benefit 

Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) 
Memhers of theplanmay elect to participate in the DefettedRetttement Option Han, (DROP) 
and defer the receipt of benefits. The dection may be made only one time and the duration is 
•limited to three years. Once an option has been sdected, no change is permitted Upon the 
effective date of the commencement of parfidpation in the DROP plan, active memb etship in 
the regular retiremeat plan of the School Board terminates. Average compensation and 
creditable service remain as they existed on the effective date of commencement of 
partidpation in the DROP plan. The monthly tetitement benefits, that would have been 
payable bad the person dected to cease employment and receive a service retitement allowance, 
are paid into the Deferred Retiremeat Option Plan Fund Account. 

61 



OKIEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Fittancial Statements 

Note 7- Pension Plans (Continued) 

The plan maintatas s-abacconnls -witTrin this acconat leflectiag the ctedit attjdbuted. to each 
patticipant ia the plan, Intetest ctedited and payments feom the DROP accotint ate jmade in 
accoidance -with L jR,S. 11:1152(1^ (3). Upon tetmination o£ both partidpatLon in the plan and 
employment, a pattidpant may teceive his DROP monies dthet in a lump sum payment feom 
the account ot systematic disbutsements ot in a mannet apptoved by the plan boatd. The plan 
also ptovides fot defected benefits fot vested membets -who tetminate befote bdng eligible fot 
tetkement Once the membet teaches the apptoptiate age for retirement, benefits become 
payable. 

Initial Benefit Retkement Plan (GBRP) 
Effective January 1,1996, the State Le^latore authorized the plan to establish an Tnitial Benefit 
RetiremeatPlan (EBEP) progtam. The IBRP is available to members "who have notpartidpated 
in the DROP and who sdect certain benefits. Theteafter, these membets are indig^le to 
partidpate in the DROP. The IBRP program provides both a one-time single sum payment of 
tp to thitty-sig; months of a regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly 
retirement benefit for life. Intetest ctedited and payments fi:om IBRP account are made in 
accordance with LJLS. 11:1152(:^(3). 

Permanent Benefit Increases/Cost-of-Lndng Adjustments 
As fully described in Title 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, the School Board allows for 
the payment ofpertnanentheaefitincreases, also inownas cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) 
that are funded through investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and 
approved by the State Legisktore. 

Contribntions 
Contributions for members are established by state statute at 7,5% of thek annual covered 
salary for membets employed prior to July 1,2010 and 8.0% for members eiuployed subsequent 
to July 1,2010. Contdbxtiioxis for all partidpating school boards are actuarially detetmined as 
required by Act 81 of 1988 but cannot be less than the rate required by the State Constitution. 
The actual employer rate for the year ended June 30,2019, was 28.0%. A difference may exist 
due to the state statute that requires the rate to be calculated in advance. Contfibutions to 
LSERS ffom the School Board were |11,248 for the year ended June 30,2019. 

Louisiana State 'EiT^hyees''Rstirement System (LASEBS) 
TMell ofthe Louisiana Revdsed Statutes (LR.S. 11:1001) grants to LASERS Board of Trustees 
and the Louisiana Legislature the authority to review adrninistratioii, benefit terms, 
investments, and funding of the plan, LASERS issues a publidy available financial report that 
can be obtained atwww.lasetsonIine.org. 
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Notes to Fiaaacial Statemente 

Note 7. Pension Plans (Contimied) 

Benefits Piovided. 
Th.e age andyeats o£creditable service tegrdr^in order for ametober to retire vvitb foUbeaiefits 
are estabBsbed by slatate, and vary depending on tbe merober's bire date^ employei;, and job 
dassification. Onr rani; and file members bired prior to July 1,2006, may erfbet retire witb full 
benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of credifable service or at age 60 -apon completing 
ten years of creditable service depending on tbeir plan. Tbose members Mted between July 
1,2006 and June 30,2015, may retire at age 60 upon completing five years of creditable service 
and tbose bired on or after July 1, 2015 may retire at age 62 t^on completing five years of 
creditable service, fibe basic annual retiremeat benefit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% 
of average compensation multipEedbyfbe number of years of creditable service. Addifionaby, 
members may cboose to retire -witb 20 years of service at any age, vvitb an actuarially reduced 
benefit. 

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned compensation for tbe 
bigbest 36 consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July 1, 2006. 
For members bired July 1, 2006 or later, average compensation is baaed on tbe member's 
average annual earned compensation for tbe bigbest 60 consecutive months of employment 
Tbe maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed tbe lesser of 100% of average 
compensation or a certain ^edfied dollar amount of actuarially determined monetary limits, 
wMcb vaiy depending xpon tbe member's age at retirement As an alternative to tbe basic 
retirement benefits, a member may elect to receive their retirement throu^out their life, -with 
certain benefits being paid to tbeic designated beneficiaty after tbeir death. 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Le^lative Session, changed the benefit stmcture for 
LASERS members bired on or after January 1,2011. TTiis resultedin a new-regular pkn. Tbe 
new regular plan includes regdar members and tbose members wbo were formerly digjble to 
participate in specialty plans. R^ular members are eli^le to retire at age 60 after five years of 
creditable service and, may also retire at any age, with a reduced benefit^ after 20 years of 
creditable service. Average compensationwillbe based on the member's average annual earned 
compensation for the higbest 60 consecutive months of employment Members in the regular 
plan win receive a 2.5% accrual rate. 

Act226 of the 2014 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session establisbed new retirement digbiEty 
for members oflASERS hired on or after July 1,2015. Regular members under the new plan 
are dibble to retire at age 62 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any 
age, with a reduced benefit^ after 20 years of creditable service. Average compensation wiE be 
based on tbe member's average annual earned compensation for tbe bigbest 60 consecutive 
months of employment Members in the regular plan wiE receive a 2.5% accrual rate. 
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Notes to FioatLcial Sfatemenis 

Note 7. PetLsioa Plans (Contincaed) 

A medaabet leading employineiit'befote attainitig minitnnta tetitemeat age, but aftet complefiDg 
cextaia toinimum sejrvice teqpketnenis, becomes eligible for a benefit provided the member 
fives to ffie miniftium service retirement age, and does not -wiliLdra-w fhear accumulated 
contributions. Hie minimum service requirement for benefits varies depending ipjon the 
member's employer and service classification. 

Deferred Retirement Benefits 
Lbe State Legislature autfioiized LASHIS to estabfisli a Deferted Reticement Option Plan 
(DR-OP). Wben a member enters DROP, ilidr status changes from active member to retiree 
even tfiough. ihey continue to work and draw tliear salary for a period of ujp to three years. Tlie 
election is irrevocable once participation be^ns. During DROP participation, accumulated 
retirement benefits that would iiave been paid to eacfi retiree are separately tracked. For 
members wfio entered DROP prior to January 1, 2004, interest at a rate of one-balf percent 
less than fbe Sciiool Board's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be 
credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among 
available alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in tfie DROP 
account Members wfio enter DROP on or after January 1,2004, are required to participate in 
LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a tiurd-party provider. The SDP 
allows DROP participants to cfioose firom a menu of tuvestment options for the allocation of 
their DROP balances. Participants may diversify thdr investments by choosing firom an 
approved fist of mutual funds with, dififerent holdings, management styles, and risfc fectors. 

Members efi^le to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elecrf; to receive 
at the "time of retirement an initial benefit option (EBO) in an amount up to 36 months of 
benefits, "wifh an actnarial reduction of their future benefits. For members who selecrted the 
IBO option prior to January 1, 2004, such amount may he "withdrawn or remain in the IBO 
account earning interest at a rate of one-half percent less than LASER'S realized return on its 
portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those members who select the IBO on or after January 1, 
2004, are required to enter the SDP as described above. 

Disability Benefits 
Generally, active metobers "with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled 
may receive a maximum disabihfy retirement benefit equivaleat to the regular retirement 
formula without reduction by reason of age. Upon reaching age 60, the disability reticee may 
receive a regular retirement benefit by malting application to "the Board of Trustees. 

S"urvivor's Benefits 
Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's 
compensation and their rektionshfy to "the deceased. The deceased regular member hired 
before January 1,2011 who was in state service at the time of death must have a minimum of 
five years of service credip at least two of which were earned immediately prior to death, or 
who had a minimum of twenty yeats of service credit regardless of when earned in order for a 
benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued) 
Beaefits ate payable to an untnatrted cMd uatil age 18, ot age 23 i£ tbe child tetoaios a ftJl-time 
stadeat. The afotetaentioned tnini-mn-m seivice ctedit lequirement is ten years for a sirtviving 
spouse -with no minor children, andbeaefits are to be paM for Hfe to. the spouse or qualified 
handicapped child. 

The deceased regalat merDber hired on or after January 1,2011, must have a nrmitnura of five 
years of service credit re^dless of when earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor 
child The aforementioned minitnum service credit requirements for a surviving spouse ace 10 
years, 2 years being earned immediately prior to death, and active state service at the time of 
death, or a miniinTTm. of 20 years of service credit regardless of when earned A deceased 
membeds spouse must have been married for at least one year before death. 

Permanent Benefit Increases/Cost-of-Lrving Adjustments 
As folly described in Tide 11 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, the LASERS allows for the 
payment of permanent benefit increases, also tnown as cost-of-living adjustments (COIAs), 
that ate funded through investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and 
approved by the State Legislature. 

Contdbutions 
Members ate required by state stamte to contribute 7.5% of fhdr annual covered salaries if 
bired before July 1,2006 (dosed plan) and 8.0% of theit annual covered salaries if biced after 
July 1, 2006, and the School Board is required to make employer contributions based on an 
actuarially determined rate. The employer contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019, was 37.9% of annual coveredpaytolL The SchoolBoard's contributions paid to LASERS 
for the year ended June 30,2019, was f354,771. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Iciflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
The following schedule lists the School Board's proportionate share of the netpension liabiHty 
allocated by each of the pension plans based on the June 30,2018 measurement date, and the 
total pension liabihlies used to calculate the net pension obligations were determined by 
actuarial valuations as of that date. The School Board's proportionate share of the Plans' net 
pension liabilities were based on projections of the School Board's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
employers, actuarially detertoined 

Plan 

TRSL 

LSEBS 

LASESS 

Net Pension 
XiabiHQrat 

Jmie30,2018 

51,550^)13 

184,152 

540,002 

52,275,067 

Jiitte30,2018 

Rate 

0.52453% 

0.02756% 

0.00792% 

lacxease 

(Decrease) on 

Jtme30,2017 Rate 

0.03599% 

-0,03487% 

-0.00965% 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued) 
For the year ended Juae 30, 2018, the School Board recognized pension expense/ (benefit) of 
$3,614,358, ($14,089) and $44,085, for TRSL, LSERS, and LASERS, respectively, wHch 
included employer's amortization of the change in proportionate share and differences between 
employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions for each Plan. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 

At June 30, 2018, the School Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions firom the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources Deferred Inflows of Resources 

TRSL LSERS LASERS TRSL LSERS LASERS 
Differences Between Expected 

and Actual Experience 

Changes of Assumptions 

Net Difference Between Projected and 
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan 
Investments 

Changes in Proportion and Differences 
Between School Board Contributions 
and Proportionate Share of 
Contributions 

School Board Contributions Subsequent 
to the Measurement Date 

Total 

$ 1,698,193 $ 5,082 f 6,056 

3,312,315 7,758 5,495 

3,657 7,002 3,322,360 

38,909 

5,513,191 

9,322 

11,248 

24,766 216,588 153,733 

345,771 

12,461 

t 8,864,415 $ 31,985 $ 383,034 $ 5,237,141 | 158,815 $ 18,517 

An amount of $5,879,210 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 
resulting fcom School Board contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability ia the year ended June 30, 2019. The 
folowiog schedule lists the pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period 
for each pension plan: 

PLAN DESCRIPTION Employer 

TRSL ORP PLAN - UNSHELTERED S 116,184 

TRSL PLAN B - UNSHELTERED 43,358 

TRSL PLAN B - SHELTERED 436,552 

TRSL REGULAR PLAN - UNSHELTERED 366,179 

TRSL REGULAR PLAN - SHELTERED 4,550,919 

TRSL SUBTOTAL 5,513,191 

LASERS-SHELTERED 354,771 

LSERS-SHELTERED 11,248 

TOTAL $ 5,879,210 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Contimzed) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Exj)ense, and Defetied Ontflovps of Resonfces and 
Defetted Inflows of Resoxirces Related to Pensions (Continued) 

Otiiet aniotints tepoited as defetted ontflaws of tesontces and defetted infLo-ws of tesontces 
tekted to pensions •mdlL be tecognized in pension expense as foLo-ws: 

Amottization Amounte 

Yeat Ended June 30: 

2020 

2021 
2022 

2023 

TRSL LSERS 

422,401 

(483;631) 

(1,540,005) 
(107,003) 

(59,959) 

(73,414) 
(5,561) 

856 

Actoaiial Assumptions 
A sntn.tna.ty of tbe actnajdal taeibods and asstanptions tised in 

LASERS 

; 15,333 

; 6,281 

: (13,197) 

(1,976) 

le total pension 

TRSL LSERS LASERS 

Actuarial cost metfiod Entry Age Noraial BrfryAge Nonnal Entry Age Nonnal 

AinorHzafion approach Closed Closed Closed 

Actuarial assumpfions: 

Bqjected remaining service lives S years 3 years 3 years 

Investment rate of return 7.66% 7.063% 7.65% 

Inflafion rate Z5% per annum Z500% 2.75% 

Projected salary increases 3.3% -4.8% (varies depending on 
duration of service) 

Based on a 2013-2017 e>q3erienc0 
• study bfthe plan's members. 

3.25% 

Varies fiom 2.8% -14.3% (Based 
on 32009-2013 eqrerience study 

of the plan's members) 

Cost-of-living adjustments None None None 

MorfaTitr 
RP-2014 White Collar Employee 
Tables, vwih adjustment based on 

type of employee 

RP-2014 Sex Distinct Employee 
Table 

RP-2000 Combined Healthy 
Mortality Table 

Disability 
Based on afive year (2012-2017) 
ej^ierienoe study of the System^ 

members 

RP-2014 Sec Distinct Disabied 
Table 

Based oh a five year (2009-2013) 
acperience study of the System's 

members 

Terminafion 
Based on a five year (2012-2017) 
ejqrerience study of the System's 

members 

Based on a 2013-2017 eqrerience 
study of the plan's members 

Based onafive year (2009-2013) 
eiperience study of the System's 

members 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continned) 

Actuarial Assnmptions (Continned) 

TRSL Investmetits 
The long-teem, expected mte o£ tetom on pension plan investmeats "was detettoined "using a 
b"ailding-Hock method in which best-estitnate tanges o£ ejected fiitnte teal lates o£ tetotn 
(expected tetotns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) ate developed fot 
each majot asset class. These tanges ate cotobined to ptodnce the long-tetto expected mte of 
tetutn by weighting "the expected fhtnte teal lates of tetotn by the tatget asset allocation 
petcentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment fot the effect of 
tebalandng/drvetsiflcation. The tesnltiag expected long-tetm tate of tetotn was 8.07% fot 
2018. Best estimates of aaifhmetk: tealtates of tetmn fot each majot asset dass indaded in the 
pension plan's taJget asset allocation as of June 30,2018, ate summarized in the followiag table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
Domestic equiiy 23% 4.31% 
International equity 32% 5.26% 
Domestic fixed income ' 6% 1-49% 
International fixed income 10% 2.23% 
Private equity 22% 7.67% 
Global tactical asset allocation 7% 4.96% 

100.00% 

LSERS Investments 
The long-tetm expected tate of tetutn on pension plan investments was determined usiog a 
triangulation inethod which integtated "the CAPM pttcing modd (top-do"wn), a "tceasuty yield 
cutve approach (bottom-up), and an equity buildiag-block model (bottom-up). Rishtetxttn and 
cottelaflons ate projected on a fotwatd-looMng basis in e<piiEbiium, in which best-estimates of 
expected futute teal rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense 
and inflation) ate developed fot each major asset dass. These rates ate combined to produce 
the long-tetm expected tate of tetum by weighting the expected fiitute teal tatra of tetutn by 
the tatget asset allocation petcentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment fot 
the effect of rebalancing/ divetsification. The resulting long-term arithmetic nominal expected 
tetum is 7.76%. 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continned) 

ActaatialAsstimptions (Continned) 

LSERS Investmptifs (CnnfttnTed) 

Hie taacget allocation and best estiniates o£ tetutn for each, major asset 
class as of Jtine 30,2018, are sntnmarizedin the foho-wrog table: 

Taiget Long-Term 

Asset Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Retom 
Core Fixied Income 8.00% 2.02% 

Fi
x:

ed
 

In
co

m
e 

i 

High Yield 5,00%. 4.43% 

Fi
x:

ed
 

In
co

m
e 

i 

Emerging Markets Debt "7-00% ^ ... 

Fi
x:

ed
 

In
co

m
e 

i Global Kxed Income 10.00%; 138% 

•f ' 
US Equity-
Developed Equity 

20.00% 
moo%-

6.44% 
"7.'40% 

Emerging Markets Equity 10.00%. 942% 
Global RErTs 3.00%: 5.77% 

1 Private Equity 
Hedge Fund of F-unds 

5.00%; 
• 3!oo%' 

10.47% 
'3.75% 1 Real Estate i 5.00%; 5-00% 

•n 43 Timber 2.00%: 5.67% 

Oil & Gas ^ iooVo." 10.57% 
Eh 

Inftastructure 2,6O%-; ' 6.^% 
100.00% ; 

LASERS Imrestments 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments vras determined rising a 
bnilding-block method in •which, best-estimate ranges of expected fhture real rates of retom 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset dass. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by -weighting the expected future real rates of retom by the taaget asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of 
rebalmcing/divetsification. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset dass induded in the 
pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30,2018, are sumruarixed in the following table: 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued^ 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

LSERS Investments (Continued 

Asset Class 
Target Asset 

Allocation 

Cash 0% 
Domedic Equity 18% 
intemalionaJ Equity 22% 
Domestic Fixed Income 7% 
International Fixed Income 10% 
Alternative Investments 31% 
Risk Parity 12% 

100.00% 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Retum 

-0.48% 
4.31% 
5.26% 
1.49% 
2.33% 
7.67% 
4.96% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rates used to measure lie total pension liabilities of TRSL and LASERS were 
7.65% for each plan. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabiiily for LSERS 
was 7.065% for the plan. For TRSI^ LSERS, and LASERS, tie projection of cash flows used 
to determine tie discount rate assumed tiat contributions finm plan members will be made at 
tie current contribution rates and that contributions firompartidpatirg employers will be made 
at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and tie 
member rate. Based on tiiose assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, tie long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan imrestments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine tie total pension liability. 

Smsitivily of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension liaHfity to 
Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the School Board's proportionate share of the net pension liabilities 
using tie discount rates of 7.65% for TRSL and LASERS, and 7.065% for LSERS, as well as 
what the School Board's jaroportionate share of the net pension obligations would be if it were 
calculated usmg a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point 
higher than the current rate: 

1.0% X)cca:easc CmxeotniscoinitKate i.O%Incs?ease 

School Boaid'spxiporlionafc shaie 
of lie lOlSL net ipensioji liab ffijy 

School BoaiJsproportionatB share 
of the LSERS netpension liaiiility 

School Board's pioporlionaiE share 
of lie LASERS net pension liabiE^ 

$ 68J29^^0 $ 

252,797 ? 

681,518 I 

Sl,550yi3 I 37,428,529 

184,152 

540,002 

52275,067 

$ 125,474 

418,121 
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Note 7. Peiision Plans (Contitnied.) 

Support of Non-Employet Contdbntbag; Entities 
Contiifcnitioiis received by a pension plan firom non-employer contabntiog entities that are not 
in a spedal fbnding situation are recorded as revenne by the respective pension plan. Hie 
School Board recognizes revenne in an amonnt ecpal to theic proportionate share of the total 
contribntions to the pension plan fcom these non-employer contribnting entities. Dnring the 
year ended Jnne 30,2019, the School Boardrecognized revenne as aresnlt of support teceived 
firom non-employer contribnting entities of $207,453 (TRSL) $-0- (LSERS), and $-0-

- (LASERS) for its participation in the Plans. 

Pension Plan Fidnciary Net Position 
Detailed information abont the pension plans' fidnciary net positions is available in the 
separatdyissned2019 ComprehensiveAnnnalFinancialReportatrvwvv.trsLojfgi wwwJsers.net, 
andwww.lasei:son]ine.org. 

Payables to the Pension Plans 
As of June 30,2019, the SchoolBoardhadpayables to the TRSL plans of $1,122,076, $19,849, 
and $7,969 for the TRSL Regular Plan, TRSL Plan B, and TRSL ORP, respectively, to the 
LSERS pkn of $4,759, and to the LASERS plan of $4,726. 

Note 8. Postemployment Health Care and life Insnrance Benefits 

General Information abont the OPEB Plan 
P/m descT^iion — The Orleans Parish School Board (the P)03x6) provides certain continniDg 
health cate and life insnrance benefite for its retired employees. The Orleans Parish School 
Board's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by the Board The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the 
employer, employees and retirees rests vtith the Board No assets are accumulated in a trust 
that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 75. 

Bemjztsprovided— To be eligible for retiree health benefits, a retired employee must have met 
the requirements for retirement eligibility through the Teachers' Retirement System of 
Louisiana (TRSL): 

1. Employees hired on or after July 1,2015 
• Age 62 vtith 5 years of service, or 

- ® 20 years of service at any age (actuarially reduced benefit) 
2. Employees hired on or after July 1,2011 and before July 1,2015 

® Age 60 vith 5 years of service, or 
• 20 years of service at any age (actuarially reduced benefit) 
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Note 7. Pension Plans (Continued) 

3. Employees hked on ot a&etjvdy 1,1999 and before J-nly 1, 2011 

• Age 60 •with. 5 years of service, or 
o Age 55 with. 25 years of service, or 

• 30 years of service at any age, or 
" 20 yeajs of service at any age (actuarially reduced benefit) 

4. Employees hired before July 1,1999 
" Age 60 "with. 5 years of service, or 
» 20 years of service at any age 

The School Board's Actuary performed a situplified actuarial •valuation of the OPEB plan as of the 
measurement date June 30, 2019 in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75. The discount rate is 
the only applicable change in the simplified valuation. All other assumptions are applicable to the full 
valuation report dated October 10,2018, That report reflected a measurement date of June 30,2018. 

E^hyees covered hen^term—AtJxins. 30,2018, the foEowing ernployees were covered by "the benefit 
terms: 

Aciive Employees 373 

Retired Employees 202 

Toial 575 

Total OPEB liabiHty 
The Board's total OPEB liability of |6,279,000 -was measured as of June 30, 2019 and was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

AjMarial assuinptions and other inpnSs — The total OPEB liability in "the June 30, 2019 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the foEo-wing actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied 
to ah periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise spedfied: 

DiscountRate 3.50% 
Salary Increase Rate 3.50% 
Medical Consumer Price Index Trend 3.00% 
.Inflation Rate 3.00% 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers* 20 Year General Obligation 
municipal bond index over the 52 weeks immediately preceding the applicable measurement 
dates. 

The RP-2014 generational table scaled using MP-17 and applied on a geadet-spedfic basis was 
used. 
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Note 8. Postemployment Health. Care and life losntance Benefite (Continned) 

Changes in the Total OPEB liability 

Balance atjune 30,2017 | 6,233,373 

Changes for the Year: 

Service Cost 27,833 

Interest Cost 234,061 

Changes in Assnraptions or Other Inputs 209,614 

Benefit Paymenis (426,237) 

Net Changes 45,271 

Balance atjune 30,2018 __| 6,278,644 

SensMvity of the total OPEB liabiU^ to changes in the discount rate — The following presente the total 
OPEB liability of the Board, as well as what the Board's total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calcolated using a dkcount rate that is l-percentage-point lowec 2.50% or 1-percentage-point 
highet 4.50% than the cuctent discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount Rate L0% Increase 

2.50% 3.50% 4.50% 

$6,914,000 $6,279,000 $5,737,000 

SensMvi^ of the total OPEB liaUlity to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates—The foILowingpresents 
the total OPEB EabiEty of the B oard, as weh as what the B oard's total OPEB EabiEty would be 
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower 2.00% 
or l-percentage-point higher 4.00% than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend 1.0% Increase 
(2.00%) (3.00%) (4.00%) 

$5,707,000 ^^$6,279,000 $6,945,000 

OPEIB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to OPEB 
For the year ended June 30,2019, the Board recognized OPEB expense of $265,642. Atjune 
30,2019, the Board reported deferred outflows of resources and defetted inflows of resources 
related to OPEB fcom the following sources: 
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Notes. Postemployment Health C^e and life Insnrance Benefits (Conliimed) 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Inflows of 

Resources 

Changes of assumptions/inputs | 188,532 $ (137,683) 

Total f 188,532 t (137,683) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources rdated to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as fbllows: 

Fiscal Year End June 30, 

2020 $ 3,748 
2021 3,748 
2022 3,748 
2023 . 3,748 

Thereafter 32,109 

Note 9. Long-Term ObHgatioBs 

All of tlie bonds and notes payable of the School Board are repotted in the GWFS and are 
serviced by the debt service funds wifla revenues as described below. 

Range of Bafance 
Interest in Final as of 

Bonds Payable Remaining Years Matmity Jtme3Q,2019 

Refimding Bonds 
Series 2010 - Issued September 1,2010 3.25 - 5.00% 

Revenue Bonds 
QSCB 2011 - Issued December 20,2011 4.40% 

Total 

9/1/2020 $ 18,940,000 

2/1/2021 79,055,000 

$ 97,995,000 
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Note 9, Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

Refunding Bonds 
Tbe RefimdiagBond is a special limited Sdiool Board obligaiions payable firom and secured by pledge 
of and Hen on ad -valorem -taxes, sales taxes and re-venue sbartog. Ibe bonds do not constitute general 
indebtedness or pledge of tiie general credit of fee School Board. 

f97,005,000 PubKc School Eetiinding Bonds, cfeted September 1, 2010 — Hxe puijiose of fee bonds -was 
to refund fee outstanding (a) General Ob%ation Sdiool Bonds Series 1995, (b) Generd. Obligation 
School Bonds, Series 1996, (c) General ObH^tion School Bonds, Secies 1997, General Ob%ation 
School Bonds, Series 1997A (e) General Ob%3lion School Bonds, Series 1998A, and General 
Oblg^tion School Bonds, Series 1998B. The ddit -wfll be paid fbom fee unlimited ad -valorem taxation. 

Revenue Bonds 
$79,055,000 PubHc School Revenue Bonds (Taxable QSCB), Seribs 201IB — The Qualified School 
Constmction Bonds (QSCB) -were issued fer the purpose of construction, rehabilrtation, and repair of 
pubHc school fedHties, including the equipping of school fecilities- The bonds are secured by and 
payable firom the re-venues firom fee ad valorem tax: and fee VzVo sales and use tax. 

The School Board irrevocably designated fee Series 201IB bonds as '"Qualified School Construction 
Bonds" as defined in Section 54F of fee Internal Re-venue Code and has dected-under Section 6431(^5 (1) 
of the Code to receive a subsidy firom fee United States Department of fee Treasury equal to fee lesser 
of fee amount ofinterestpayable on fee Series 201lABonds if interest-were determined at fbe applic^Je 
credit rate determined -undac Section 54A(b) (3) of fee Code. 

The QSCB Revenue Bonds StnMng Fund issued on Deceniber 20,2011 mature on February 1,2021. 
The School Board is requited to establish and make armual deposits to a sinking fimd m order to pay 
fee bonds -when they mature. The required sinking fund mintmnm value at June 30, 2019 -was 
$45,174,284. The actual balance of fee sinking ftmd at June 30, 2018, was $45,634,593, wHch equals 
the required dqposit 

Defeased Bonds 
In IVferch 1988, fee School Board entered into an $8,155,000 refunding transaction (Series 1998B) fer a 
portion of fee School Board's Series 1995 Geneial Ob%ations maturing September2020. AtJ-une 30, 
2018, fee outstandingprindple balance of the 1995bonds, -vfeich are not included in fee Sdiool Board's 
balance sheets as they are considered defeased, totaled $7,140,000. 

Debt Service Requirements 
The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2019, exduding capital 
leases, accrued compensated absences and claims payable is as feHows: 

Revenne Bonds Total - AH Pebt 
JnaeSO, Enndpal Interest principal Interest* Rmdpal Intetest 

2020 $ 9,240,000 $ 705,150 1 ? 3,478,420 $ 9,240,000 1 4,183,570 
2021 9,700,000 242,500 79,055,000 3,478,420 88,755,000 3,720,920 

Total $ 18,940,000 : % 947,650 f 79,055,000 S 61>S6,840 $ 97,995,000 $ 71>04,490 

* The School Board received a fedetal borrowitig subsidy related to the interest payments. 
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

ReginniTig Additions/ Retirements/ Balance 
Balance Change in Debt Ending Due Within 

Long-Tenn Obligations (As Restated) Estimates Forgiveness Balance One Year 

Refunding Bonds 
Series 2010 $ 30,360,000 $ f 11,420,000 $ 18,940,000 1 9340,000 
Unamortized Premium on 2010 Bond 1,690,041 - 780,017 910,024 780,017 

Revenue Bonds 
QSCB 2011 Bond 79,055,000 - - 79,055,000 -
Unamortized Premium on QSCB 2011 Boi 165,532 - 64,078 101,454 64,078 

OPEB Obligation Payable 6,233,373 45,271 - 6378,644 -
Net Pension liability 51,720,335 554,732 - 52,275,067 -
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,464,463 (1,720,560) - 1,743,903 -
liability for Qaims Payable 45,399,586 (6,497,449) - 38,902,137 -

Total Long-Term Obligations $ 218,088330 $ (7,618,006) $ 12364,095 $ 198306329 $ 10,084,095 

Bond Indentures 
There are a number o£ liroitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. 
The School Board is in compliance with all significant covenants. 

Statutory Debt Limit 
As of June 30,2019, the statutory debt limit for general obligation bonds was f967,165,543 and 
the net legal debt margin was $960,731,034. 

1,179,228 in the debt service At June 30, 2019, the primary government has accumulated 
funds for future debt requirements. 

Note 10. Leases 
The School Board owns tire building located at 2401 Westbend Parkway in New Orleans, LA. 
The School Board leases space to tenants and charges itself internally for leasing occupied space 
for it's offices. The School Board created the Enterprise Fund - Timbers Fund to account for 
the lease activity associated with this building. For the year ended June 30,2019, lease revenues 
recognized by the School Board totaled $1,222,086. Future annual lease payments to be 
received are as follows: 
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Note 10. Leases (Continued) 

The School Board is chajged rent and utilities associated with its occupied space at a monthly 
amount of |40,000. The lease term is a month-to-month obligation. 

The School Board also leases various equipment under operating leases which generally reflect 
varying terms. Information regarding the succeeditJg 5-year amortizations were not available. 
Equipment lease payments for the year ended June 30,2019 totaled 359,709. 

Note 11. Changes in Agency Funds - Deposits Due Others 

Agency Ftmd 

Balance 
at 

Inly 1, 2018 Additions 

Balance 
at 

Deletions June 30,2019 

Student Activily 

Total 

222,903 $ 195,857 $ 365,308 I 53,452 

$ 222,903 $ 195,857 $ 365,308 $ 53,452 

Note 12. Due To/From Other Funds 
Individual balances due to/ficom other funds at June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Due T o Other Funds Due From Other Funds 
Governmental Funds 

General Fund $ 

Master Plan Fund 

Other Non-major Governmental Funds 

Non-major Capital Project Funds 

Proprietary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds 

Total $ 

389,700 

1,690,936 

963,412 

4,925,906 

(390,612) 

5,565,180 

2,014,162 

7,579,342 7,579,342 

The primary purpose of interfimd receivables/payables are to loan monies feom the General 
Fund to individual fimds through operating transfers. All interfund payables are expected to 
be repaid within the next fiscal year. 
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Note 12. Due To/Ptom OtLec Funds (Contiimed) 

Equity in Pooled Cash. 
To the extent possible, cash is pooled into cottiinon pooled accounts in ondei to caasitrdze 
investment oppottanili.es. Each fund -whose fimds ate deposited in the pooled cash account 
has equity thetdn. Pooled cash at June 30,2019, -was as foHo-ws: 

Governmental Activities 

GenetalFund . ' . I 54,445,614 

Pass-Through Fund 

Genetal Obligation Fund 12,505,490 

QSCB Fund 12,803,853 

HurdcaneKatrinaRestotationFund 15,947,750 

Capital Projects Fund 35,953,767 

Mkster Plan Fund (17,079,522) 
Direct-Run Schools R&M Capital Projects 63,232,069 

Federal Grant Fund (9,536,375) 

Other Governmental Funds, Net 9,317,849 

• hntetnal Service Funds, Net 3,352,897 

$ 180,943,391 

Business-Type Activities 
libers $ 1,156,708 

Note 13. Act No. 151 

Act No. 640 o£ the 2010 Regular Session o£ the Louisiana Legislatare allovred the School 
Board to exclude certain costs ftom the amount o£ local revenues that it would othetwise 
he requited to traus£er to the Recovery School District to fund cettain l^cy cost arisiag 
£com Hurricane Kktrina. and Act 35 of the 2010 EsTtaordinaty Legislative Session. The 
exclusion -was limited to f 6 .million each year, although any excess in cost could be carried 
over to the next fiscal year. 

The exclusions pro-vided for in Act No. 640 were to expire rpon 1) extinguishmeat o£ the 
excluded costs, 2) any action of the School Board to reduce the constitutional tmllage ftom 
the level in effect for Fiscal Year 2009-2010, 3) twelve months foHowing settlement of the 
Orleans Parish School Board Special Community Disaster Loans, or 4) twenty tax years ffom 
the rol forward miOage adoption, whichever occurred first On Narch 7,2014, the Orleans 
Parish School Board SpecM Community Disaster Loans were forgiven, which triggered 
expiration of the exclusions, effective Match 7,2015. 
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Note 13. Act No. 151 (Continued) 

Subsequently, the Louisiana Legislatuie enacted ActNo. 151 of 2016 Regular Session, which 
retained the exclusions provided by Act No. 640, lowered the annual madmum amount of 
excluded local dollars ftom $6 million to $3 million, and modified the triggers for expiration 
of the exclusion. Act No. 151 provided for the expiration of the exclusions upon 1) 
extinguishment of the excluded costs, 2) any action of the School Board to reduce the 
constitutional milkge from the level in effect for Fiscal Year 2009-2010, or 
3) June 30, 2030, whichever occurs first. 

Legacy costs as of June 30, 2019 were as follows: 

Legacy Costs 2019 
Carryover from Prior Fiscal Year | 
Employer's Cost of Health Insurance for Retired Participants in the Board's Plan 

as of July 1,2009, not to Exceed 25% of Total Premium Costs 422,577 
A Supplement of $200 per Month for Health Insurance Premiums for Retired Participants 

in the Board's Plan as of July 1,2013 214,200 
Workers' Compensation Claims Filed Against the Board Prior to August 29,2005, 

including Adrninistrative Costs ' 539,583 
Costs to Defend Legal Claims Against the Board Prior to August 29,2005 55,440 
Legal Claims Against the Board after August 29,2005 Attributable to Hurricane Katrina 

or Act 35 of 1995 1st Extraordinary Session 87,636 
Fee of One-Tenth of One Percent of Total Ad Valorem and Sales Taxes Collecte; 310,444 

Total 1,629,880 

Maximum Allowed (3,000,000) 
Carryover to Next Fiscal Year $ 
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Note 14. Act No. 543 
I 

Act 543 of -die 2014 Regular Session of the Louisiana L^slature requires the estabiishment of 
a school fedHties preservation progtanx (the "program"). The program is to be ftmded by the 
follovTing sources: 

• The proceeds of local sales taxes at a rate equivalent to the rate being used as of July 
1,2014, by the OPSB to pay school fecQily debt. 

• The proceeds from propertv taxes dedicated to capital outlay and authorized by voters 
afterjuiy 1,2014. 

Each year, OPSB is required to transfer to the RSD a proportion of the frinds equal to the 
proportion of students attending school on campuses that are in the school district and that are 
controlled by the RSD to the total number of students attending school on campuses that are 
in the school district that are controled by either OPSB or the RSD, based on the February P' 
student enrollment counts. 

Effective July 1, 2018, the return of certain schools and facilities from the RSD to OPSB 
occurred. Accordingly, there were no student enrollment allocations or related tax revenue 
allocations between the School Board and the RSD for the fiscal year ended June 30,2019. 

Student enrollment comparisons reflecting the return of school campuses are as follows: 

2018 2019 
OPSB Controlled Campuses 
RSD Controlled Campuses 

Total Students Enrolled in die School District 

1 14,804 $ 44,561 
25,920 

1: 40,724 44,561 

A comparison schedule of the amount of tax revenues generated for the program follows: 

Source of Funds: 2018 2019 
Sales Taxes | 8,763,289 $ 11,415,296 
Ad Valorem Taxes 6,946,949 9,780,699 

Total Funds Available $ 15,710,238 $ 21,195,995 

During the prior fiscal year 2018 the School Board retained 36% or $5,710,990 of the total revenues 
based upon prorated student enrollment. The School Board retained 100% of the 2019 tax revenues 
as a result of reunification. 
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Note 15. Litigation and Contingencies 

Claims 
The School Boafd is a defendant in several wofkears' compensation, personal iojnty, pensonnel 
action and contractual la^wsuite. Provisions for losses for these lawsuits are recorded in the 
jSnancial statements, principally in long-term debt obligations. Management and legal counsel 
for the School Board bdieve that the potentM claims against the School Board, not cov-ered by 
insurance, are covered by the recorded labiiity. 

Federal and State Grants 
In the normal course of operations, theSchoolBoardreceiyes gmntfbnds from various Federal 
and State agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authoriiy, 
the purpose of "whidh is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of 
funds. Such audits could lead to requests for rdrnbursement by the grantor agency for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. 

FEMA 
On August 29, 2010, President Obama announced the Federal Fimergency Management 
Agency's (FEMA) award of $1.8 bilEon to the New Orleans Public Schools. This jEunding, plus 
an additional $206 million not discussed in the announcement, represent EEMA's total funding 
to setde the School Board and the Recovery School District's (EISD) eligible disaster damage 
claim for school jhcSities and contents. 

In addition to addressing damages to fecOities and contents, this award has also supported and 
will continue to srpport temporary leased Edlities, temporary modular school campuses, 
temporary busing costs, and other expenses that are necessary due to the impact of Hurricane 
jEattina. - • 

The majority of the FEMA funding awarded to the School Board and RSD has been structured 
into Altemativ-e Projects under FEMA's PubEc Assistance program, which aEows appEcants to 
designate alternative ways to utiExe FEMA finding to support the best interests of the 
community. This altsmate funding vehicle wiE provide ma.itim.um flestibiEty to HcdEtate the 
implementation of the School FaciMes Master Plan for Orleans Parish. The School Board has 
been issued in excess of 200 FEMA Project Worksheets which authorized or obligated $376 
million. As of June 30,2019, the School Board has been rdmbursed $322 million. "Ihe Sdiool 
Board plans on using the majority of the remaining authorized monies to fend Phase One of 
the Master Plan, and to recover propedy procured and executed work in the years immediately 
foEowing the disaster. 

Construction Contracts 
At June 30, 2019, the School Board had construction commitments of approximately 
ntilEon. These commifin.ents wiE he paid out of the Capital Projects Funds. 
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Note 16. Ittteiftm.d Opetatiiig Ttaosfets 

latec&md opetaiiag ttansfets fo£ tiie yeax ended Jime 30,2019, "wece as foHows: 

Taansfeis la Tiansfeacs Oat 

GovetaDaealal Funds 
General Ftrnd, $ 8,892,739 $ 1,300,000 

Capital Projects Ftmd - 2,171,912 

Facilities FreseraationFtind - 556,076 

Federal GvuvtFwd - 885,127 

Non-Major Govemtnenlal Funds 
Non-!Ma|or Special Kevenue Funds - 7,115 

Non-Major Capital Project Funds 27,491 5,300,000 

Proprietary Funds 0 -

Fiductaty Funds 1,300,000 -

Total $ 10,220g30 $ 10.2201230 

Opetatirig ttaasfets betweeti ihe Genetal Fond and otiiet fbnds are genetalfy roade to provide 
stppletaeaital funds for progtato operations. 

Note 17. Risi: Management 
Hie School Board is exposed to vadoiis rishs of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or 
destracdon of assets; errors or omissions; vrorkets' compensation and health insurance for its 
employees. The School Board has established the follovdng intemal service funds to account 
for and finance these fists of loss: 

Employee Health instrfance/Retiree Health Insurance 
These fbnds are used to account for the employee, retiree and employer contfibutions to, and 
the payment of self-insured ckims for the Health Insurance Plan. On February 1, 2006, the 
School Board offered a self-insured employee medical and Health Insurance Plan financed 
solely by employees and the School Board The plan has a $200,000 stop-loss provision, 
whereby any claims incurred in excess of the amount for a single insured is coTered by 
reinsurance purchased by the School Board Prior to February 1, 2006, the School Board 
offered a fblly-insured Health Insurance plan. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance 
This fund is used to account for claims arising firom employment related injuries prior to July 
1, 2006. The School Board maintained a self-insurance plan, which induded the purchase of 
insurance for claims in excess of f500,000 per occurrence. The workers' compensation limit 
for each acddent is the statutory amount At June 30,2019, there were 18 active daims. 

Sdf-insured litigated daims are not reported in internal service fbnds, but the revenues and 
expenses for non-litigated daims are in the General Fund The estimate for litigated claim 
hablHties is reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 
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Note 17. Risk Management (Continued.) 

Woikeis' Compensation Insurance (Continued) 

A reconciliation o£ the tmpaid daims EabiEty, iadndiDg the litigated daittis tesetve, as ofjnne 
30^ is as foUows: 

Employee Retitee Woifcets' 
Healfii Health CompeosatiDii litigated 

2jastitafl.ce Fwtid Insxitance Ftmd Fwad Claims Total 

Unpaid Claims, as Ptevionsly 
Recited June 30,2018 $ 

CuirentYeat Claims 
incmred and Changes 
in Estimates 

Claims Paid 

108,673 $ 566,327 834,644 $45,399,586 | 46,909R30 

:^710,496 

(2,802,096) 

2201,422 

(2268,822) 

2,316,386 

(2583,048) 

(6,091,054) 

(406,395) 

1,137251 

(8,060261) 

Unpaid Claims as of Yeat 
Ended June 30,2019 17,073 $ 498,927 $ 567,982 $38,902137 $ 39,986,120 

The aboTe unpaid daims as o£ June 30^ indude amounts fot daims incuited but not yet 
repotted, as determined firom actual daims paid subsequent to year-end as -well as an estimate 
based upon historical lag trends. 

Note 18. Deficits in Fund Equity 

The Master Plan Fund has a fond defidt o£ f 17,119,179. This fond deficit is expected to" be 
funded through reimbursement from fianding sources for allowable expenditures that have been 
incurred. 

Note 19. Fund Balances 

The nature and purpose of the fund balance desigaations are as follows: 

Nonspendable for Prepaid Items — Represents property insurance which will he used in the 
future fiscal period 

Nonspendable for Inventory — Represents the purchased food inventories in the Child 
NntdUoU Fund which wih he used in the future fiscal period. 

Restricted for Debt Service—This restriction represents the amounts restricted for payment of 
prindpal and interest maturing in future years on bonded debt 
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Note 19. Ftmd Balances 

Restdcted for Capital Ptojects — This testricdoti was established by fnnding ptovidets ot by enabling 
legislation fot capital pmrdhases which. wDl be nsed in fntote fiscal periods. 

CoiTimitted fot Capital Ptojects — This testricfion was establisbed by the School Boatd £o£ 
capital ptttchases which will be used in fhtuie fiscal p eriods. 

Assigned to Special Ptogratns — This teptesents an assigntnent of fimds that ate designated fo£ 
constmction and tenovation ptojects. 

Note 20. Tax Credit Ttansactions 
The School Board and OSEF hawe enteted into various tax ctedit transactions to provide 
financing fot the constmction and development of chatter schools located in New Orleans, 
Louisiana. OSFF is a public benefit corporation which will serve as leverage lender. OSPF is 
a blended component unit of the School Board as described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. The folowiDg is a summary of rdevant infortnation pertaining to tax credit 
transactions efiective as of June 30,2019: 

Phyllis S. Wheatley School 
In April 2013, the School Board and the RSD signed a cooperative endeavor agreement (CEA) 
to approve the transfer of the Phfllis S. "Wheatley School to the OSFF through a 99 year ground 
lease. Rentunder this lease ri |i per year of the temx The CEA. then required the transfer of 
the Pbillis S. "Wheatley School firom OSFF to the "Wheatley School Facihty Foundation, Inc 
(Wheatley QALICB) through the execution of a 65 year ground lease, with "Wheatley QALICB 
obtaining debt and equity financing to complete constmction of the Wheatley School Rent 
under this lease is |1 per year of the term. The CEA further required the School Board to 
provide sufficient funds to the OSFF, by dther loan or grant, as necessary to complete 
construction of the "Wheatley School Pursuant to this requirement, the School Board advanced 
123,911,217 to OSEF, f6,948,587 of which was loaned to "Wheatley NMTC Investment Fund 
LLC, with OSFF as the leveraged lender. The remaining |16,962,630 was provided to "Wheatley 
QALICB as a grant to he used solely and exclusively to pay for the constmction costs of the 
"Wheatley School See Note 5 for terms of the loan fi:om OSFF to "Wheatley NMTC Investment 
Fund LLC. 

McDonogh 42 Elementary School 
In October 2013, the School Board and the RSD entered into a CEA which provides for the 
transfer ofMciDonogh 42 Elementary School (McDonogh 42 School) to the OSFF through a 
99 year ground lease. Rent under this lease is $1 per year of the term. The CEA then requited 
the transfer of the McDonogh 42 Elementaiy School firom OSFF to the McDonogh 42 School 
Facility, LLC (McDonogh 42 QALICB) through the execution of a 65 year ground lease, with 
MDonogh 42 QALICB obtaining debt and equity finandag to complete constmction of the 
McDonogh 42 School Rent under this lease is fl per year of the term The CEA farther 
required the School Board to provide suffident funds to the OSFF, by either loan or grant, as 
necessary to complete construction of the McDonogh 42 School. 
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Note 20. Tax Ciedit Tiansactions, (Contmued) 

PntsTiaat to tbis teqtjifement, the School Boafd advanced |15,499,000 to OSEF, |6,849,600 of 
which was loaned to McDonogh. Elementajiy Ixrvestment Fund, LLC, with OSFF as tiie 
levetaged lendeac. Of the tetnattiing |8,650,000, fl,307,050 was ptovided to McDonogh 42 
QALICB as a grant to be used solely and exclusively to pay for the construction costs of the 
McDonogh 42 School See Note 5 for terms of the loan &om OSFF to McDonogh Elementaty 
InTestmeait Fund LLC. 

Avety Alexander School 
In May 2015, the School Board and the USD entered into a CEA which provides for the 
•transfer of land to the OSFF through a 99 year ground lease. Rent under this lease is |1 per 
year of the term. The CEA then requited the transfer of the land firom OSFF to Alexander 
School FadEty, IXC through the execution of a 65 year ground lease, with Alexander School 
Facility, IXC obtaining debt and equity financtDg to complete the construction of the Alexander 
School. The CEA further required the School Board to provide funding to finance the 
construction of the Alexander School Pursuant to this requirement, the School Board granted 
16,296,500 to OSEF which was then loaned to COCRF Investor 41, IXC, wdfh OSFF as the 
leveraged leader. See Note 5 for terms of the loan from OSFF to COCRF Investor 41, IXC. 

Drew Elementary School 
In February 2015, the School Board and the ESD entered into a CEA which provides for the 
sale of building improvements, and the transfer of land to the OSFF through a 99 year ground 
lease. Rent under this lease is |1 pet year of the term. The CEA then required the transfer of 
the land ftom OSFF to the Drew Elementary School FacSily QDESI^, IXC through the 
execution of a 65 year ground lease, and the sale of the building improvements to DESF, with 
DESF obtaining debt and equity financtog to complete the construction of the Drew 
Elementary School The CEA firrther tequked the School Board to provide funding to finance 
the purchase of the huiltfeg improvemen-te, costs for histoEc rehabilitation and renovation of 
the Drew Elementary School, and fees and expenses in connection with the project. Pursuant 
to this requirement, the School Board granted |18,997,332 to OSFF which was then loaned to 
DESF, with OSFF as the leveraged lender. See Note 5 for terms of the loan firom OSFF to 
DESF. In addition, tinder the charter lease subsidy agreement entered into as of June 1,2015, 
OSFF is to provide a subsidy to the charter school opetator, Arise Academy, to enable tbe 
operator to MlfiTl ite lease payment obhgaiion to DESK For the year ended June 3D, 2019, a 
total of1711,549 was paid as a subsidy. 
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Note 21 Tax Credit Transactioiis (Conttnued.) 

SopHe B. Wrigiit Hipib. School 
In April 2016, die ScAool Board and the USD entered into a CEA -wHdi provides for the sale 
ofbrdlding improTements, and the ttansfer ofland to the OSEF throtigh a 99 year grotind lease. 
Reat under this lease is f 1 per year of the term. The CEA then requited the transfer of the 
land ftom OSFF to the SBW School Facility, LX.C. (SBWSI^ through the execution of a 65 
year gtound lease, and the sale of the building itnprovements to SBWSF, vrLfh SBWSF obtaining 
debt and equity financing to complete the construction of the Sophie B, Wright High School 
The CEA further requited the School Board to provide funding to finance the purchase of the 
building improvements, costs for historic rehabihtation and renovation of the Sophie B. Wright 
High School, and fees and espenses in connection -with the project Pursuant to this 
requirement, the School Board gtanted |28,952,908 to OSFF vrhich WBS -then loaned to 
SBWSF, vrith OSFF as the leveraged lender. See Note 5 for terms of the loan fcom OSFF to 
SBWSF. In addition, under the charter lease subsidy agreement entered into as of Aprfl, 28, 
2016, OSFF is to provide a subsidy to the charter school operator, hastitate for Academic 
Excellence, to enable the operator to fulfill its lease payment obligation to SBWSF. For the 
year ended June 30,2019, a total of |1,100,089 vi^as paid as a subsidy. 

Booker T. Washington School 
In June 2017, the School Board and the RSD entered into a CEA -vhich provides for the 
construchon of a building, and the transfer ofland to the OSFF through a 99 year gtound lease. 
Rent under this lease is |1 pet year of the term The CEA then requited the transfer of the 
land from OSFF to the Booker T. Washington School Facility, LL.C. (BTWSF) through the 
execution of a 65 year ground lease, obtaining debt financing to complete the construction of 
the Booker T. Washin^on High School. Ihe CEA further requited the School Board to 

• provide funding to COCRF Investor 82, LLC (COCRI^ to make certain investments to the 
Sub-CDE to ultimately fund the construction and development of Booker T. Washington 
School. Pursuant to this requitement; the School Board gtanted |I3,868,212 to OSFF which 
was then loaned to COCRF Investor 82, LLC (COCR^, with OSFF as the leveraged lender. 
See Note 5 for terms of the loan fcom OSFF to COCRF. In addition, under the charter lease 
subsidy agreement entered into as of June 13,2017, OSFF is to provide a subsidy to the charter 
school operator, EJPP New Orleans, Inc., to enable the operator to fulfill its lease payment 
obligation. No payments were made during the year ended June 30,2019. 

Tubman 
In December 2017, the School Board and the RSD entered into a CEA which provides for the 
design, construction and rehabilitation nf the Harriet Tubruan School Facility, and the transfer 
ofland to the OSFF through a 99 year ground lease as well as the improvements of the building. 
Rent under the grormd lease totaled a value of f84,100. The CEA then recjuired the tmnsfer 
of the land firom OSEF to the Tubman School Facilities, L.L.C. (TSF) throxgh the execution 
of a 65 year ground lease, obtaining debt financing to complete the design, construchon and 
rehabilitation of the Harriet Tubman School Fachity. The CEA further requited OSFF to 
provide fbndmg to TSF to finance all or a portion of the purchase price and the costs of 
construction to the contractor. 
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Note 21. Tax CteditTtansactions (Contitmed) 

Pqts'uaiit to this teqxiitetaent, OSFF loaned a total o£ $17,603,367 to TSF, •with OSEF as •flh.e 
levetaged lendet. See Note 5 £ot tetms o£ the loan firom OSEF to TSF. la addition, nndet the 
charter lease subsidy agreetaent, OSEF is to jpro-vide a s-obsidy to the Harriet Tubman School 
FadOity o-wner to enable them to inl-fiTI its lease payment obligation. For the year ended June 
30,2019, a total o£ $355,014 -was paid as a subsidy. 

John McDonogh 
In December 2017, the School Board and the lElSD entered into a CEA which provides for the 
design, construction aadxeha.bjlita.lion of die John McDonogh School Facility, and the trans£er 
ofhad to the OSFF through a 99 year ground lease as well as the improvements o£ the building. 
Rent under this lease totaled a value o£ $1,256,700. The CEA then requited the transher o£ the 
land feom OSEF to the John MC School Facility, LL.C. (JMSIJ through the execution o£ a 65 
year ground lease, obtaining debt financing to complete the design, construction and 
rdiabihtation of the John McDonogh School Facility. The CEA fiirfher OSFF to pro-fide 
funding to JMSF to make certain investments to the Sub-CDE to ultimately fund the 
constructian and development of the John McDonogh School Facility. Pursuant to tlfo 
requiremen-h OSFF loaned to JMSF at total of $30,009,030, with OSEF as the leveraged lender. 
See Note 5 for terms of the loan fiom OSFF to JMSF. In addition, under the charter lease 
subsidy agreement;, OSEF is to provide a subsidy to the chailer school operator to enable the 
operator to fulfill its lease payment obligation. For the year ended June 30, 2019, a total of 
$718,431 was paid as a subsidy. 

Historic Tax Credits 
During the prefious year ended J-une 30, 2018, OSEF received $5,063,763 through the sale of 
historic tax credits donated to OSFF by OPSB who earned them through a project to 
rehabilitate a historic building kno-wn as the Fortier-Lusher School 

During the prefious year ended June 30, 2018, OSEF received $5,095,474 through the sale.of 
historic tax credits earned thro-ugh the above mentioned "Sophie B. Wrighfi" project 

Note 22. Tax Abatements 

The City of New Orleans maintains a Restoration Tax Abatement Program that profides 
commercial property owners and homeo-wners who expand, restore, improve, or develop an 
existing structure in a downtown development district, economic development district, or 
historic district the right to pay ad valorem taxes based on the assessed valuation of the property 
for the year prior to the commencement of the project for five years after completion of the 
work. D-uring the fiscal year ended June 30,2018, there were twenty-one tax abatements under 
the Restoration Tax Abatement Program -with exemptions. There were no additional tax 
abatements during the fiscal year ended June 30,2019. 
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Note 23. Sxibsequent Evente 

Siibseqaeat eTente were eTalmted by managetnent ijp to and incduding tlie issue date of this 
tepott, Decembet 18,2019. As mentioned ia Note 1, as of July 1,2018, the tetam of RSD 
scbools and fedEties ia Odeans Pafsb (Patisb) was completed, with the School Boatd 
establisbed as the p-ritna.ty goTeming anthotity fot piiblic edacation ia the Parish.. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARB 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Combiniog Balaaace Sheet - By Ftmd Type 
Non-Major Goverfitnental Ercads 
Jtttie30,2019 

Special Capital 

Revenue Projects Total 

Assets 

Due firom Other Fnnds 1 $ 3,287,851 $ 3,287,851 

Due &om Other Governments 575,582 - 575A82 

Equity in Pooled Cash 5,210,516 4,889,134 10,099,650 

InvEntoiy 54,135 - 54,135 

Total Assets 5,840,233 8,176,985 14,017,218 

liabiEties and Fund Balances 
liabilities 

Accounts Payable 634,686 293,146 927,832 

Due to Other Funds - 962,500 962,500 

Equity in Pooled Cash 781,800 - 781,800 

Unearned Revenues 90,704 - 90,704 

Total liabiMes 1,507,190 1,255,646 2,76:^836 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable: 

Inventoiy 54,135 - 54,135 

Restricted £OE 
Capital Projects . 6,921,339 6,921,339 

Assigned to: 

Special Programs 4,278,908 - 4,278,908 

Unassigned - - -

Total Fund Balances 4,333,043 6,921,339 11,254,382 

T otal liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,840,233 $ 8,176,985 $ 14,017,218 
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OREJEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Coinbioiog Statement of Revenues, Expenditares 
aotid Changes in Fnnd Balance - By Fund Type 
Non-Majot Govetnmental Funds 
Fiscal Yeaf Ended June 30,2019 

Special Capital 
Revenue Prefects Total 

Reveimes 
Local Soxirces 

Food Services 1 3,576,237 f $ 3476437 
Doaatioiis 2:^700 6425451 6,348,051 
Other 117,729 1420,044 1,637,773 

State and Federal 
Federal Soorces 513,583 - 513,583 
Other 419,173 - 419,173 

Total Reveaaes 4,691>7 7,845495 12,536,662 

Eixpenditntes 
JostrnctioTi 

Regnlar Education Programs • 115,270 • • - 115470 
Other Education Programs 421,350 - 421450 

Sr^port 
Stndent Services 72 - 72 
Instructional Staff Sr^^ort - - -
General Administmtion - 58,664 58,664 
School Adroinistration 528,308 - 528408 
Business Services - - -
Plant Services 40,991 387434 428,315 

Food Services 5,016,823 - 5,016,823 
Caprial Outlay- - 346,130 346,130 

Total Espenditnres 6422,814 792,118 6,914,932 

Excess of Revenues 
Over Expenditures • , (1,431,547) 7,053,277 5,621,730 

Other Fiiiaixcirig Sources and Uses 
Transfers Out (7,115) (5400,000) (5407,115) 
Transfers Out - Charter Schools • - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (7415) (5472408) (5479,623) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,438,662) 1,780,769 342,107 

Fund Balance Jnne 30,2018 5,771,705 5,140470 10,912475 

Fund Balance, June 30,2019 f 4433,043 $ 6,921,339 : 1 • 11454482 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOIHSIANA 
CocibiQing Balaace Sheet 
Noii-Majot Special Revenue Funds 
June 30,2019 

State 
and Local 

Child 
Nutrition Total 

Assets 
Dne j&om Othet Goveromente 
Equity in Pooled Cash 
Eiventoiy 

' $ 353,582 
182,110 

$ 222,000 
5,028,406 

54,135 

$ 575,582 
5,2.10,516 

54,135 

Total Assets 535,692 5,304,541 5,840,233 

liabiKties and Fund Balances 
liabilities 

Accounts Payable 
Equity in Pooled Cash 
Unearned Revenues 

140,965 
781,800 
90,704 

493,721 634,686 
781,800 
90,704' 

Total LiabiKties 1,013,469 493,721 1,507,190 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable: 

Inventoty 
Assigned to; 

Spedsl Ptogcams (477,777) 

54,135 

4,756,685 

54,135 

4,278,908 

Total Fund Balances (477,777) 4,810,820 4,333,043 

Total liabiKties and Fund Balances 535,692 $ 5,304,541 1 J 5,840,233 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

State Child 
and Local Nutrition Total 

Revenues 
Local Sources 

Food Services 1 $ 3,576,237 $ 3,576,237 
Donations 22,700 - ?,?,,700 
Other - 117,729 117,729 

State and Federal 
Minimurn Foundation Program - 41,845 41,845 
Federal Funds 102,608 410,975 513,583 
Other 419,173 - 419,173 

Total Revenues 544,481 4,146,786 4,691,267 

Expenditures 
Instruction 

Regular Education Programs 115,270 - 115,270 
Other Education Programs 421,350 - 421,350 

Support 
Student Services 72 - 72 
Instructional Staff Support - - -
School Admiuistration 528,308 - 528,308 
Business Services - - -
Plant Services ; 40,991 - 40,991 

Food Services - 5,016,823 5,016,823 

Total Expenditures 1,105,991 5,016,823 6,122,814 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures (561,510) (870,037) (1,431,547) 

Other Financing Sources and Uses 
Transfers Out (7,115) - (7,115) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (7,115) - (7,115) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (568,625) (870,037) (1,438,662) 

Fund Balance, June 30,2018 90,848 5,680,857 5,771,705 

Fund Balance, June 30,2019 $ (477,777) 1 4,810,820 $ 4,333,043 
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OIILEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
MEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
CnmliTfit-fig Balance Sheet 
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds 
June 30,2019 

G.O. 
Bond Capital 
Project Fund 

Harrab's 
Casino CDBG 

Ca-pitalProjects Ca-pdtal Projects Total 

Assets 
Due firom Other Ftmds 
Eqnity in Pooled. Cash 

} 

2^32,737 
1 . 3,287,851 

2,356,397 
f - f 3,287,851-

4,889,134 

Total Assets 2,532,737 5,644,248 8,176,985 

Xitahilities Pnad. Balances 

liabilities 
Accounts Payable 
Due to Other Funds 

Eqaiiy in Pooled Cash 

293,146 
962,500 

- 293,146 
962,500 

Total liabilities 293,146 962,500 1,255,646 

Fimd Balances 
Eestdcted for Capital Projects 
Committed for Capital Projects 
Unassigned 

2,239,591 4,681,748 
-

6,921,339 

TotalEund Balances 2,239,591 4,681,748 6,921,339 

Total liabilities and Fund Balances f 2,532,736 f 5,644,248 ! f - • f 8,176,985 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOIHSIANA 
Combiditxg Statement of Revenaes, Expenditotes 
and. Changes in Fund Balances 
Non-Majot Capital Projects Fnnds 
Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30,2019 

G.O. Hartah's 
Bond Capital Casino CUBG 
ProiectFund Capital Proiects Capital Projects Total 

Revemies 
Local Sotttc^ 

Donations 
Otter 

1 - 1 6,325,351 
1,520,044 

$ f 6,325,351 
1,520,044 

Total Revemies 7,845,395 7,845,395 

Expenditmes 
Support 

Plant Services 
Capital Outiay 

58,664 
366,937 
268394 

20387 
77,736 

- 58,664 
387324 
346,130 

Total Espenditnres 693,995 98,123 793II8 

Excess pieSdency) of Eevenues Over 
(Under) Expenditntes (693395) 7,747372 7,053377 

Other Financing Sources and Uses 
Transfers In 
Transfer Out' 
Transfers Out - Charter Schools 

-
(5300,000)" 

27,492 27,492 
(5,300,000) 

Total Other Finandng Sources (Use (5300,000) 27,492 (53723O8) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (693,995) 2,447372 27,492 1,780,769 

Fund Balance, June 30,2018 2,933,586 2334,476 (27,492) 5,140,570 

Fund Balance, June 30,2019 ! 1 2339,591 f 4,681,748 1 : - f 6,921,339 
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OBT.KANS PAIUrSH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOmSIANA 
Combint'tig Statement of Net Position 
Pioprietaiy Ftind Type - intetnal Service Funds 
June 30,2019 

Employee 
• Health 

Jhsmance 

Retitee 
Health 

TtiRTTi-g-nrp-

Wockeis' 
Compensation 

Insmance E-Rate 

Total 
Xntecnal 
Service 
Ftrnds 

Assets 
Oth.ec Eecewablcs 

Eqriily in Pooled Cash 
Pcepaid Items and OthecAsst 

f 300,000" 
636 

f 
733,255 

f 
^925,530 

349,781 

f 26,825 f 326,825 
3,659,421 

349,781 

Total Assets 300,636 733,255 3,275,311 26,825 4,336,027 

liabiKties aiidNetPosttion 
liahiEties 

Accounts PayaHe' 
Eqoi^ in Pooled Cash 
Qaitris Payable 
Unearned Revenue 

283,564 

17,073 

234,327 

498,927 

58,866 

567,982 
964,443 

26,825 603,582 

1,083,982 
964,443 

Total liabilities 300,636 733,255 1,591,292 26,825 2,652,007 

Net Position. 
Restcicted 1 f f 1,684,019 ^ f ' - $ 1,684,019 
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ORUEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
JSIEW ORLEANS, LOLflSIANA 
Combttitfig Statemettt of Revetraes, Esspenses 
and CLanges in Net Position 
Proptietaty Fund Tjpe - Xntemal Setvice Fnnds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Opetating- Income 

Nonopeiating- Revennes 
Tiaasfejs In. 

Total NonopeiatiDg Resrenaes 

Oiaiige in Net Position 

Net Positioa at June 30,2018 

Net Position at Jnae 30,2019 

Employee 
HeaMi 

Insntance 

Retiree 
Healii 

Tnsnrance 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Insnrance E-Rate 

Total 
Internal 
Service 
Ftmds 

Operating- Revenues 
Bmplcyet ConbdLbntions 
Retiree Cootrfhaions 
Employee Contobntioas 
"Wotfcets CompetisalionReknL-aisemen 

$ 2,788,629 

13,467 

$ 1,392,979 
80^443 

$ 702,575 

406,093 

$ $ 4,884,183 
808,443 
13,467 

406,093 

Total Operating Reven-nes 2,802,096 2,201,422 1,108,668 6,112,186 

Opexatiiig^ Expenses 
General A 
Strident Txangjortation Services 
Central Services 2,802,096 2,201,422 

554,553 

554,115 

_ 
554553 

5,557,633 

Total Operating Expenses 2,802,096 2^01,422 1,108,668 6,112586 

1,684,019 1,684,019 

$ - $ - f 1,684,019 $ $ 1,684,019 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Combining Statement of Cash. Flows 
Pioprietaiy Fund Type - Internal Service Ftmds 
Fiscal Year Ended Jime 30,2019 

Em^oyee 

Health 

Eismance 

Rethee 

Health 

lasnrance 

•Worieis' 

Con^eosation. 

Insxaaiice E-Bate 

Total 

hrtemal 

Service 

Fiutds 

Cash Hows hom Operating-Activities 

CashPiemiainsBecerved ^ 2,802,096 $ ^01,422 '$ 14.08,668 

Payments fox OainxsandBeaefits (2401,422) " (4108,668) 

$ 641^186 
(6,112,186) 

Net Cash (Used in) Kcovidedhy 

Operatii^ Activities 

Cadi Hows fiont Non-Capital 

Einancing Activities 

Tnterfimd TTansfrrs 

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by 

Non-Cs^pital Financing Activitie_ 

Net Decrease in Cash 

Cash, Banning of Year 

Cash, End ofYear 

Reconci&.tion of Operating Income 

to.Net Cash (Used in) Provided by 

Operating Activities 

Operating Income $ 

A^nstmenls to Reconcile Operating 

Income to Net Cash (Used in) Provided by 

Operating Activities: 

ixiZ 

OtiieE EficepraHes 

Eqoiiy in Pooled Cash (40,428) (18,778) 207,795 56,643 205432 

Px^aid Items and Other Assets - - - - -
Accounts Payable 132,(^8 86478 58,867 (56,643) 220,430 

Unearned Revenue - - - - -
Claims PayaHft/Sel-p-TnKnred (91,600) (67,400) (266,662) - (425,662) 

Net Cash (Used in) Bco-vided by 

Operating Activities 
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OBT,KANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
ComJbitiitig S^temeat of Assets and liabiEties 
Fidaciaty Fund Type - Ttust Funds 
Jane 30,2039 

Expendable 
Trost 

City-Wide 
Kirceptional 

Needs 
Trost 
Total 

Assets 
InvestiTiefits 
Dae firora Oiiet Faads 
Eqaily ia Pooled Cast 

1 292,821 
389,700 
29,442 

$ 

224,722 

$ 292,821 
389,700 
254,164 

Total Assets 711,964 . 224,722 936,686 

liabiEties 
Accoants Payable 71,584 71,584 

Total liabilities 71,584 71,584 

Net Position 
Held in Ttust for Vadoas Paiposes $ 711,965 1 153,138 ; 1 865,102 
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ORXEANS PAKISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW OBT .FANS, LOmSIANA 
CombifiTflg Statement of Changes in. Assets and liabiEties 
Fiduciaty Ftind Type - Tiust FiTtids 
June 30,2019 

Expendable 
Tmst 

CSly-rWide 
ExceptiotiaT 

Needs 
Tmst 
Total 

Additions 
Tnterestfl-nd TnvKstfn.ent Gaifi f 9,566 f $ 9,566 

Total Additions 9,566 9,566 

Deductions 
lostmclion 

Special ParograTns 
Snpport 

Genecal Adnunistcativs 
Business Sendees 

(1,500) 

1,304,27.5" 1,304,225 

(1,500) 

Total Deductions (1,500) 1,304,225 1,302,725 

Othei; financing Sontces and Uses 
Tiansfets In 1,300,000 1,300,000 

Total Other Financing Sotaces (Uses) 1,300,000 1,300,000 

Changes in Net Position 11,066 (4,225) 6,841 

Net Position - B^jbning 700,899 157,362 858,261 

Net Position - Ending $ 711,965 f 153,138 J i: 865,102 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOLOCSIANA 
Coinbidiag Statement of Assets and Liabilities 
Fiduciaiy Ftcad Type - Agency Funds 
Jxme 30,2019 

Student• Agency 
- Activity Total 

Assets 
Cast. $ 53,953 f 53,953 
Due firom Otfiet Fn-nds 913 913 

Total Assets 54,866 54,866 

liabilities 
Due to Student Gioujjs 54,866 54,866 

Total TiflbiEties 1 54,866 1 54,866 
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ORUEANS EAKISH SCHOOL BOAM) 
NEW ORLEANS, LOIHSIANA 
Combitiiiig Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
Fidnciaty Fund T3?pe - Agency Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

StniTetit Arrdvity 

Assets 

Cash 

Due &om Othec Funds 

Total Assets 

liabiEties 

Due to Student Gtot^s 

Total liabiEties 

Total Agency Funds 
Assets 
Cash 

Due firom Other Funds. 

Total Assets 

liabiEties . 

Due to Student Groups 

Total liabiEties 

Balance Additions/ Balance 

June 30,2018 Transfeas to OPSB Deductions June 30, 2019 

221^90 f 

913 

360,895 f 528,932 | 53,953 

913 

$ 222,903 _| 360A95 $ 528,932 $ 54,866 

$ 222,903 $ 360,895 | 528,932 $ 54,866 

$ 222,903 ._| 360,895 $ 528,932 $ 54,866 

221,990 I 360,895 f 528,932 f 53,953 
913 - - 913 

222,903 f 360,895 528,932 $ 54,866 

222,903 _| 360,895 | 528,932 $ 54,866 

222,903 I 360,895 $ 528,932 $ 54,866 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Compemation, Benefits and Other Payments 
to Agency Head 
For the Year Ended Tnne 30.2019 

Agency Head 
Dr. Henderson Lewis, Jr. 
Superintendent 

Pncpose ^ Amonnt 
Salary $ 273,798 
Benefits - Insmance 5,473 
Benefits - Retitenient 7^703 
Benefits - Other 6,789 
Per Diem 969 
Rdmbnrsements 60 
Travel 536 
Total $ 360,328 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Board Membeis' Compaosalioix 
For the Year Ended Juae 30,2019 

Board Membo: District Gross Salary 
HoBn A. BrowB, Sr., President 1 $ 10,800 
Ethan Ashley 2 9,600 
Sarah NewdDL Usdin 3 9,600 
Leslie EUison, "Vice President 4 9,600 
Ben Kleban 5 9,600 
Woody Koppel 6 9,600 
Nolan Marshall, Jr. 7 9,600 

1 68,400 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Compaiison Schedule 
General Fund 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Budget 

'fiance with 
Final Budget 

PosHhre 
Original final Actual (N^ative) 

$ 8,894703 $ 8,608,236 $ 8,765,864 $ 157,628 

7,277,484 7,043,102 7,042,234 (868) 

125,800 125,000 ' 273,995 148,995 
- 151,950 331,867 179,917 

7,862,479 8,026,690 10,680,327 2,653,637 

11.628,589 11J245.515 12,1«,680 897,165 
2,793,000 2,793,000 2,839,496 46,496 

2^19,876 4,660,926 1,350,431 (3,310,495) 
- - 62,888 62,888 

41,401,131 42.ffii4,419 43,489,782 835,363 

11,117,620 11,444,237 11,754.289 (310,052) 
3,993.162 3,971,063 3,605,503 3K,660 

2,853,421 2,862,658 2,737,877 124,781 

2,988J58 ^835,879 3,002,389 (166.510) 
1.155,567 1,475,889 1,547,513 (71.624) 
4,274,030 4,006,275 5,480,021 (1,473,746) 
3,718,298 3,338,646 3,659,202 (320,556) 
1.582,283 1,589,775 1.650,243 (60,468) 
3,602,628 3,468,293 3,220,920 247,373 

3,073,481 3,281,178 3,181,351 99,827 

6,597,446 7,254,696 7,050,519 • 204,177 

39,150 39,150 - 39,150 
2,146,737 1,238,317 1,627,875 (389,558) 

40,000 1.629,813 - 1,629,813 

47,182,581 48,435,869 48,517,702 (81,833) 

(5,781,450) (5,781,450) (5.027,920) 753.530 

Revenues 
Local Sources 

Ad Valoran Taxes 
Sales and Use Tax (Including Vehicle) 
Earnings on Invesfments 
Donafions 
OSier 

Sfateand Federal Sources 
Minimum Foundafion Bx^ran 

Rerenue Sharing 
Dfter 
Federal Sources 

Total Revenues 

Eigtendihires 
Current 

Insfrucfon 
Regular Programs 
fecial Programs 
Ottier Programs 

Support 
Student Sendees 
Insfracfonaf Sfaff Support 
General Adminisfraffon 
School Aiminisftafion 
Buaness Sendees 
SludentT ransporfefion Services 
Cen6al Sawces 
PlantSerwces 
PoodSetMces 

OBier 
DebtSenice 

Principal Refirement 

Total Erqjenditures 

Brcess peficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Bqsenditures 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Compaiisoii Schedule (Conimued) 
General Fund 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2019 

Original Final Actual 

^feriance1Mih 
Final Budget 

Posifive 
Jl^ative) 

Other Financing Sources (Ifees) 
Roceedsirom Insurance SefSements 
Juf^ents 
Transfers in 
t^proptiafionsfrom Prior Year 

BudgetsayFund Balance 

2,115,851 

3.665,589 

2,115,861 

3,665,589 

169,130 
25,548 

3,155,4® 

3,665,589 

169,130 
25,548 

1^39,627 

Total other Finandng Sources ^ses) 5,781,450 5,781,450 7,015,755 1,234,305 

Nrf Change In Fund Balance-Budgetary Basis $ - $ 1,987.®5 $ 1,987,835 

Fund Balance, June30,2017 64.673,298 

Less; tippi^riafionsfiora B^inning (tf Yes-
Fund Balance {3,655,589} 

Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis, JuneSO, 2018 $ 62,995,544 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Budgetary Comparison Sdhedule (Continued) 
Pass-Through Fund 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Budget 

Variance •wifli 
Final 

Positive 
OrtgtnaT Final Actual (Negative) 

Revenues 
Local Soujjces 

Adi Valctcem Taass 

O&ec 
State and. Federal Sources 

jtiHrnmum. Foundation Program. 
Otiier 

$ 173^10,889 
148,006,505 

184,606,792 

$ 173,510,889 
148,006,505 

184,606,792 

$ 173310,889 
148,006,505 

184,606,792 

1 

T otal Revenues 506,124,186 506,124,186 506,12il86 

Fkpenditutes 
Ourrent 
Sugport 

11,270,955 11,270,955 11370,955 

T otal Esqpeaditnres 11,270,955 11,270,955 11370,955 

Excess ofRevenues Over Expenditures 494,853,231 494,853,231 494,853331 

Olliet Financing Sources (Dses) 
Transfers Out- Chartsrs and BSD (489,756,904) (489,756,904) (489,756304) 

Total OlRer Finaaocing Sources (Uses) (489,756,904) (489,756,904) (489,756304) 

Net Change in FundBalance 5,096,327 5,096,327 5,096,327 -

Fund Balance, June 30, 2018 _ _ _ 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 5,09632T32 f 5,09632732 $ 5,09632732 3 

Budget amounts for the Pass-Through Fund were set equal to actual revenues and expenditures incurred 
since the fund, has no formal budget; all revenues recognized are fully expended or transferred out to 
other funds and to the Recovery School Djetiii;! and to charter schoofe. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOLFISIANA 
Btidgetaiy Comparison Sdiedole (Conrimied) 
Federal Grant Ftmd 
Fiscal Year Ended Jnne 30,2019 

Revenues 
I-ocalSonices 

Budget 
OrigtMl Final Actual 

Ofhei $ $ 
State and Federd. Souices 

O&er 461,778 461,778 461,778 
Federal Sources 12JZ64,009 12364,009 12364,009 

Tot^ Reveaues 12,725,787 12,725,78? 12,725,787 

Expenditures 
Coifient 

Instruction. 
E^nlar Pax^tams 319,330 319,330 319330 
Special Program s 1,042355 1,043355 3042355 
Other Programs 6,039,601 . 6,039,601 6,039,601 

Support 
Student Services 2,904567 2,904,567 3904367 
lustmctional Staff St^pport 1,023,317 1,023,317 3023317 
Business Services 6,694 6,694 6,694 
Student Tranfportatiop. Services 80,223 8O323 803^^ 
Central Serrices 46,105 46,105 46,105 

Total Expendrtures 11,462,192 11,462,192 11,462,1^ 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 1363394 1363394 3263,594 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfers Out (885,127) (885,127) (885427) 

Total Other Financtng Sources (Uses) (885427) (885,127) (885,127) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 378,467 378,467 378,467 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2018 (2)3,004) (203,004) (203,004) 

Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 175,463 $ 175,463 3 f 175,463 

Variance •with 
Final Budget 

Positwe 
(Negative) 

The budgeted amounts of revenues and expenditures for the Federal Giant Fund -were set equal to 
actual due to differences in giant periods compared to the fiscal period as well as extensions of giant 
periods. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Net OPEB liabiKty and Related Ratios 
Fiscal Yeai Ended Jnne 30,2019 

Total OPEB HabiEty 
Service cost 
Interest 
Qjfloges of benefit terms 
Differences between esjiected and actual esperience 
Changes of assumptions 
Benefit payments 
Net change in total OPEB Eabilrfy 

Total OPEB liability - b^pmning 

Total OPEB EabiEly - en (ting 

27,833 
234,061 

209,614 
(426,237) 

45,271 

6,233,373 

$ 6,278,644 

Corvered-employee payroll • f 21,296,000 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of 
covered-employee paytoE 29.48% 

Notes to Schednle: 
Befi^ Changes: There were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 30,2019. 

B:)<pected aniAciucdBy^msnce D^rences: There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended June 30,2019. 

This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years wfll be displayed as they become available. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of the School Boaid's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
TRSL LSERS LASERS TRSL LSBRS LASERS TRSL LASERS TRSL LASERS TRSL LASERS 

School Boacd's Proportion of the 
Net Pension Liability 

School Board's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability 

School Board's Covered Payroll 

0.52453% 0.027562% 0.00792% 0.48854% 0.062427% 0.01757% 0.57413% 0.01772% 0.60963% 0.01355% 0.58780% 0.01314% 

$ 51,550,913 f 184,152 $ 540,002 $ 50,084,418 | 399,487 $ 1,236,441 $ 67,385,420 $ 1391,786 $ 65,549,001 $ 921,741 $60,078,661 $ 821,567 

$ 20,652,670 $ 40,171 $ 936,072 $ 28,475,490 | 130,747 $ 371,666 $ 28,825,542 $ 385,050 f 27,306,350 $ 321,035 $ 26,191,785 $ 265,843 

School Board's Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of its 
Coveted Payroll 249.6% 458.4% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of the Total Pension Liability 68.2% 74.4% 

57.7% 175.9% 

64.3% 65.6% 

305.5% 

75.0% 

3327% 

62.5% 

233.8% 

59.9% 

361.5% 

57.7% 

240.1% 

62.5% 

287.1% 

62.7% 

229.4% 

63.7% 

309.0% 

65.0% 

*TRSL refers to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana. 

**The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

***GASB 68 requires this schedule to show information for 10 years. The School Board implemented GASB 68 in its 2015 fiscal year. Therefore, 
additional years wiU be displayed as they become available. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of School Board Pension Contributions 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
TBSL LASERS LSERS TRSL LASERS LSERS TRSL LASERS TRSL LASERS TRSL LASERS 

Contmcrnalty Required Contdbutlon $ 6,258,725 $ 58,078 f 48,787 3 6,426,368 3 102,989 3 9,148 3 7,345,326 3 133,222 3 7.655,504 3 143,239 3 7,683,825 3 118,394 

Contdbutjons in Relation to Contractually 
Required Contribution $ 6,255,726 $ 68,078 $ 48,787 3 6,426,368 3 102,989 3 9.148 3 7,345,326 3 133.222 3 7,655,504 3 143,239 3 7,683,825 3 118,394 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 3 3 3 - 3 - 1 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

School Board's Covered-Employee Payroll 320,652,670 3 936,072 3 40,171 324,063,560 3 277,746 3 37,240 328,475,489 3 371,665 328,825,542 3 386,050 3 27,306,350 3 321,033 

Contributions as a Percentage of 
Covered-Employee Payroll i0.i% ^ 6,2% '' 121.4% 26.7% 37.1% 24.6% 25.8% 35.8% 26.6% 37.2% 28,1% 36.9% 

*TRSL refers to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana. 

*'''GASB 68 requires this schedule to show information, for 10 years. The School Board implemented GASB 68 in its 2015 fiscal year. Therefore, 
additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

*** Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll for TRSL for each year displays a composite percentage for the three sub-plans: 
Regular, Plan B, and GRP. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Reqoired. Stipplemeatary Infoxmation 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Note 1. Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The School Board follows these procedures in establishing the bm^etary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

The General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds ate the only funds with legally required 
budgets- The General Fund budget and the Special Revenue Funds' budgets are adopted on an 
annual basis. These bu<%ets indb.de propos^ expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Annually, the Superintendent submits to the School Board a proposed anmtal appropriated 
budget for the General Fund and Special Revenues Funds. Public hearings ace advertised and 
conducted to obtain taxpayer comments and Ae proposed budgets are published. The budget 
is adopted by the Sdiool Board and, as required, is submitted no later flian September 30^ to 
the State Department of Education for approval. The Superintendent is authorized to move 
budgeted items within the functional categories, the legal level of control, but may not increase 
the total amount authorized The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund leveL 

Expenditures for Special Revenue Fund budgets, except for the Child Nutrition Program, may 
not exceed budgeted amounts by more than five percent unless a budget revision is approved 
by the State Department of Education. For the Child Nutrition Program, bud^t amendments 
follow the same requirements as the General Fund 

The Capital Projects Funds' bu%ets are adopted on a project basis, since such projects may be 
started and completed at anytime during the year or may extend beyond one fiscal year. Capital 
Projects Funds are allocated by project using architectural and ecgbeering estimates. All 
projects remain programmed and funded until completed or until the School Board decides to 
eliminate the proj ect Accordingly, budget and actual comparisons are not reported in the basic 

Statements for those funds. 

Buckets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, consistsnt with GAAP. 
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Encumbered appropriations 
at year end that have been approved by the Board are geneially expended during the next fiscal 
year's operations, assuming that the underlying liability is ultimatdy incurred. Budgeted 
amounts are as orighally adopted or as amended by the Board Legally, the Board must adopt 
a balanced budget; that is, total bud^ted revenues and other financing sources including fund 
balance must equal or exceed total budgeted expenditures and other financing uses. State 
statutes require the School Board to amend its budgets when revenues plus projected revenues 
within a fund are expected to be less than budgeted revenues by five percent or more and/or 
expenditures within a fund are expected to exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or 
more. 
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ORIEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Reqxated STq)plemeotafy Infotmatioii 
Fot the Year Ended Jtine 30,2019 

Note 2. Pension Plan Schedules 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

There no change of benefit terms noted for the 2017-2018 fiscal year for TRSL, LASERS 
andLSERS. 

Changes of Assnmptions 
For the 2018-2019 fecal year^ the discount rates used to measnre the total pension Eabihiy as 
of the measnrement date of Jnne 30,2018 changed as follows: 

Plan 2019 2018 
TSRL 7.,650% 7.700% 
LSERS 7.625% 7.125% 
LASERS 7.650% 7.700% 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Net Assets or Net Position by Component 

Last Ten Years 

Table 1 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 
Governmental activities 

Invested in capital, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total governmental activities net assets 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total governmental activities net position 

Business-type activities 
invested in capital, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type activities net assets 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total business-type activities net position 

Total primary government 
invested in capital, net of related debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primary government net assets 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primary government net position 

$ 33,271,630 
169,781,270 

(144,308,667) 

$ 85,580,057 
168,501,791 
(131,324,898) 

$43,680,437 
135,620,037 
(22,041,015) 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

58,744,233 122,756,950 157,259,459 - - - - - - -

-
-

- 93,173,834 
237,667,345 

(173,980,479) 

189,781,631 
107,611,824 
(24,863,638) 

329,572,642 
115,894,057 
(95,115,347) 

404,272,337 
131,786,712 
(59,097,391) 

418,617,089 
95,543,489 

(22,053,036) 

589,598,722 
125,624,752 

(1,400,554) 

1,376,151,697 
164,048,938 
(21,386,176) 

- - - 156,860,700 272,529,817 350,351,352 476,961,658 492,107,542 713,822,920 1,518,814,459 

- 6,270,213 6,147,959 - - - - - - -

_ 110,640 471,855 _ " 
- 6,380,853 6,619,814 - - - - - - -

- - - 6,130,365 6,932,965 6,845,190 7,079,785 7,020,394 6,898,485 6,781,769 

- _ 7,835,395 7,084,210 26,329,574 72,877,382 91,429,611 133,875,609 136,193,931 

- - - 13,965,760 14,017,175 33,174,764 79,957,167 98,450,005 140,774,094 142,975,700 

33,271,630 
169,781,270 

(144,308,667) 

91,850,270 
168,501,791 

(131,214,258) 

49,828,396 
135,620,037 
(21,569,160) 

-
- - - -

-
-

58,744,233 129,137,803 163,879,273 - - - - - - -

-
- -

99,304,199 
237,667,345 

(166,145,084) 

196,714,596 
107,611,824 
(17,779,428) 

336,417,832 
115,894,057 
(68,785,773) 

411,352,122 
131,786,712 
13,779,991 

425,637,483 
95,543,489 
69,376,575 

596,497,207 
125,624,752 
132,475,055 

1,382,933,466 
164,048,938 
114,807,755 

$ $ $ $170,826,460 $286,546,992 $383,526,116 $556,918,825 $590,557,547 $854,597,014 $1,661,790,159 

GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, was implemented in the 2012-2013 fiscal year. 
GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, was implemented in the 2014-2015 fiscal year. 
GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits, was implemented in the 2017-2018 fiscal year. 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Changes In Net Assets or Net Position 

Last Ten Years 

20Q9-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 

Expenses 
Governmental activities 

Instruction: 
Regular education programs $10,955,611 $ 12,466,534 $ 14,458,932 $ 16,614.774 $ 15,196,874 $ 17,578,429 $ 21,516,728 $ 16,174,134 $ 16,385,886 $ 9,177,615 
Special education programs 4,338,820 5,670,809 21,125,509 6,477,596 7,721,568 7,419,801 7,264,584 7,052,908 5,896,471 5,189,814 
Other education programs 21,222,883 19,771,014 10,258,296 27,251,809 20,961,766 22,087,652 18.789.952 18,880,160 13,294,896 11,946,578 

Support services: 
Pupil support services 4,049,180 4.829,455 6,416.504 6,056,891 6,946,863 8,467,577 8,683,924 8,152,528 6,861,210 11,150,900 
instructional staff services 7,033,294 7,501,398 8,522,463 7,479,352 8,982,741 8,664.341 7,487,693 7.405,242 5,155,020 3,537,557 
General administration sen/ices 6,889,093 12,123,062 14,163,953 12,975,305 14,269,942 15,567,842 17,641,687 16,100,470 22,164,593 26,240,119 
School administration services 1.156.269 1,946,446 2,888,897 3,009,496 3,121,943 3,024,129 3,377,102 4,281,376 4,680,218 1,848,094 
Business sen/ices 2,561,389 2,198,940 2,155,218 2,110,917 2.763,926 2,694,690 2,638,366 1,956,006 2,116,559 2,535,423 
Plant operation and maintenance 5,179,617 10,508,007 14,699,628 9,232,493 11,808,290 10,028,975 11,033,319 9,622,990 10,633,349 20.664,505 
Student transportation services 2,590,111 3,154.365 4,520,742 3,941,658 4,096,178 4,387,320 5,307,002 5,459.981 4,068,820 1.901,265 
Central services 2.760,877 2,787,098 3,207,763 3.461,728 4.986.110 4,133,550 3,010,617 3,087,937 4.069,937 3,014,076 
Other 3,810,999 530,941 563,236 - - 1,300,000 1,300,000 2,837,248 1,627,875 5,842,446 

Food services 3.667.628 3,864,930 4,661,895 5,452,790 6,051,146 6,382,602 6,050,027 5,034,815 4.291,312 5,016,822 
Transfer to RSD^ Schools 114,282,094 120,355,997 120,798,587 126,860,121 153,982.428 150,173,246 161,061,267 190,496,425 234.846,691 6,955,218 
Transfer to Charter Schools 60,364,375 62,757,373 68,313,150 68,879,766 88,613,863 92,299,362 106,540,381 121,911,362 34,195,443 482,488,855 
Other - - - 21,914.918 10,241,702 11,518,514 9,408.816 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 13.574.743 9.444.926 11,903,516 5.030,902 2.621.318 2.576.631 1,962.020 1470.071 935,816 280.629 

Total expenses - governmental activities 264,436,983 279,911,295 308,656,289 326,750,516 362,366,658 368,304,661 393,073,485 419,923,653 371,224,096 597.789,916 

Business-type activities 
Rental properties - 352,599 1,256,517 1,274,741 1,233,224 1,220,000 1,178,919 1,671,536 1,899,308 4,844,528 
Transfer to other LEA"*^ - - . 16,962.630 1,307.050 6.761.118 4.569.625 2.014,162 1,719.964 . 

Total expenses - business-type activities - 352,599 1,256,517 18,237,371 2,540,274 7,981,118 5,748,544 3,685,698 3,619,272 4,844,528 

Total expenses - primary government 264,436,983 280,263.894 309,912,806 344,987,887 364,906,932 376,285,779 398,822,029 423,609,351 374,843,368 602.634.444 

Program revenues 
Governmental activities 

Charges for services: 
Regular education programs - - - - - -
Pupil support services 593,649 863,776 758.292 - 266,309 372,787 252,118 203,639 -
Student transportation services - - - - 12.507 600 - -
Central services 141,287 106,369 145,518 8,354 10,105 10,105 5,052 - . 
Food services 555,079 551,235 595,822 582,504 630,642 458,597 422,884 120,955 119,571 3,576,237 

Operating grants and contributions: 
Regular education programs 2,420,589 3,026,776 494,651 1,101,834 813,655 887.451 986,065 689,134 4,448,242 831,205 
Special education programs 4,367.285 3,505,679 16,384,170 2.833,708 3,314,709 2,553,324 2,188,042 2,417,834 4.206,116 1,904,539 
Other education programs 32,295,775 20,408,122 7,167,060 24,146,979 15,682,404 16,110,792 14,368,041 14,033,887 27,493,562 10,443,497 
Pupil support services 5,215,046 3,457,800 3,585,847 3,607.061 3,800,312 4,111,504 4.138,236 3,997,927 9,419,120 5,198,982 
Instructional staff services 9,881,871 7,054,891 6.170,010 5,315,753 6,011,898 5,539,539 4.278,769 4,836.223 9,680,869 1,818,902 
General administration services 331,986 248,228 210,708 295,697 419,009 352,187 369,328 397,710 514,709 856,745 
School administration services 104,277 55,349 52,622 334,762 102,785 68,414 70,700 105,758 108,685 60,341 
Business services 147,535 45,022 39.917 68,270 86,759 69,175 62,877 53,853 61,687 93,925 
Plant operation and maintenance 517,960 235,226 240,861 210,401 352,473 235,909 232,672 237,705 246,929 674,701 
Student transportation services 1,101,617 212,942 367,150 371,778 198,855 244,478 271,532 357,111 116,396 195,615 
Central services 254.722 159,214 160,795 180,201 236,695 129,992 95,101 122,280 270,191 175,156 
Food services 3,738,920 3,655,608 4,444,563 5,294,818 5,960,000 6,735,153 6,508,667 5,540,683 4,813,688 410,975 

(Continued) 
1. RSD - Recovery School District 
2. LEA - Local education agency 
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Orieans Parish School Board 
Changes In Net Assets or Net Position 

Last Ten Years 

Table 2 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 

Program revenues 
Governmental activities 

Capital grants and contributions 
Regular education programs 
Special education programs 
Other education programs 
Pupil support services 
Instructional staff services 
Genera! administration services 
School administration services 
Business services 
Plant operation and maintenance 
Student transportation services 
Central services 

Total program revenues - governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Rental properties 

Total program revenues - primary government 

Net (Expense) Revenue 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total net (expense) revenue - primary government 

General revenues 
Governmental activities 

Taxes 
Ad valorem (property) taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
State revenue sharing 

Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) 
Interest and investment earnings 
internal sen/ice funds net operating profit (loss) 
Contributions and donations 
Donation of capital assets 
Judgments 
Insurance Proceeds 
Proceeds from insurance settlement 
Miscellaneous 
Extraordinary Item-debt forgiveness 
Extraordinary Item-community disaster loan forgiveness 
Extraordinary item-community disaster loan refund 
Transfers 

Total general revenues - governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Interest and investment earnings 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Contributions and donations 
Transfers 

Total general revenues - business-type activities 

Total general revenues - primary government 

$ 932,288 $ 1.430.486 $ 2.165.271 $ 1.566.221 $ 15,177,826 $ 10,729,799 $ 15,165,679 $ 4.241,078 $ 1.327.706 $ 1,633.645 
369,220 649,713 3,164.049 610,622 7,711,891 4.529,015 5,119,835 1.849,369 477,776 923.804 

1,806,002 2,265.218 1,536.424 2.568.940 20,935,493 13,482,210 13,242,530 4,950,635 1.077,251 2,126,529 
344,573 553.318 961,024 570.963 6,938,156 5,168,573 6.120,139 2,137,704 555,946 1,984,896 
698,512 859.447 1,276,442 705,054 8,971.482 5,288.677 5,277,075 1,941,756 417,698 629,697 
686,241 1.389,049 2,121,390 1.??3,140 14,252,058 9,502,545 12,433.270 4,221,763 1.795.940 4.670,826 
98,395 223,007 432.681 283,695 3,118,030 1,845.915 2,380.069 1.122.635 379.226 328.967 

217,966 251,936 322,795 198,989 2,760,459 1.644,827 1.859,432 512.891 171,499 451,314 
440,769 1,203.918 2,201,620 870,317 11.793,489 6.121,643 7,775,914 2.523,279 861,593 3,678,349 
220,411 361.401 677,089 371,567 4.091,043 2,678,002 3,740.197 1,431,681 329,686 338,431 
234.942 317.031 460.439 326.326 4.979.861 2.523.102 2.121.783 809,699 329,777 536.515 

67,614,917 53,090,761 56,155.210 53.639,600 138,627.152 101,394,315 109,491.000 58,862.241 69,223.863 43,543,793 

402,191 1,495.171 1.572.356 1.546.299 1.484.828 1,432.970 1,272.433 1.267.189 4.117.240 

67,514.917 53,492,952 57.650,381 55,211,956 140.173,451 102,679,143 110,924,030 60,134,674 70,491,052 47,661,033 

(196.922,066) (226,820,534) (252,501,079) (273,110,916) (223.739.506) (266,910,346) (283,582.425) (361.081,412) (302.000.233) (554,246,123) 
- 49,592 238.654 (16.665,015) (993.975) (6.498.290) (4.315.574) (2.413.265) (2.352.083) (727.288) 

(196.922.066) (226,770,942) (252,262,425) (289,775,931) (224.733,481) (273,406,636) (287.897,999) (363,474,677) (304,352,316) (554,973,411) 

110.617.622 110,794,005 120,447,536 133,691,064 136.834.464 148,298,545 158,311,016 165,148,640 169,281,560 196,576,386 
84.919.257 95,109.617 90.820.786 108.119.002 113.721,226 123,557,264 127,844,470 132,079,437 139,638,108 174.439.910 
1,625,992 2,777.950 2,253.417 2,455.088 2,719.832 2,759,731 2,690,500 2,829.764 2,839,496 2,839,631 

35,520,337 38,921,305 42,342.377 46.048,138 51,497.324 56,596.779 64,377.681 66,456,119 24.693.985 190,637.424 
1,418,916 487,919 370.195 175,947 135,717 65,351 75,553 236,795 870.048 1,631,395 
(947,997) (734,781) (129,079) . - - 1,684,019 - -

- - . - - - 158,318,974 777,248,187 
. - - - 70.628,578 43,359,340 - - -

- . 20,499.056 1,089,834 25,548 31,018 
18.000.000 - - 12.830.745 - - -

. - _ - . . . - 169,130 1,431 
1.040,590 3,466.640 22,600,106 6,208,367 9.030,517 8.319,615 14.755,785 7.523,709 34,467,391 17.132,280 

- 46,341.764 8,298,250 - . - - - - -
- - 8,636,118 - - - -

- 4,892.601 - - -
- (6.331,168) . (23.985.449) (889.921) (10,662.440) (21.720.670) (62.518) (1.300.000) 

252.094,717 290,833.251 287,003,588 272,712,157 339.408,623 399,563,423 410,192,731 376,985,799 530,304.240 1,359,237,662 

. 93 307 25,512 155,469 360,047 868,325 1,428,416 2.042,398 2.928,894 

. - 14,631,392 22,838,667 - 32.111,655 -
- - - - - . 5,670,315 19,415,169 10,522,119 

6,331.168 - 23.985.449 889,921 10.662.440 21.720.670 62.518 

6,331.261 307 24,010.961 1,045.390 25,653,879 51,097,977 20,906,103 44,676.172 2.928,894 

252.094.717 297.164.512 287,003,895 298,723,118 340,454,013 425.217.302 461.290,708 397,891,902 574,980,412 1.362,166.556 
(Continued) 
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Orieans Parish School Board 
Changes in Net Assets or Net Position 

Last Tan Years 

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 

Change in net assets 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 
Primary govemment 

$55,172,651 $64,012,717 $34,502,509 $ 
6.380.853 238,961 _ 

$55,172,651 $ 70.393.570 $34.741.470 

- $ - $ - $ - $ 

Change in net position 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 
Primary govemment 

(398.759) 115,669.117 132.653,077 
7.345.946 51.415 19.157.589 

126,610,306 
46,782.403 

15.924,387 
16,492.838 

228,304,007 
42.324.089 

804,991,539 
2.201.606 

- $ 6.947,187 $115.720.532 $151,810,666 $173.392.709 $34.417.225 $270.628.096 $807.193.145 

(Concluded) 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 3 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 
General fund 

Nonspendable - 1,568,413 1,339,721 1,767,124 1,463,131 1,376,359 1,761,547 1,947,309 355,370 -
Restricted - - - - - - - - - -
Committed - - - - - - - - - 57,575,447 
Assigned - - 1,009,159 300,442 - - 1,600,000 2,945,137 - -
Unasslgned - 43,062,780 44,112,857 44,810,496 45,988,618 46,357,464 65,942,358 59,780,852 62,640,174 -

Total general fund 49,993,375 44,631,193 46,461,737 46,878,062 47,451,749 47,733,823 69,303,905 64,673,298 62,995,544 57,575,447 

All other governmental funds 
Nonspendable - 35,049 30,232 54,208 41,974 24,771 51,637 70,617 68,395 54,135 
Restricted - 168,548,087 132,279,767 112,850,565 107,569,850 115,869,286 131,735,075 95,472,872 125,624,752 165,425,379 
Committed - - - - 1,417,906 8,838,455 10,718,972 38,312,482 41,073,893 83,623,442 
Assigned - 3,887,320 6,397,525 128,311,666 4,717,682 5,166,507 5,774,208 6,754,762 5,703,310 4,278,908 
Unasslgned - (36,853,024) (14,413,514) (170,419,104) (34,120,734) (62,345,046) (56,062,362) (43,923,880) (4,217,647) (17,119,178) 

Total all other governmental funds 173,763,317 135,617,432 124,294,010 70,797,335 79,626,678 67,553,973 92,217,530 96,686,853 168,252,703 236,262,686 

Total fund balances $ 223,756,692 $ 180,248,625 $ 117,675,397 $ 127,078,427 $ 115,287,796 $ 161,521,435 $ 161,360,151 $231,248,247 $293,838,133 
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Table 4 
Orleans Parish School Board 

Changes In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 
Revenues 
Local sources; 

Ad valorem (property) taxes $110,517,622 $110,794,005 $120,447,536 $133,691,064 $136,834,464 $148,298,545 $158,311,016 $165,148,640 $169,281,560 $173,510,889 
Sales and use taxes 84,919.257 95,109,617 90,820,786 108,119,002 113,721,226 123.557.264 127,844,470 132,079,437 139,638,108 148,006,505 
Earnings on investments 1,418,916 487,919 370,195 175,947 135,717 65,351 75,553 236,795 870,048 1,631,396 
Food sen/Ice 555,079 551,235 595,822 582,504 630,642 458,597 422,884 120,955 119,571 3,576,237 
Donations 84,309 132,969 2,674,509 216,931 8,614,424 4.060,437 4,293,082 4,268,096 40.815,877 7,633,995 
Other 19,775,527 4,263,549 9,172,386 6,196,933 8,607,433 5,897,526 10,724,568 7,732,398 34,467,391 17,132,280 

State and federal sources: 
Minimum Foundation Program 35,520.337 38,921,305 42,342,377 46.048,138 51,497,324 56,596,779 64,377,681 66,566,362 24.693,985 184.606.792 
State revenue sharing 1,625,992 2,777,950 2,253,417 2,455,088 2,719,832 2,759,731 2,690.500 2.829,764 2,839,498 2,839,631 
Other 3,312,454 698.492 1,523,573 2,247.288 7,854,043 2,354,002 2,234,874 2,425,070 2,213,698 3,173,796 
Federal sources: 62,828.136 50.737.918 50.459.494 50.592.877 126.133.470 94.137.787 102.277.994 51.839.429 26,074,715 29.159.762 

Total revenues 320,557,629 304,474,959 320,660,095 350,325,772 456,748,575 438,186,019 473,252,622 433,246,946 /141,014,449 571,271,283 

Expenditures 
Instruction: 

Regular education programs 14,180,382 13,030,407 11,946,683 14,607,365 12,026,194 14,146,499 17,525,022 14,101,825 12,994.450 6,814,438 
Special education programs 5,615.946 5,918,284 17.457,351 5,694,969 6,110,539 5,971.194 5,916,334 6,149.255 4,676,062 3,853,470 
Other education programs 27,469.813 20.634,037 8,477,082 23.959,225 16,588.298 17,775,363 15,302,685 16,461,142 10,543,211 8,870,411 

Support setvlces: 
Pupil support services 5,241,052 5,040,210 5,302,365 5.325,092 5,497,468 6,814,407 7,072,256 7.107,987 5,441,125 8.279,616 
Instructional staff services 9,103,536 9,628,764 7.042.653 6,575,692 7,108,580 6,972,756 6,098,036 6.456,447 4.088,070 2,626,659 
General administration services 8,916,889 12,852,951 11,704,575 11,407,619 11,292,658 12,528,449 14,367,529 14,037.599 17,577,120 19,483,457 
School administration services 1,498,615 2,031,390 2,387,280 2,645,886 2,470.580 2,433,712 2,750,339 3,732,826 3,711,539 1,372,223 
Business services 3,315.331 294,902 1,780.993 1,855,874 2,187,258 2,168,591 2,148.706 1,705,393 1,678,488 1,882,566 
Plant operation and maintenance 6,704,232 10,966,580 12,147,238 8,117,017 9,344,605 8,070,964 8,985,622 8,390,044 8,432,532 15,343,528 
Student transportation services 3,352,508 3,292,024 3,735,777 3,465,424 3,241,550 3,530,761 4,322,064 4,760,421 3,228,684 1,411,701 
Central services 3,573,538 2,887.855 2,650,778 3.043,480 3,945,807 3,328,536 2,451,871 2,692,295 3.227,570 2,237,971 
Food services 3,667,628 3,864,930 4,661,895 5,452,790 8,051,146 6,382,602 6,050,027 5,034,816 4,291,312 5,016,822 

Capital outlay 15,733.955 22,562,580 33,267,351 37,568,150 91,440,189 77,814,076 45,948.674 15,593.472 7,918,066 30,103,896 
Other 3,222,785 31,747 5,783 - 1,300,000 1,300,000 2,837,248 1.627,875 5,842,446 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 17,408,899 133,447,376 100,990.221 17,354,546 15,135,317 13,228.878 9,905,000 10,375,000 10,880,000 11,527,831 
Interest and bank charges 17.014.564 15.798.888 19.993.591 14.704.174 14.718.430 5.663.878 2.938.179 2.481.746 1.964.793 1.311.388 

Total expenditures 146,017.673 262,282,925 243,551,616 161,777.303 207,158,619 188,128,666 153,082,344 121,917,516 102,278.897 125,978,425 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 174,539,956 42,192,034 77,108,479 188,548,469 249,589,956 250,057,353 320.170,278 311,329,430 338.735,552 445,292,858 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Proceeds from debt service: 

General obligation bonds - 104,805,175 - - - - - - -
Refunding bonds - - 88.867,378 - - -

Proceeds from Insurance settlements - - - - - - - 169,130 1,431 
Insurance proceeds - - - - 12,830,745 - - - -
Judgments - - - - - 20,499,056 1,089,834 25,548 31,018 
Other - 173.238 14.329,534 (21,903,483) (9,531,459) (8.712.936) (5,113,375) (110.243) -
Transfers In 4,459,325 3,701,718 82,091,561 4,062,560 7,597,555 16,510,931 26,154,547 67,837,472 3,155,488 8,920,230 
Transfers out (4,544,849) (10,767,667) (82,220,640) (28,048,009) (8,487,476) (27,173,371) (47,875,219) (67,899,990) (3,155,488) (10,220,230) 
Transfers out to other local education agency (588,214) (499,194) (557,453) - - - - - -
Transfers out to RSD* schools (114,282,094) (120,355,997) (120.798,587) (126,880,121) (153,982,428) (150,173.246) (161,061,267) (190,496,425) (234,846.691) -
Transfers out to charter schools (60.364.375) (62.757.373) (68.313,150) (68.879.766) (88.613.863) (92.299.362) (106.540.381) (121.911.362) (34.195.443) (494,540.400) 
Total other financing sources (uses) (175,320,007) (85,700,100) (86,601,357) (241,628,819) (240,186,926) (261,847,984) (273.936,639) (311,490,714) (268,847,456) (495,807,951) 

Net change In fund balances $ (780,051) $(43,508,066) $ (9.492.878) $(53,080,350) $ 9.403.030 $(11,790,631) $ 46.233.639 $ (161.284) $ 69.888.096 $(50,515,093) 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 
expenditures 26.5% 62.1% 55.1% 24.3% 23.0% 48.3% 23.7% 11.4% 13.4% 148.0% 

* RSD - Recovery School District 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 5 

Assessed 
Total Value as a 

Personal Public Service Less Homestead Total Taxable Direct Estimated Actual Percentage of 
Fiscal Year Tax Year Real Prooertv Prooertv Prooertv Exemot Prooertv Assessed Value % Increase Tax Rate Taxable Value Actual Value 

2009-2010 2010 $2,489,801,675 : $ 387,334,015 : $ 163,911,580 $ 362,665,406 $2,678,381,864 44.12 $28,135,889,837 9.52% 
2010-2011 2011 2,586,081,540 385,699,970 167,557,410 372,613,310 2,766,725,610 3.3% 44.12 29,102,378,173 9.51% 
2011-2012 2012 2,760,973,210 390,952,232 183,003,600 385,256,805 2,949,672,237 6.6% 43.60 30,948,094,713 9.53% 
2012-2013 2013 2,920,015,480 413,120,240 193,722,510 437,893,609 3,088,964,621 4.7% 44.81 32,729,179,773 9.44% 
2013-2014 2014 2,992,593,440 405,514,430 181,055,280 448,696,881 3,130,466,269 1.3% 45.31 33,353,585,053 9.39% 
2014-2015 2015 3,188,376,880 431,355,330 170,541,020 458,941,272 3,331,331,958 6.4% 45.31 35,441,635,080 9.40% 
2015-2016 2016 3,376,000,510 456,453,540 169,105,350 468,352,645 3,533,206,755 6.1% 45.31 37,479,450,100 9.43% 
2016-2017 2017 3,481,746,390 471,985,530 175,685,210 475,465,500 3,653,951,630 3.4% 45.31 38,666,774,940 9.45% 
2017-2018 2018 3,592,392,910 497,655,080 173,902,710 474,928,030 3,789,022,670 3.7% 45.31 39,937,240,473 9.49% 
2018-2019 2019 3,651,926,590 527,777,040 169,565,520 471,545,070 3,877,724,080 2.3% 45.31 40,716,041,580 9.52% 
2019-2020 2020 4,187,933,480 543,771,340 161,499,030 479,307,090 4,413,896,760 13.8% 45.31 46,150,473,187 9.56% 

Residential properties are assessed at 10% of fair market value; other property and electric cooperative properties, excluding 
land, are assessed at 15% of fair market value; and public service properties, excluding land, are assessed at 25% of 
fair market value. The overall assessed value Is estimated to be 14%-15% of actual market value. 

Estimated Actual Taxable Value equals Estimated Market Value; actual market value may be different. 

Source: Louisiana Tax Commission 
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Table 6 
Orleans Parish School Board 

Ad Valorem Revenue Rates and Levies, Direct and Overlapping 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Overlapping Rates 
Total 

Direct & 
Fiscal Year School Parish Levee Miscellaneous OverlaDOino 

Tax Rates (Mills oer Dollar) 

2009-2010 44.12 11.72 24.43 72.33 152.60 
2010-2011 44.12 15.10 24.43 76.69 160.34 
2011-2012 43.60 15.10 24.43 76.69 159.82 
2012-2013 44.81 15.10 11.67 76.69 148.27 
2013-2014 45.31 15.10 11.67 76.69 148.77 
2014-2015 45.31 15.10 11.67 76.59 148.67 
2015-2016 45.31 13.91 12.28 80.28 151.78 
2016-2017 45.31 13.91 12.28 75.62 147.12 
2017-2018 45.31 13.91 12.28 82.58 154.08 
2018-2019 45.31 13.91 12.28 79.58 151.08 

Tax Levies 

2009-2010 $118,170,208 $ 31,390,635 $ 65,432,869 $193,727,360 $408,721,072 
2010-2011 122,067,934 41,777,557 67,591,107 212,180,186 443,616,784 
2011-2012 128,605,710 44,540,051 72,060,493 226,210,363 471,416,617 
2012-2013 138,416,505 46,643,366 36,048,217 236,892,696 458,000,784 
2013-2014 141,841,427 47,270,041 36,532,541 240,075,458 465,719,467 
2014-2015 150,942,651 50,303,113 38,876,644 255,146,714 495,269,122 
2015-2016 160,089,598 49,146,906 43,387,779 321,522,883 574,147,166 
2016-2017 165,560,639 50,826,495 44,870,551 276,311,973 537,569,658 
2017-2018 171,680,617 52,705,305 46,529,198 312,897,493 583,812,613 
2018-2019 175,289,083 53,813,091 47,507,171 307,868,136 584,477,481 

The tax levies represent the original levy of the Assessor and exclude the homestead exemption 
amount. 

Source: Louisiana Tax Commission 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Principal Property Taxpayers 

Table 7 

2018-2019 2009-2010 
Taxable Taxable 

Assessed Percentage of Assessed Percentage of 
Taxpayer Value Total Taxable Value Total Taxable 

(in thousands) Rank Assessed Value (in thousands) Rank Assessed Value 

Entergy $ 114,444 1 3.02% $ 63,918 1 2.51% 
Capital One Bank 47,329 2 1.25% - - -
Marriott Hotel 32,944 3 0.87% 19,173 8 0.76% 
BellSouth Telecommunication 31,242 4 0.82% 57,127 2 2.25% 
Hancock Whitney Bank 30,697 5 0.81% - - -
Harrah's Entertainment 26,582 6 0.70% 35,163 5 1.38% 
JP Morgan Chase Bank 22,068 7 0.58% 13,723 9 0.54% 
Folger Coffee 19,740 8 0.52% - - -
International Rivercenter 18,105 9 0.48% 19,196 7 0.76% 
Sheraton Hotel 16,899 10 0.45% - - -

Hibernia National Bank - - - 46,409 3 1.82% 
Whitney Bank - - - 41,221 4 1.62% 
CS&M Real Estate (Sheraton) - - - 19,907 6 0.78% 
SHC New Orleans (Hyatt) - - - 10,877 10 0.43% 

Total $ 360,050 9.50% $ 326,714 12.85% 

Source: City of New Orleans, Department of Finance, Bureau of the Treasury 
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Table 8 
Orleans Parish 

Sales and Use Tax Rates - All Governments 
July 1, 2018-June 30, 2019 

General Food and 
Taxing Entity Sales Drug Sales 

School Board 1.50% 1.50% 
City of New Orleans 2.50% 2.50% 
Regional Transit Authority (RTA) 1.00% 0.50% 

Local Rate 5.00% 4.50% 
State Rate 4.45% 4.45% 

Total Rate 9.45% 8.95% 

Source: Louisiana Association of Tax Administrators 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 9 

Governmental Activities Qualified 
General School Total Percentage of Outstanding 

Obligation Refunding Construction Unamortized Debt Personal Debt Per 

June 30 Bonds Bonds Bonds Loans Leases Bond Premium Outstandina ® Income'' Capita 

2010 $124,295,000 $ 31,116,854 $ $135,833,281 $964,000 $ $292,209,135 4.71% $ 891 
2011 - 120,130,767 - 94,731,084 - 7,150,160 222,012,011 6.63% 638 
2012 - 104,741,527 79,055,000 11,133,343 - 6,920,143 201,850,013 7.53% 560 
2013 - 89,884,206 79,055,000 8,636,118 - 6,076,048 183,651,372 9.10% 497 
2014 - 74,748,877 79,055,000 - - 5,231,953 159,035,830 10.56% 420 
2015 - 61,520,000 79,055,000 - - 4,387,858 144,962,858 12.18% 378 
2016 - 51,615,000 79,055,000 - - 3,543,763 134,213,763 13.88% 344 
2017 - 41,240,000 79,055,000 - - 2,699,668 122,994,668 15.34% 314 
2018 - 30,360,000 79,055,000 - - 1,855,573 111,270,573 17.40% 284 
2019 - 18,940,000 79,055,000 - - 1,011,478 99,006,478 20.54% 253 

a. Details regarding outstanding debt can be found in Note 7 to the financial statements. 
b. Personal income information and student enrollment data can be found In the Demographic and 

Economic Statistics table (Table 12). 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Computation of Legal Debt Margin 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 10 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013_ 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding" 
General Obligation Bonds 
Qualified School Construction Bonds 

$ 155,411,854 
$ 

$ 120,130,767 
$ 

$ 104,741,527 
$ 79,055,000 

$ 89,884,206 
$ 79,055,000 

$ 
$ 

74,748,877 
79,055,000 

$ 61,520,000 
$ 79.055.000 

$ 51,615,000 
$ 79.055.000 

$ 41,240,000 
$ 79.055.000 

$ 30,360,000 
$ 79.055.000 

$ 18,940,000 
$ 79.055.000 

Total $ 155,411,854 $ 120,130,767 $ 183,796,527 $ 168,939,206 $ 153,803,877 $ 140,575,000 $ 130,670,000 $ 120,295,000 $ 109,415,000 $ 97,995,000 

Percentage of estimated actual property 
value'' 0.6% 0.4% 0.6% 0.5% 0.5% 0.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.2% 

Less amounts available In Debt Service 
funds 

Less QSCB bonds secured by alimony tax 
$ (63,149,907) 
$ 

$ (44,335,178) 

$ 
$ (37,978,291) 
$ (79,055,000) 

$ (35,382,234) 
$ (79,055,000) 

$ 
$ 

(37,256,500) 
(79,055,000) 

$ (45,388,052) 
$ (79,055,000) 

$ (56,059,162) 
$ (79,055,000) 

$ (65,040,281) 
$ (79,055,000) 

$ (74,415,686) 
$ (79,055,000) 

(82,179,229) 
$ (79,055,000) 

Total net debt applicable to debt limit $ 92,261,947 $ 75,795,589 $ 66,763,236 $ 54,501,972 $ 37,492,377 $ 16,131,948 $ (4,444,162) $ (23,800,281) $ (44,055,686) $ (63,239,229) 

Legal debt limit ° $1,064,366,545 $1,098,768,622 $1,167,225,165 $1,234,400,381 $1,252,707,103 $1,326,595,631 $1,400,545,790 $1,445,295,996 $1,492,382,745 1,522,244,203 

Legal debt margin $ 972,104,598 $1,022,973,033 $1,100,461,929 $1,179,898,409 $1,215,214,726 $1,310,463,683 $1,404,989,952 $1,469,096,277 $1,536,438,431 $1,585,483,432 

Legal debt margin as a percentage of 
debt limit 91.3% 93.1% 94.3% 95.6% 97.0% 98.8% 100.3% 101.6% 103.0% 104.2% 

a. Details regarding outstanding debt can be found In Note 7 to ttie financial statements. 
b. Property value data can be found In the Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Property table (Table 5). 
o. LSA-RS 39:562 limits outstanding long-term bonded debt to 35% of the assessed value of taxalile property 

124 



Table 11 
Orleans Parish School Board 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 

General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
General Obligation Bonds 
Qualified School Construction Bonds 

$ 155,411,854 $ 120,130,767 $ 104,741,527 
79,055,000 

$ 89,884,206 
79,055,000 

$ 74,748,877 
79,055,000 

$ 61,520,000 
79,055,000 

$ 51,615,000 
79,055,000 

$ 41,240,000 
79,055,000 

$ 30,360,000 
79,055,000 

$ 18,940,000 
79.055.000 

Subtotal - Bonded Debt 
Unamortized bond premium 

155,411,854 120,130,767 
7,150,160 

183,796,527 
6,920,143 

168,939,206 
6,076,048 

153,803,877 
5,231,953 

140,575,000 
4,387,858 

130,670,000 
3,543,763 

120,295,000 
2,699,668 

109,415,000 
1,855,573 

97,995,000 
1.011.478 

Total 155,411,854 127,280,927 190,716,670 175,015,254 159,035,830 144,962,858 134,213,763 122,994,668 111,270,573 99,006,478 

Less amounts available in Debt Service 
funds 

Less QSGB bonds secured by alimony tax 
(63,149,907) (44,335,178) (37,978,291) 

(79,055,000) 
(35,382,234) 
(79,055,000) 

(37,256,500) 
(79,055,000) 

(45,388,052) 
(79,055,000) 

(56,059,162) 
(79,055,000) 

(65,040,281) 
(79,055,000) 

(74,415,686) 
(79,055,000) 

(82,179,229) 
(79,055,000) 

Net general bonded debt 92,261,947 82,945,749 73,683,379 60,578,020 42,724,330 20,519,806 (900,399) (21,100,613) (42,200,113) (62,227,751) 

Estimated actual taxable value of property 28,135,889,837 29,102,378,173 30,948,094,713 32,729,179,773 33,353,585,053 35,441,635,080 37,479,450,100 38,666,774,940 39,937,240,473 40,716,041,580 

Net general bonded debt as a percentage of 
estimated actual taxable value 0.3% 0.3% 0.2% 0.2% 0.1% 0.1% 0.0% -0.1% -0,1% -0.2% 

Details regarding outstanding debt can be found In Note 7 to the financial statements. 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 12 

Total Per Capita 
Personal Personal Unemployment 

Fiscal Year PoDulation ® Income® Income® Rate^ 

2009-2010 327,803 $ 13,748,544 $ 41,941 . 7.9% 
2010-2011 347,770 14,727,201 42,348 8.7% 
2011-2012 360,686 15,205,042 42,156 8.6% 
2012-2013 369,761 16,718,993 45,216 7.9% 
2013-2014 378,623 16,788,818 44,342 7.3% 
2014-2015 383,930 17,658,878 45,995 6.9% 
2015-2016 389,791 18,624,894 47,782 6.5% 
2016-2017 391,977 18,872,769 48,148 5.9% 
2017-2018 391,538 19,356,079 49,436 5.1% 
2018-2019 391,006 20,333,723 52,004 5.0% 

Sources: 
a. Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce 
b. Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Principal Employers by Industry Sector 

Current Year and Nine Years Prior 

Tabie 13 

2018-2019 2009-2010 
Number of % of Total Number of % of Total 

Emolover Emolovees Rank Emolovment Emolovees Rank Emolovment 

Professional and technical services 2,270 1 1.2% 2,196 1 1.1% 
Retail trade 1,527 2 0.8% 1,508 3 0.8% 
Accommodation and food services 1,665 3 0.8% 1,616 2 0.8% 
Health care and social assistance 1,178 4 0.6% 1,133 5 0.6% 
Other services, except public administration 1,178 4 0.6% 1,180 4 0.6% 
Administrative and waste services 730 5 0.4% 720 6 0.4% 
Construction 596 6 0.3% 608 7 0.3% 
Wholesale trade 575 6 0.3% 546 9 0.3% 
Real estate rental and leasing 575 7 0.3% 538 10 0.3% 
Information 327 8 0.2% 306 13 0.2% 
Arts, entertainment and recreation 325 9 0.2% 310 12 0.2% 
Finanoe and insurance 590 10 0.3% 591 8 0.3% 

Source: Louisiana Workforce Commission 
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Table 14 
Ascension Parish School Board 

School Location and Performance Score 
at October 1, 2018 

2018-2019 
School 

Geographic Grade Performance 
School Name Area Confiouration Score 
Akili Academy of New Orleans Downtown PK4-8 57.0 
Alice Harte Charter School West Bank PK4-8 83.5 
Andrew H. Wilson Charter School Uptown PK4-8 68.4 
ARISE Academy Downtown K-8 47.3 
Audubon Charter School; Gentilly Gentilly / Lakeview PK4-3 Unavailable 
Audubon Charter School: Uptown Uptown PK3-8 86.7 
Benjamin Franklin Elementary Mathematics and Science School Uptown PK3-8 71.2 
Benjamin Franklin High School Gentilly / Lakeview 9-12 135.5 
Bricolage Academy Mid City PK4-6 77.6 
Collegiate Academies: Abramson Sci Academy New Orleans East 9-12 79.3 
Collegiate Academies: G.W. Carver High School Gentilly / Lakeview 9-12 66.1 
Collegiate Academies: Livingston Collegiate Academy New Orleans East 9-12 68.4 
Collegiate Academies: Opportunities Academy @G.W. Carver High Gentilly / Lakeview 12 Unavailable 
Collegiate Academies: Rosenwald Collegiate Academy West Bank 9-10 84.5 
Cypress Academy Mid City K-4 Unavailable 
Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Chater School for Science and Technology Downtown PK4 -11 58.8 
•wight D. Eisenhower Academy of Global Studies West Bank PK4-8 63.8 
E.P. Harney Spirit of Excellence Academy CBD / Garden District K-8 Unavailable 
Edna Karr High School West Bank 9-12 92.0 
Edward Hynes Charter School Gentilly / Lakeview PK3-8 95.3 
Edward Hynes Charter School French Immersion - UNO Gentilly / Lakeview K Unavailable 
Einstein Charter School at Sarah Towles Reed New Orleans East 6-12 71.0 
Einstein Charter School at Sherwood Forest New Orleans East PK4-5 50.8 
Einstein Charter School at Village De L'est New Orleans East PK4-5 54.7 
Elan Academy West Bank PK4-4 Unavailable 
Eleanor McMain Secondary School Uptown 9-12 80.1 
ENCORE Academy Downtown PK4-8 57.5 
Esperanza Charter School Mid City K-8 64.9 
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Table 14 
Ascension Parish Schooi Board 

School Location and Performance Score 
at October 1, 2018 

2018-2019 
School 

Geographic Grade Performance 
Schooi Name Area Conflouratlon Score 
Fannie C. Williams Charter Schooi New Orleans East PK4-8 55.3 
Firstline Schools: Arthur Ashe Charter Schooi Gentilly / Lakeview K -8 64.4 
FirstLine Schools: Langston Hughes Academy Mid City PK4-8 58.4 
Firstline Schools: Live Oak Academy Uptown PK4-8 50.9 
FirstLine Schools: Phillis Wheatley Community School Mid City PK4-8 58.4 
FirstLine Schools: Samuel J. Green Charter School Uptown PK4-8 63.9 
Foundation Preparatory Mid City K-5 56.6 
Harriet Tubman Charter School West Bank K-8 55.7 
Homer A. Plessy Community School Downtown PK4-8 61.0 
IDEA Oscar Dunn New Orleans East K-5 Unavailable 
International High School CBD / Garden District 9-12 Unavailable 
International School of Louisiana: Camp Street Campus CBD / Garden District K-8 Unavailable 
International School of Louisiana: Oliver Street Campus West Bank K-5 Unavailable 
James M. Singleton Charter School CBD / Garden District PK4-8 35.3 
JCFA Algiers West Bank 8-12 Unavailable 
John F. Kennedy High School at Lake Area Gentilly / Lakeview 9-12 65.2 
Joseph A. Craig Charter School Downtown PK4-8 38.8 
KIPP Believe Gentilly / Lakeview K-8 60.5 
KIPP Booker T. Washington High School CBD / Garden District 9-12 59.4 
KIPP Central City CBD / Garden District K-8 67.4 
KIPP East Community New Orleans East K-5 60.9 
KIPP Leadership Downtown K-8 59.0 
KIPP Morial (McDonogh 15) New Orleans East PK4-8 64.6 
KIPP Renaissance High School Downtown 9-12 79.3 
L.B. Landry-0. Perry Walker College and Career Preparatory High School West Bank 9-12 60.4 
Lafayette Academy Charter School Uptown PK4-8 47.9 
Lafayette Extension at Paul L. Dunbar School Uptown K-8 Unavailable 
Lake Forest Elementary Charter School New Orleans East K-8 117.2 
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Table 14 
Ascension Parish Schooi Board 

School Location and Performance Score 
at October 1, 2018 

2018-2019 
Schooi 

Geographic Grade Performance 
Schooi Name Area Confiouration Score 
Lawrence D. Crocker College Prep: A Schooi for the Arts and Technology Uptown PK4-8 43.0 
Living Schooi New Orleans East 9 Unavailable 
Lusher Charter Elementary Schooi Uptown K-5 123.1 
Lusher Middle and High Charter Schooi Uptown 6-12 123.1 
Lycee Francais de la Nouveiie-Orieans (LFNO) Uptown PK4-9 Unavailable 
Martin Behrman Charter Schooi Academy of Creative Arts and Sciences West Bank PK4-8 63.7 
Mary D. Coghiii Elementary Schooi Gentiliy / Lakeview K-8 44.0 
Mary McLeod Bethune Elementary Schooi of Literature and Technology Gentiiiy / Lakeview PK4-8 68.9 
McDonogh #32 Literacy Charter Schooi West Bank PK4-8 Unavailable 
McDonogh #35 College Prepatatory High Schooi Gentiiiy / Lakeview 9-12 58.3 
McDonogh #42 Elementary Charter Schooi Mid City PK4-8 60.9 
Medard H, Nelson Charter Schooi Mid City PK4-8 Unavailable 
Mildred Osborne Charter Schooi New Orleans East K-8 58.6 
Morris Jeff Community Schooi Mid City PK4-11 73.6 
New Harmony High Downtown 9-10 Unavailable. 
New Orleans Center for Creative Arts Downtown 9-12 Unavailable 
New Orleans Charter Science and Math High Schooi (Sci High) Uptown 9-12 83.5 
New Orleans Military and Maritime Academy (NOMMA) West Bank 8-12 Unavailable 
Noble Minds Institute for Whole Child Learning Uptown K-4 Unavailable 
Paul Habans Charter Schooi West Bank PK4-8 62.4 
Pierre A. Capdau Charter Schooi at Avery Alexander Elementary Gentiiiy / Lakeview PK4-8 54.5 
ReNew Accelerated High Uptown 9-12 Unavailable 
ReNew Dolores T. Aaron Academy New Orleans East PK4-8 57.6 
ReNew Schaumburg Elementary New Orleans East PK4-8 48.8 
ReNew Scitech Academy CBD / Garden District PK4-8 51.2 
Robert Russa Moton Charter Schooi New Orleans East PK4-8 56.4 
Rooted Schooi Uptown 9-11 65.0 
Sophie B. Wright Charter Schooi Uptown 9-12 78.4 
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Table 14 
Ascension Parish Schooi Board 

School Location and Performance Score 
at October 1, 2018 

2018-2019 
Schooi 

Geographic Grade Performance 
Schooi Name Area Confiouration Score 
Success Prep @ Thurgood Marshall Mid City K-8 54.5 
The Net Charter High Schooi CBD / Garden District 9-12 Unavailable 
The Net Charter High Schooi; Gentiiiy Gentiiiy / Lakeview 9-12 Unavailable 
Travis Hill at the Orleans Justice Center Mid City 1 -12 Unavailable 
Travis Hill Schooi at the Youth Study Center Gentiiiy / Lakeview 1 - 12 Unavailable 
Waiter L. Cohen College Prep Uptown 9-12 43.7 
Waiter L. Cohen: Academy of Career and Community Education (ACCE) Uptown 9-12 Unavailable 
Warren Easton High Schooi Mid City 9-12 92.9 
William J. Fischer Accelerated Academy West Bank PK4-8 Unavailable 

District Performance Score 67.8 
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Luther Speight & Company 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AEDirOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDniNG STANDARDS 

To the Odeans Parish School Boaid 
New Orieans, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditiog standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate rernairting fund information of the Orleans Parish School Board (the School Board), as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coEectively comprise 
the School Board's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2019. 
Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the following 
aggregate discretely presented component units: Warren Easton Senior High School, Hynes Charter School, 
Homer A. Plessy Community School, Elan Elementary, Bethune Elementary, Benjamin Franldin 
Elementary, Rooted School, and Foundation Preparatory, as described in our report on the School Board's 
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control 
over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Conttol over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School Board's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the ckcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the finann'al statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's internal control Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School Board's intemal control 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedtile of findings and questioned costs, we 
did identify certain deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies. 

A dfcien^ in intemal corrtml exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent^ or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiendes, in 
intemal • control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the 
defidency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-01 to be 
a material weakness. 

A/ew Orleans Office: 1100 Poydras Street, Suite 1225/New Orieans, LA 70163/(504)561-8600 
Memphis Office: 1195. Main Street, Suite 500/Memphis, TN 38103/(901)322-4238 
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A significant deficienQ/ is a deficiency, ot a combination of deficiencies, in internal control tliat is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the deficiency described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-
02 to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial statements are fiee 
firom material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

School Board's Response to Findings 

The School Board's response to the findings identified iu our audit is described iu the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The School Board's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government ALuditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

The report is intended solely for the information and use of the School Board, the State of Louisiana, 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other those specified parties. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

New Orle 
December 1 



Luther Speight & Company 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF 

EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFOEM GUIDANCE 

To the Odeans Padsh School Boaid 
New Odeans, Lociisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Odeans Parish School Board's (the School Board) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the School Board's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. The School 
Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal stamteSj regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School Board's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained iu Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Tide 2 U.S. Code ofVederal 
Bsgulations Vsrt 200, XJnform Administrative Requirements, CostPrinciples, and AuditRequirementsfor Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examimrig, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We beEeve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School Board's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the School Board, compEed, in aE material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30,2019. 

A/eiv Orleans Office: 1100 Poydras Street, Suite 1225/New Orleans, LA 70163/(504)561-8600 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance -with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the School Board's internal control over compliance with the types 
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School Board's internal control over compliance. 

A defideng in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combiuation of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A sign^ant defidencg in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
a combination of deficiencies, ia internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of 
a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discreetly presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information for the School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School Board's basic financial statements. We issued 
our report thereon dated December 18, 2019, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial 
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is represented for purposes of additional analysis as requited by the Uniform Guidance and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accormting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information ditectiy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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In our opimon, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is faidy stated ia all material respects ia 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

The report is intended solely for the information and use of the School Board, the State of Louisiana, 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. Under 
Louisiana Revised State 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

New Orl( 
December 18, 
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ORI.EANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awarife 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Bet!eral Gtanlor/Pass-Tlirotigb. Gxantor 
Program, Title 

Umted Slates Pe^gitmeat o£.Agricnltinje (USD-fi) 
Passed Thrrvngh X^taaflns. Di^arlmesit of .Agncolture 

Noncasb-Asastance (CommojSdes): 
Natioofll Sdiool lamcb. Psogcam 

NnBcash. Jissistaace Snbtolal 

Casb Asastance 

NfltioBfll School L'aiu:ih. Psogcam 
Nfltinnfll Sdiool Lunch. Pmgnma Equ^xnent 
Snnimer Food Semce Program, foi Quldiea 

Cftsb Assislance Snbtoial 

Total TTn^f^ Slates D^atiment of Agncaltnro 

TJnited States DepaitcneDt of jD^ease 
EDTC 

Totel United States Deparimeat of Defense 

United States t n > r^FTMrtrot^n^ 

T^rn«:Tqfio "n^a-rtTO^^nf 

No CHldLe£tBchiT>f^ Act (NCXB) 
ISdel 

15den 
Lidein 

Inrfitddnflls •TOdi Disabjlilies andEsceplionalities Act QDEA) 
IDEA Pacts 
IDEA Piescho td 

IhcSvidmik 'nddi Disabililies Edncalitoi Act 
Hi^ Cost Services Gcmt-Round 1 

Cost Services Grant-Rcrnnd 2 

Vocational Eiiication 
Cg-dPednns 

Direct Fxmdic^ 
PBIS Irnprovemeatlntiaive 

litcaacf fisrlife Prefect 
National TrtciitrTte fox in Teacbmg 

Total United Slates Department ofEducatioa 

Utited States Department of Hedtli and Human Seoittes 

Passed diroug^ th.e Louisiana Department of Education. 
Tegpoiaiy Assjstance forNeedy Families (TANF) After School For All 

Total Unitasd States D^artment ofHealtij. andHuman Services 

McKmmgr-Vento Homeless 

United Slates Dcpartmeot ofHousing and Urban Dev)dopni«it 
Passed through die Louitiana OfSce of Community De^opment 

Community Devdopment Block Giant (QDBG) 

Total United States Dtpartment ofHbusing and Uriian Devdopment 

United States Department of Homeland Secndg^ 
Passed through die Louisiana. D^artment ofEducatioa 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

Total United States Department ofHomelaiLd Secirdty 

Tofal Espendrtares of Federal Awards 

Number Grantor No. 

10A55 

10A55 
10555 
10559 

12998 

S4010A 

S4367A 

S456SA 

84027A 
S^73A 

84.027A 
84.Q27A 

84548 

S4184G 

S4215G 

84574A 

93558B 

28-17-TiA5 
28-17-5055 
28-17-50-35 

28-a7-Bl~36 
2S-17-P155 

28-17-BK55 
28-17-RK:-35 

28-17-0236 

28-17-35-35 

84A95A 28-17-H1-35 

14228 

97.035 

Charter 

SchoolBoaid. Pass-Throu^ 
"KA I ...nlil in'i.g Expcaiditares 

$ 407,494 $ 
467.494 -

3,167,804 . 
27.400 
91,968 _ 

3,287^72 -

3,754,666 

99,241 

99,241 

3,354830 4471,623 
1,311,361 24856 

38^,861 10,800 

3,846,041 . 
21,228 -

101,618 . 
4370 -

14225 30,915 

194,375 38,342 

- 204233 
323,095 _ 

9,216,003 4776,768 

6,134 143,272 

6,134 1«,272 

104,904 3,560 

27,491 

27,491 

15,782;929 

15,782,929 

28,991,369 4923,600 

? 31,914,969 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Notel. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards indudes die federal grant activity 
of the Odeans Parish School Board and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Commodities received, which are non-cash revenue are valued at prices provided by the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with 
the requirements of Title 2 UB. Code of Federal 'Regila&ons Part 200, TJr^orm A.dmnistraiive 

'Retirements, Cost Frm^les, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ firom amounts presented in or 
used in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 

Note 2. Reconcifiatiou to the Basic Financial Statements 

The expenditures Hsted in the accompanying schedule are reported in the following funds in 
either the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 
(basic statement) or the non-major special revenue funds combining statement of revenues, 
espenditures and changes in fiind balance, (supplementary information) of the Orleans Parish 
School Board's June 30,2019 financial statements. 

General Fund $ 99,241 
Hurricane Katrina Restoration Fund 15,782,929 
Capital Proj ect Fund 500,000 
Federal Grant Fund 12,095,616 
State and Local Special Revenue Funds 102,608 
Pass-Through Fund 2,923,600 
Qjdld Nutrition Fund 410,975 

Financial Statement Total $ 31^14,969 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Total $ 31,914,969 

Note 3. USDA Commodities 

Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards at the fair 
market value of the commodities received. 

Note 4. De Minimis Cost Rate 

The auditee uses an itidirect cost rate negotiated and approved by the Louisiana Department of 
Education and the U.S. Department ofEducation and has elected not to use the 10% de minimis 
indirect cost rats as provided for in the section 200.414 of the Uniform Guidance. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Yeat Ended June 30,2019 

Section 1. Snmmaty of Auditor Results 

Financial Statements 
1. Type of auditors' report issued 

2. Intemal control over financial reporting 
a. Material weaknesses identified 
b. Significant weaknesses identified 
c. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted 

Federal Awards 
1. Internal control over major programs 

a. Material weaknesses identified 
b. Significant deficiencies identified 

Unmodified 

Yes 
Yes 
No 

No 
No 

2. Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified 

3. Audit findings disclosed that are required in accordance 
with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a) 

4. Identification of major programs 

• Tide n. Part A — Elementary and Secondary Education Act 

• Tide I — Grants to Local Educational Agencies 

• Individuals with Disabilities and Exceptionalities Act 
(lDEA),PartB 

• National School Lunch Program 

• FEMA Disaster Grants — Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

No 

CFDA 84.367A 

CFDA 84.010 

CFDA 84.027A 

CFDA 10.555 

CFDA 97.036 

5. Dollar threshold used to distiaguish between 
Type A and B programs 

6. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? 

$957,449 

Yes 
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Section 2. Financial Statement Audit 

Finding No. 2019-01 Inadequate Cash Reconciliation and Monitoring Procedures 

Criteria: 
Best practices for internal control environments require that bank accounts are reconciled to the 
general ledger on a monthly basis. Reconcilialions should be reviewed and approved by management 
to provide assurance of effected implementation. 

Condition: 
Duting performance of cash and cash equivalents audit procedures, we noted that cash reconciliations 
were not beiog prepared and reviewed on a timely basis. In certain instances, bank reconciliations were 
not prepared for up to four (4) months after month-end closing. This delay in the preparation of the 
operatiog account reconciliation significantiy increased the number of reconciling items and therefore 
the likelihood for the preparer to make errors during the reconciliation process. 

Cause: 
Staff turnover in the School Board accounting office appeared to contribute to the delays in 
preparation of bank reconciliations. 

Effect: 
The risk of detection of errors or irregularities related to bank account transactions were not reduced 
to an acceptable leveL 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that management implement procedures that provide for timely bank reconciliations 
of all School Board bank accounts. Outside resources should be engaged where and if needed to 
maintain consistency in maintaiuing these control procedures. 

Views of Responsible Officials: 
Procedures have been implemented to reconcile all School Board bank accounts by the IS*'" of each 
month. 
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Fiading No. 2019-02 MoJiitoriiig of Certain Control Procedures at Direct-Run 
Schools Were Not Adequate 

Criteria: 
The School Board is responsible for the implementation and monitoriag of effective internal control 
procedures at direct-run schools. This includes monitoriag of the internal control environment to 
determine that the controls remain in effect. The controls include adequate segregation of duties and 
record retention. 

Condition: 
We examined internal control procedures related to School Board direct-run schools and noted the 
following exceptions; 

1. Supporting documentation was not available for examioation at a School Board direct-run 
school for six (6) of the twelve (12) Student Activity fund account transactions selected for 
examination. Further examination indicated the proper documentation existed at the direct-
run school and was reviewed by School Board staff. However, the documentation was not 
properly maintained on file. 

2. One of the student activity fund bank accounts were managed by a single individual who had 
dual responsibilities for cash collections and bank deposits. 

Cause: 
This direct-run school was under consideration for transition to an independent charter management 
organization. Staffing levels at the school and the related monitoring by the School Board may have 
been contributing Hctors. 

Effect: 
Inadequate internal controls and monitoring at direct-run schools does not mitigate the risk that 
material errors or irregularities will be detected and reported to management on a timely basis. 

Reconijneudation: 
We recommend that School Board management enhance monitoring procedures related to internal 
controls in effect at direct-run schools and charter schools under its direct control. 

Views of Responsible Officials: 
The School Board will ensure that the principal of each school understands the importance of 
maintaining school records in accordance with the School Board's records retention policy. The 
School Board wtill require proper segregation of duties in aH direct run schools. 
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OKLEANS PASISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Fiadiiigs and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Section 3- Findings — Major Federal Award Programs 

There no finding related to to^ot federal award programs. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

2018-01 -General Ledger Reconciliations 

Cotiditioii: In. performkig liiis year's audil; we noted the follcwing: (1) Difficully Bi obtaining reports 
from the MUNIS accounting system .to perform audit testing. Including accounts receivable agng 
schedules, accounts payable agingschedules, and capital assets detafl ledger; (2) Errors noted in certain 
account balances/activity which required adjusting entries to correct; (3) Activity was not recorded 
through year end in certain general ledger accounts. Indudirg fixed assets and AR-RSD, Including 
Fixed Assets and Long-Term Accounts Receivable - RSD, resulting in material adjusting entries to 
correct. 

Status: Resolved. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 

SUMMARY OF CHARTER SCHOOL FINDINGS 



WARREN EASTON SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL FOUNDATION, INC. 
jTme30,2019 

Section I. Stanmaiy of AaditoFs Resxtbs 

Financial Statement Section 

1. Type o£ anditoFs iq)ott U-nmodified 

2. Internal conttol ovet financial teporting and compliance and oiiiet matters 
a. Material -weaknesses identified Yes 
b. Significant deficiendes identified not considered to be material -weaknesses None reported 
c. Noncompliance noted No 

Federal Awards 

Not applicable. 

Section n. internal Control Over Financial R^orting 

2019-001 Material Weakness: internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Cnteria: 

of 

CondMan: 

Sffect: 

^commendation: 

Adequate internal controls over die preparation of financial statements in 
accordance -witb U.S. GAAP ASC 958-810-25 -wbidi requites consolidation 

related entities "witb common control. 

In 2019 it -was discovered that Friends of Warren Easton sbould have been 
consolidated -with Warren Easton Ifigb Sdiool Fo-cmdation, bnc^ and that 
Ffiends'of Warren Easton had balances material to tihe Sdhool's financial 
statements. 

The detailed review of the finandal statements at year end did notindude 
adequate review of affiliate financial items. 

The School's financial statements as of June 30,2018 did not include material 
balances of an affiliated entity that sbould have been consolidated. 

It is recommended that the School perform detailed revie-ws of all financial 
statements at year end including any affiliates. 

S ection m. Compliance and Other Matters 

None. • 
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HYNES CHARTER SCHOOL CORPORATION 

Sectioa I. Stoimiaty of Audit Results 

Fiaaucial Statement Sectioti 

1. Type o£ auditoTs tepott Unmodified 

2. Intetml conttol OTet finaadal tegotiing and compliance and otfiet mattets 
a. Material weafcaesses identified No 
b. Significant deficiencies identified not consideted to be material weaknesses None Repotted 
c. Noncompliance noted No 

Fedetal Awatds 

Not applicable. 

Section n. Internal Control Over Financial Reportiag 

None. 

Section HE. Compliance and Otber Matters 

None. 
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CITIZEN'S COMMXTTEE FOR EDUCATION 
dba HOMER A, PIESSY COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

June 30,2019 

Section I. Snrtmiaty of Audit Results 

Fiuaucial Statement Section 

1. Type o£ auditor's report Unmodified 

2. Intetoal conttol OTcr fimudai reporting and compliance and otfiet matters 
a. Matefifi weaknesses identified No 
h. Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses None Reported 
c. Noncompliance noted No 

Federal Awards 

Not appEcable. 

Section n. Internal Conttol Over Financial Reporting 

None. 

Section DX Compliance and Other Matters 

• None. 
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ELAN ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

Section I. Stttnmaty of Audit Results 

Fitiancaal Sl3.teatnea.ts 

1) Type o£ auditor's report Unmodified 

2) Internal control over finan.da'l reporting and compliance and otiier matters 
a) Matoial 'wealmesses identified No 
b) Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material -weaknesses None 

Reported 
c) Noncompliance noted No 

Federal Awards 

Not applicable. 

Section U. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

None. 

Section ni. Compliance and Ofber Matters 

None. 
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ROOTED SCHOOL 
Jtaie30,2019 

Section I. Sununaiy of Audit Results 

T^in-gnrial St^tftfnpirfe 

1) Type o£ auditors xe^oxt UumodiEed 

2) Tfitffi-nfiT conttol ovet finanrial i-fpnrfing and compEance and otiiet niatters 
a) Material weainesses identified No 
b) Significant deficiencies identified not consideted to be material weaknesses None 

Reported 
c) Noncompiiance noted No 

Federal Awards 

Not applicable. 

Section n. Internal Control Oyer Financial Reporting 

None. 

Section m. Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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FOUOTATION PREPARATORY, INC. 

Sectioal. Srraamajy of AnditResnlts 

Fi-nann'tiT StatPtnprntq 

1) Type of aaditot's leport Unmodified 

2) latemal conttol OTer financial tq)0£ting and compBance and ofhet matters 
a) Material-weafenesses identified No 
b) S%nificant deficiendes identified not considered to be material -weaknesses None 

Reported 
c) Noncompliance noted No 

Federal Awards 

Not ̂ plicable. 

Section U. Internal Control Over Financial Reportiog 

None. 

Section in. Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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UEGACSr OF EXCEULENCE, INC. 

Section 1. Summaiy of Andit Results 

Financial Smtetnent Section 

1. Type of auditoi's lepott Untnodified 

2. latemal conttol OTer firkin tepottiog and compliance and otiier mattets 
a. Material weainesses identified No 
b. Significant deficieacies identified not consideted to be 

material •wrainesses None Reported 
c. Noncompliance noted No 

Federal Aryards 

Not appEcable. 

Section H. Intemal Conttol Ovet Finandial Repotting 

None. 

Section m. Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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SIGNIFICANT EDUCATORS 
dba Maay McLeod Bethune Elementaiy Chartet ScEool 

Section I. Somtnaty of Aadif Results 

Ein-a-nrftiT .StatRinftntR 

1) Type of auditot's tepoit 

2) Iatemal,conti:ol ovet fiiiaacMteportiiig and compliance and othet mattets 
a) Material "weaJknesses identified 
b) Significant defidiendes identified not considetedto be matetial weaknesses 

Repotted 
c) Noncompliance noted 

Federal Awards 

Intemal Control 
Material weaknesses identified 
Significant defidendes identified not considered to be material weaknesses 

Type of opinion on Compliance for Major Programs 
Are there findings required to be reported in accordance with the 

Uniform Guidance 

Unmodified 

No 
None 

No 

No 
None Reported 

Unmodified 

No 

Section n. Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

None. 

Section III. Compliance and Other Matters 

None. 
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Luther Speight & Company 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S KEPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To tiae Orleans Parish School Board, the Louisiana Department of Education, and the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated belovr, Avhich -were agreed to by the Orleans Parish 
School Board, the Louisiana Department of Education, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (the 
specified parties), on the performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial 
statements of the Orleans Parish School Board, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019; and to 
determine -whether the specified schedules are firee of obvio-us errors and omissions as provided by 
the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE^, in compliance with Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:514 L Management of the Orleans Parish School Board is responsible for its 
performance and statistical data. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of 
the specified parties. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the 
procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or 
for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

General Fund Instmctional and Support Erspenditures and Certaia Local Revenue Sources 
(Schedule D 

1. We selected a sample of 25 transactions, reviewed supporting documentation, and observed 
that the sampled expenditures/revenues are dassiSed correctly and are reported in the 
proper amounts among the following amounts reported on the schedule: 

• Total General Fund hnstructional Expenditures 
• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 
® Total Local Taxation Revenue 
® Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property 
® Total State Revenue in lieu of Taxes 
• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue 
® Nonpublic Transportation Revenue 

Results: No discrepandes noted. 

New Orleans Office: 1100 Poydras Street, Suite 1225/New Orleans, LA 70163/(504)561-8600 
Memphis Office: 119 S. Main Street, Suite 500/Memphis, TN 38103/(901)322-4238 

Atlanta Office: Five Concourse Pkwy/Atianta, GA 30328/(770)399-8808 



Class rhaTartprisrirs (Schedule 2) 

2- We obtained a list of dasses by school, school type, and class size as reported on the schedule. 
We then traced a sample of 10 dasses to the October 1 roll books for those dasses and 
observed that the dass -was properly classified on the schedule. 

Results: No discrepandes noted. 

EducatLon Levels/Experience of Public School Staff (NO SCHEDUU^ 

3. We obtained October I®' PEP data subroitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent 
listing prepared by management), indudirg full-time teachers, princ^als, and assistant 
prindpals by classification, as well as their levd of education and expenence, and obtained 
management's representation that tiie data/listing was complete. We then selected a sample of 
25 individuals, traced to each individual's personnel file, and observed that each iudividual's 
education levd and experience was property dassified on the PEP data or equivalent listing 
prepared by management. 

Results: No discrepandes noted. 

Public School Staff Data: Average Salaries (NO SCHEDULE) 

4. We obtained June SO®' PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent 
listing provided by management of all classroom teachers, indudiog base salary, extra 
compensation, and ROTC or rehired retiree status, as well as fufl-time equivalents, and 
obtained management's representation that the data/listing was complete. We then sdected a 
sample of 25 individuals, traced to each individual's personnd file, and observed that each 
individual's salary, extra compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly induded on the 
PEP data (or equivalent listing prepared by management). 

Results: Of the sample of 25 individuals, we noted 3 of the individuals' salaries on the PEP 
data did not match their personnd file. 

Management's Response: Managmmt mlLmake everg ^ort to emure that the irfomation in each 
employee's personnelfik mil match the PEP tTformation reported to the Epartment afEdma&on. 
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IHs agteed-upon procedures eogagement was performed ia accordance wilii atteslation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified PubEc Accountants, and the standards appEcable 
to attestation engagements contained in Gwemrama Auditng Standards, issued by the United States 
Comptroller General. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the 
objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the 
performance and statistical data. Accordingly, we do not express such an opitiion or conclusion. 
Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that 
would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing perforhaed on the performance 
and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of Smothers Academy, Inc., as 
required .by Louisiana Revised Statue 24;514.L and the result of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on control or compEance. Accordin^y, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Le^skthre 
Au^tpr as a pubEc document 

yGPAs 
New Oflem^Tbuisiana 
December 18,2019 
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SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY LOUISIANA STATE LAW 
{R.S. 24:514 - PERFORMANCE AND STATISTICAL DATA) 



ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Genetal Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and 
Certain Local Revenue Sources 
For the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Schedule 1 

General ffiitid Instructional and Eompment Expenditures 
General Fund Instructional Expenditiies; 
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom Teacher Salaries 
Other Instructional Staff Activities 
Instructional StaffEnployee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Instructional Materials and Stpplies 
Instructional Equipment 

Total Teacher and Student Interaction Activities 

Other Instructional Activities 

2,519,105 
666,540 

2,252,585 
386,463 
457,794 

1,800 
6,284,286 

2,000,000 

Pipil Support Activities 
Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Activities 

NetPi5)il Support Activities 

5,305,665 
38,356 

5,267,309 

Instructional Staff Services 
Less: Equipment for Instructional Staff Services 

Net Instructional Staff Services 

1,538,513 
(3,123) 

1,535,390 

School Administration 1,370,460 
Less: Equipment for School Administration 788 

Net School Administration 

Total (jeneral Fund Instructional E3q)enditures 

Total General Fund Equipment Ejq)enditures 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
Local Taxation Revenue: 

Constitrrtional Ad Valorem Taxes 
Renewable Ad Valorem Tax 
Debt Service Ad Valorem Tax 
Facilities Preservation Act Ad ValoremTax 
Up to 1% of Collections by the Sheriff on Taxes Other than School Taxes 
Sales and Use Taxes 
Debt Service Sales and Use Tax 
Facilities Preservation Sales and Use Tax 
Total Local Taxation Revenue 

1,371,248 

$ 16,458,233 

$ 8,250,660 

111,270,009 
51,067,502 
9,054,522 
10,945,911 
(8,827,055) 

124,868,321 
11,722,888 
11,415,296 

$ 321,517,394 

Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property: 
Earnings from 16th Section Property 

Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Property 
63 
63 

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes: 
Revenue Sharing - Constitutional Tax 

Total State Revenue inLieu of Taxes 
2,839,631 

$ 2,839,631 

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue $ 454,584 

See independent accountant's report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL BOARD 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 
Class Size Chatactetistics 
As of June 30,2019 

Schedule 2 

School Type 

Class Size Range 

School Type 
1-20 21-26 27-33 34+ 

School Type Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 
Elementary 32% 284 42% 365 26% 225 0% -

Elementary Activity Classes 32% 42 36% 47 27% 35 5% 6 
Mddle/Tr. Hi^h 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% -

ISfiddle/Jr. High Activity Classes 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% -

High 58% 403 30% 205 12% 80 0% 3 
High Activity Qasses 71% 76 15% 16 13% 14 1% 1 
Combination 82% 37 2% 1 9% 4 7% 3 
Combination Activity Classes 0% - 0% - 100% 1 0% -

See independent accountanfs report on applying agreed-upon procedures. 
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Orleans Parish School Board 
Schedules Required by State Law 

(R.S. 24:514 - Performance and Statistical Data 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30,2019 

Schedule 1 General Fund Ihstmctional and Support Expenditures and Certain 
Local Revenue Sources 

This schedule includes general jEund instructional and equipment e^enditures. It also 
contains local taxation revenue, earnings on investments, revenue in lieu of taxes, and 
nonpublic textbook and transportation revenue; This data is used dther in the Minimum 
Foundation Program (MEP) formula or is presented annually in the MFP 70% Expanditure 
Requirement Report-

Schedule 2 (Formerly Schedifle 6) Class Size Characteristics 

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student enrollment in the 
following ranges; 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. 
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Luther Speight & Company 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Odeans Padsh School Board 

and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Odeans Parish 

School Board and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (11 A) on the control and compliance (C/C) 

areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 

1,2018 through June 30,2019. The Entity's management is responsible for those C/C areas 

identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 

established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 

specified users of this report Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of 

the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or 

for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address 
each of the following categories and subcat^ories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's 
operations): 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Results: The policies and procedures cppear to appropriately address the required elements above. 

b) Purcbasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Results: The policies and procedures appear to cppropriatelg address the required elements above. 

New Orleans Office: 1100 Poydras Street, Suite 1225/New Orleans, LA 70163/(504)561-8600 
Memphis Office: 119 S. Main Street, Suite 500/Memphis, TN 38103/(901)322-4238 
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c) Disbutsemejots, iadtadiag ptocessiog, leviewiog, and appto-ving. 

Results: ThepoBdes and procedures cppear to cppropriatey address the required elements ahove. 

d) Recespts/CoUectioOs, including lecetving, tecoiding, and ptepating deposits. Also, 
poEcies and procedutes sEould indade manageaientfs actions to detetmine the completeness 
o£ aE coEections fot each type o£ levenue o£ agency fond additions (e.g. peaiodic 
confirmation "wilh outside patties, teconciliation to utfltiy hilling after cutoff ptocedutes, 
recondOiation of traffic ticket nutnbet sequences, agency fund fbtfeitote monies 
confirmation). 

Results: The policies andprocedures cppear to cpprpriatepi address the required elements above. 

e) FayeoJl/PeisotmeL, including (1) paytoE processing, and (2) reviewing and approdng time 
and attendance records, including leave and ovettime worked. 

Results: The policies andprocedures cppear to c^npriate^ address the required elements above. 

Conttzctitig, including (1) types of services requiring written conttacts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) l^al review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Results: ThepoMes andprocedures cppear to cpprapricdely address the required elements cd/ove, excpt 
for legal nvien cf contracts. 

Management's Response: While this was not in written form, the OPSB does have a poRcy that it 
follows. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fad cards, P-Cards, if applicable), induding (1) how 
cards are to be conttoEed, (2) aEowable business uses, (3) docomentation requitemente, (4) 
requited approvers of statemen-te, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Results: The policies andprocedures cppear to c^rpriately address the required elements above. 

h) Travel and espense reimbursement, including (1) aEowable expenses, (2) doEar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

Results:- Thepolides andprocedures cppear to cppropricrtely address the required elements above. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) requicement that aE employees, including elected officials, annually attest 
through signature verification that they have read the entity's ethics poEcy. 

Results: The policies andprocedures ppearto cpprpriately address the required elements above. 
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j) Debt Setvice, indading (1) debt issTjance apptova], (2) coBtimiiig disclostite/EMMA. 
iepottfflgteqpiremedats, (3) debttesetve tequitements, aad (4) debt setvice tequiteinerLts. 

Results: The policies and procedures cppear to cpprapjiate^ address the nqmred elements above. 

k) Disastet Recavety/Busmess Coatkiuity, iadodiog (1) identificatioa o£ critical data ajtid 
riequency o£ data bactnps, (2) stoiage o£ backups iu a sepatate pbysical locatiou isolated 
riom liie netwouk^ (3) periodic testing/verification that bacfaips cau be restored, (-^ use o£ 
antivitus software on aB. systems, (:^ timely applicatLon o£ all available system and software 
patches/updates, and {§) identification o£ personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event 

Results: The policies and procedures cppear to cpprppricOely address the required elements above. 

Boatd otFmatice Cowmittee 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's eaabfing legation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal 
period, and; 

a) Observe that the board/finance cotnmittee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
ffequency in accordance with, tiie board's eoabfing legislation, charter, bylaws, or otiier 
equivalent document 

Results: The School Board met with a quorum month^. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe ibat the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on tiie general fund 
and major special revenue funds, as well as monthly financial statements (or budget-to-actual 
comparisons, if budgeted for major proprietary fiands. 

Results: The minutes rrference budget-fo-actual comparisons for the General Fund for three of the ten 
Budget andFincmce Committee meetings provided The ndnutes do not rference hudget-to-actual comparisons 
for the other mefor funds. 

Mauagemeut's Respojose: Finance stafwill startprparing monthly budget-to-actual rportsfor mcfor 
pedal revenue funds and mporprprietayfunds star&ng in Februay 2020. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted 
fimd balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unrestricted fund 
balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unrestricted fund balance in the general fund. 
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Results: Thepiorjear audit r^ojtfor the School Board r^cted a $62.9 positivejknd balance. 

Batik RecoucBiatiom 

3. The Bank KjecondEation section is considered not applicable for the year ended Jnne 30, 2019 
due to there being no findings in the prior year. 

Collectjotis 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fecal period -where d^osits for cash/checfcs/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and roanagem.enf's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly sdect 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

• Results: LMng obtained from imncgement with represmtc£on that it is conrpMe. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site ^e. 5 coRection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties ^ no -written policies or procedures, inquire of 
employees about thdir job duties) at each collection location, and obsetwe that job duties are 
propedy s^egated at each collection location such that 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not abate cash drawers/regjsters. 

Results: We noted OPSB has no cash drawers!re^sters. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
dq)osits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling coRection 
documentation (eg. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit 

Results: The AP Specialist receives aU cash and checkspq^cdrk to OPSB, then completes dposits. She 
pomdes hank recept and d^ositpacket to the Controller whopepares and reviews the entr^for the deposit 
which is posted hj the Senior Accountant. The Senior Accountant then performs hank recondliccdon process 
and is reviewed hj the Controller. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
• entries to the general ledger or s-obsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 

responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit 

Results: See answer 5h ahove. 
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d) Xhe emj)loyee(s) lesponsible £ot leconcQing casii collections to the genetal ledget and/ot 
subsidiaty ledgets, by tevenoe sotccce and/ot agency fund additions ate not tesponsible fot 
coEecting cash, xmless anofhet employee -vetifies the tecondliation. 

Restxlts: See answer 5h above. 

6. Intjcdte of management that all employees -who have access to cash ate coveted by a bond ot 
insntancepoEcy fot theft 

Results: We inquired with management and verified the OPSB has a thift insurance-poBag to cover losses due 
to crime ^ to $1 mlUon. 

7. Eandomly select two deposit dates fot each of the 5 bank accoTtnts sdlected for ptocednte #3 
nndet "Bank Recondliations" above (select the nest deposit date chtonolo^caEy if no deposits 
vtete made on the dates tandomly selected and landomly sdect a deposit if mnMple deposits ate 
made on the same day). J^temate^, thepracMoner mcrg use a source document other than hank statements 
when selec&ng the iposU dates for testing, such as a cash collection log dailg revenue report, receipt hook, etc. 
Obtain strppotfing docutnentation fot each of the 10 deposits and: 

a) Obsetve that receipts ate seqnentiaEy pte-numbeted. 

Results: We observed that dposits were Bcmote Online tbeposits orETFs, so there was no deposit slip. 

b) Trace seqnentiaEy pre-nnmbeted receipts, system reports, and other related coEechon 
documentation to the deposit dip. 

Results: See note 7a. 
c) Trace the deposit sip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement 

Results: We -fy^aced the system rportedETP dposdto the hank statement with no excptions noted. 

Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the coEection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 mEes j&om the coEection 
location or the deposit is less than flOO). 

Results: We observed the receipts to the General Fund were within one business dcrg ofdposit. 

e) Trace the actual depositpet the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Results: We fy-aced the dposit to the GeneralEedger with no exceptions noted. 

Noju-Payroll Disbutsements (excludiag card pmchases/pajrmetifs, ttavel teioabutsejoaeats, 

andpetty cash putchases) 

8. The Non-PayroE Disbursements section is not appEcable to the year ended June 30, 2019 due to 
there beitig no findings in die prior two years. 
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Ctedit Cards/Debit Caxds/Fuel Catds/P~Catds 

9. Obtain ftom tnatiagetaent a Estmg o£ all active ctedit catds, bank debit caids, fad. catds, and. P-
catds (catds) fo± the fiscal period, indndiiig tbe catd numbets and fbe names of the persons Tvbo 
maiatained possession of tbe cards. Obtain .tna.nagem.enfs representation fiiat trie Esting is 
complete. 

Results: Usdng ohtainedfrom management mtb T^resentadon that it is coTS^kte. 

10. Using tbe listing pr^ared by management, randomly sdect 5 cards (or all cards if less fha.n 5) 
fiiat •were nsed daring -the fiscal period. Eandomfy sdect one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly sdect one monthly bank statement), obtain 
sapporfing docnmentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is e-vidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
snpporting docnmentation (e.g., original recdpts for credit/debit card p-nrchas®, exception 
reports for excessive fiid card nsage) was reviewed and approved, in -writing (or 
electronically approvet^, by someone other than the anihorized card holder. jNote: 
Reqrdring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public offidab (e.g., 
mayor of a Lawrason Act munidpality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

Results: We examined 5 credit card statements and noted 2 instances ivhere no t^fToval signadm 

aci 

Mmiagemetxds Respotsse: TnJanMcay 2020 tbe Orkans Parisb School Board is he^nning a tBffirent 
pnrcbase cardprogram which includes, among other controls, that each cardholder prepare his or her own log 
cfpurchase card actwi^ for the month, attach receipts, siffz the log verifying that the e:>penditures were School 
Board e:><pendidires, and requiring the si^iature of the cardholder's supervisor. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the sdected statements. 

Results: We found instances2 instances out &f5 tested where interest charges or late fees were assessed on 
the credit card stcOements. 

JSdaaagemetxt's Response: New accounts pcgahk processes have been put in place that include a 
comhinadon cfdaify weekfy, and monthly rpordngto ensure that all invoices are paid hy their due dates. 

11. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #10 above, excluding fad 
cards, randomly sdect 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each, statement^ 
and obtain srpporting documentation for the transactions ^e. each card should have 10 
transactions subject to testing. 

For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized recdpt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
puipose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). 
For missing recdpts, the practitioner should descrtibe the nature of the transaction and note 
whether management had a compensating control to address missing recdpts, such as a "hoissing 
recdpt statemenf' that is subject to increased scrutiny. 
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Mesults: Of the 25 transactiom tested, we noted 4 transac&ons that included no written or otherwise stated 

business purpose. Additionaiy, of the 25 transacrions tested, there was 1 instance were a recept was the onp 

support provided for the meal charge, with no irformation on the attendees. 

Matiagemetiris Response The new purchase cardprop'om requires that the businesspupose (orprogram) 
be stated on the monthp purchase card log. A. senior accountant wiU review all mordhp purchase card documents 
to ensure compliance and obtain an^ missing irformation, such as attendees at meals. 

Travel and Trarel-Reldted Espetise RHrnhmsemetrts (excluding card ttatwactiojas) 

12. The Ttavel section is not appEcable to the yeai ended June 30,2019 dne to tiiedre hdng no 
findings in the pfi.or yean 

Contracts 

13. The Conttacts section is not appEcable to the yeai ended June 30,2019 dne to thete being no 
findings in the ptior two yeats. 

Payroll and Personnel 

14. The Paycoll and Peisonnel section is not appEcable to the jeat ended Jnne 30,2019 dne to thete 
being no findings in the pdot two yeats. 

EtMcs 

15. The Ethics section is not appEcable to the yeax ended Jnne 30, 2019 dne to thete being no 
findings in the pfiLon two yeats. 

Debt Service 

• 16. The Debt Service section is not appEcable to the yeat ended Jnne 30,2019 dne to thete being no 
findings in the pfiLoi two yeats. 

Other 

17. The Othet section is not appEcable to the yeat ended Jnne 30, 2019 dne to diete Being no 
findings in the ptioi two yeats. 

"We were not engaged to and did not condnct an exarnination oi review, the objective o£ which 
wonld be the expression of an opinion ot condnsion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in 
the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express snch an opinion or condnsion. Had we petformed 
additional procednres, other maters might have come to onr attention that wonld have been 
reported to yon. 
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Ite piHjiose o£ this jrepott is solely to desctibe the scope o£ testiiig perfbttned on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs^ and the resnit o£ that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not stdtahle £or any odiet pmpose. Under Lotiisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, tbds report is distributed by the 1,1 A as a pubEc document. 

Luther Speig 
New Orleans, 
December 18,2019 

CPAs 
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